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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Forward-Looking Statements and Risk Factors

This report includes forward-looking statenseih particular, statements about our expectatioelsefs, plans, objectives or assumptions
of future events or performance are contained asriporated by reference in this report. We havedasese forward-looking statements on
our current expectations about future events. Whééelieve these expectations are reasonableafdrlwoking statements are inherently
subject to risks and uncertainties, many of whieghtseyond our control. Our actual results may diffi@terially from those suggested by tr
forward-looking statements for various reasonduitiog those discussed in this report under thelinga'Risk Factors”. Given these risks
and uncertainties, you are cautioned not to plackie reliance on forward-looking statements. Thedod-looking statements included in
this report are made only as of the date hereofd@ieot undertake and specifically decline anygailon to update any of these statemen
to publicly announce the results of any revisianary forward looking statements to reflect futevents or developments. When used in the
report, unless otherwise indicated, “we,” “our,’s{uthe “Company” and “BioCryst” refers to BioCry8harmaceuticals, Inc.

Overview

BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. is a biotechgglcompany that designs, optimizes and developslmvugs that block key enzymes
involved in cancer, viral infections and autoimmuligeases. BioCryst integrates the disciplinesably, crystallography, medicinal
chemistry and computer modeling to discover ancelibgyysmall molecule pharmaceuticals through thegss known as structure-based drug
design.

Our business strategy is to maximize sustdéneaddue by moving our product candidate portfofimugh clinical development, registrati
and ultimately to the market. We believe this isttachieved by retaining full product rights to puoduct candidates within specialty
markets, while relying on collaborative agreemaevith third parties for product candidates withinger markets or outside our areas of
expertise.

One of our most advanced product candidatgsramivir, an inhibitor of influenza neuraminidabeMay 2009, we announced
preliminary results from the Phase Il study ofamtiuscular (“i.m.”) peramivir for the treatment @sonal influenza. This Phase Il study was
a randomized, double-blind, placebo-controlled t@nducted in influenza seasons in the Southemisfghere (Australia, New Zealand and
South Africa) in 2008 and the Northern Hemisphékeited States) in 2008 to 2009. While the study diestrated a numerical trend in its
primary endpoint of improvement in the median timalleviation of symptoms (“TTAS”) in subjects Wwitonfirmed, acute, uncomplicated
influenza infection versus placebo, the differebheeveen the two study groups was not statisticagjgificant.

We are not planning additional developmeritrof peramivir at this time; instead, our curreffibes are focused on development of the
formulation.

In September 2009 we announced the initiatfdmvo Phase Il clinical trials of i.v. peramivior the treatment of hospitalized patients v
serious influenza. The combined enroliment targethese studies is approximately 700 patients agpdoximately 300 study locations are
targeted to participate in these studies globalhese studies are intended to support U.S. regylatiproval of i.v. peramivir as a treatment
for influenza.

At the XI International Symposium on RespirgtWiral Infections in Bangkok, Thailand in Febry&009, we presented the full data set
from our Phase Il clinical trial in hospitalizedtigats with acute influenza using an i.v. formwatiof peramivir to compare the efficacy and
safety of i.v. peramivir to orally administered tamivir. In October 2008 we reported results ofeaploratory Phase Il trial of i.v. peramivir
in subjects hospitalized for acute serious or paby life-threatening influenza.

In January 2007, the United States DepartmEHealth and Human Services (“HHS"), awarded $4@2.6 million, four-year contract for
the advanced development of peramivir. In Septerdb@®, we received an award of $77.2 million towawcthpletion of the Phase I
development of i.v. peramivir pursuant to a corttraodification with HHS. This additional fundingibgs the total award from HHS for the
development of peramivir to
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$179.9 million and extends the contract term byrihths to five years. Any funding above the $178iion may be our responsibility.

In September 2009, we received a requestriipgsal (“RFP”) from HHS for the supply of i.v. jenivir for the treatment of critically ill
influenza patients under an Emergency Use Authtiozg“EUA”). On November 4, 2009 we received aitial order for 10,000 courses of
i.v. peramivir (600 mg oncdaily for five days) for an aggregate purchasegaf$22.5 million. We shipped the entire ordendrexisting i.v.
peramivir inventory to HHS on November 4, 2009. &nthe Indefinite Delivery Indefinite Quantity coatt issued to us on November 3,
2009, HHS may place additional orders for peramipitto a total of 40,000 courses at the same uici @s the first order. We are also
required to maintain the ability to manufactureitiddal treatment courses dependent on the volumesize of antiviral orders received fro
HHS. In addition, separate from the RFP processhave donated and transferred to HHS an initiapugufficient for 1,200 courses of i.v.
peramivir 600 mg once-daily for five days.

The minimum and maximum quantities of i.v.graivir that may be ordered by HHS under the RFPL&®0 and 40,000 treatment
courses. We also are required to maintain thetatdimanufacture additional courses for treatnuergrophylaxis, dependent on the volume
and size of orders received from HHS. Based ofRf, we initiated manufacture of approximately 080,courses of i.v. peramivir at a ¢
of approximately $10 million, so that we would hadgitional inventory available in advance of pditdrorders.

In October 2009, the FDA, in response to aiestifrom the U.S. Centers for Disease ControlRmedention, issued an EUA permitting
use of i.v. peramivir in hospitalized adult and ip#ic patients with confirmed or suspected 200Nl Influenza infection who have not
responded to oral or inhaled antivirals or in wharal or inhaled antiviral therapy is not feasildad in adult patients for whom therapy with
an i.v. drug is judged clinically appropriate doeother circumstances.

In March 2007, we entered into a collaboratigth Shionogi & Co., Ltd. (“Shionogi”) for the delopment and commercialization of
peramivir in Japan. This exclusive license agredrfn]apan included an upfront payment of $14iamlland future clinical event milestone
payments of up to $21 million. In October 2008, @@npany and Shionogi amended the license agreemerpand the territory in the
agreement to include Taiwan and to provide rigbtsShionogi to perform a Phase Il clinical trinlilong Kong.

Shionogi previously completed a Phase |l stofdyv. peramivir administered via a single dasfision in the outpatient setting for
treatment of seasonal influenza. Shionogi presethiedata at the 2008 Interscience Conference dimfanobial Agents and Chemotherapy
(“ICAAC") / Infectious Diseases Society of Ameri€dDSA”") annual meeting in Washington, D.C.

In July 2009, Shionogi announced positive Iteso two Phase 11l clinical trials of i.v. perawin. The studies were sponsored by Shionogi
and conducted in Japan, Taiwan and South Koreagitiie 2008-2009 influenza season. Shionogi anérGtzoss Corporation (“Green
Cross”), the license holder of peramivir in Koraaguant to a June 2006 license agreement withouspeducted the portion of the studies in
Korea. Doses of i.v. peramivir of 300 mg and 60Q adjministered in single and multiple doses wetmébto be generally safe and well-
tolerated in these trials. Shionogi presented #ia dt the 2009 ICAAC / IDSA annual meeting in $aancisco, California. Shionogi filed an
NDA in Japan for i.v. peramivir in 200

In January 2010, Shionogi received marketimdj manufacturing approval for i.v. peramivir in dapThe filing of this application
triggered a $7.0 million milestone payment to udemour current license agreement, and we receivhdd and final regulatory milestone
payment of $7.0 million in January 2010 as a resiihe applicatiors approval. We may receive future commercial ewglgstone paymen
of up to $95 million from Shionogi. Shionogi haswoercially launched peramivir under the commenca@he RAPIACTA in Japan.
Shionogi has received the indications of singleedaxdministration of 300 mg i.v. peramivir for aduttcomplicated seasonal influenza
infection, as well as single and multiple dose adstiation of 600 mg i.v. peramivir for the patigmit high-risk for complications associated
with influenza. Shionogi is authorized to supplyamivir as either a 300 mg i.v. bag or a 150 m¢fami.v. drip infusion. Shionogi has
completed clinical studies for pediatric patients &ias filed an additional application for ped@atrise of RAPIACTA in Japan.
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Additionally, in January 2010, we announcedt fBreen Cross filed a New Drug Application in $okibrea in January 2010 to seek
regulatory approval for i.v. peramivir to treatipats with influenza.

In addition to Shionogi and Green Cross, weetentered into several agreements with companitséde the U.S. to represent us and
peramivir primarily for stockpiling opportunitieBor example, on December 23, 2009, we enterechimtagreement with Merck Serono, S.
through its affiliate, Ares Trading S.A., to exditey represent us and peramivir for stockpilingrogunities in Europe, Russia, Canada and
Singapore. Also in December 2009, we entered intagaeement with Hikma Pharmaceuticals, PLC toasgnmt us and peramivir for
stockpiling opportunities in the Middle East andrtiioAfrica, excluding Israel. In January, 2010 wieged into an agreement with moksha8
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. to exclusively representnaspeeramivir for influenza stockpiling opportungian Brazil and Mexico.

In addition, we have a binding letter of irtterith NT Pharma, Co., Ltd. to exclusively represas and peramivir for influenza stockpiling
opportunities in China. We also have a bindingeletff intent with Neopharm Scientific, Ltd. to eusively represent us and peramivir for
influenza stockpiling opportunities in Israel.

Another one of our most advanced drug candgjdorodesine, is a transition-state analog indilif the enzyme purine nucleoside
phosphorylase (“PNP”). Forodesine has been gradtptan Drug status by the FDA for three indicatiohsell non-Hodgkin lymphoma,
including Cutaneous T-cell Lymphoma (“CTCL"); Chiol.ymphocytic Leukemia (“CLL") and related leukeasiincluding T-cell
prolymphocytic leukemia, adult T-cell leukemia, dxalry cell leukemia; and for treatment of B-caluge lymphoblastic leukemia (“B-ALL”

An oral formulation of the compound is curtgninder a pivotal trial for patients with CTCL. &ltrial is being conducted under a special
protocol assessment (“SPA”) negotiated with thetéthBtates Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) aiicuccessful, will serve as a basis
for a new drug application (“NDA”") to the FDA usirtige oral formulation in patients with relapsed CTG January 2010, we announced
that we had achieved our protocol-specified objectif enrolling 100 late-stage patients (StagetdlB/A) in this pivotal study. We expect to
report top-line data from this study in the secbatf of 2010.

Long-term data from our Phase Il study of fésine in patients with CTCL was presented at &tk Annual Meeting of the American
Society of Clinical Oncology. This poster presetateviewed the safety and efficacy of forodedoreCTCL patients of stage Ib to stage IV
who have failed standard therapies and receivediésine treatment for greater than 12 months.

Additionally, our exploratory Phase Il stuay forodesine in subjects with CLL is continuingpimgress and has enrolled over half of its
targeted number of patients. In December 2008, m@w@nced interim data from the study in patienth WLL and data from a healthy
subject pharmacokinetic and pharmacodynamic stadgsequently, we amended the Phase Il study tedrerthe dose of forodesine to
200mg twice daily and enrollment is ongoing. Weeantfo report top-line results from this studyhe second half 2010.

In December 2007, we presented data relatdtet®hase /11 clinical study of forodesine in @adts with refractory CTCL and a poster
detailing the in vitro activity of forodesine asiagle agent and the synergistic in vitro actiafyforodesine in combination with
bendamustine in primary cells from 29 patients W@th.. These data were presented at the 2007 Ameficaiety of Hematology meeting.

Since February 2006, we have had an excliliseesing agreement with Mundipharma Internatidfaldings Limited (“Mundipharma”)
to develop and commercialize forodesine in marketsss the European Union (“EU”), Asia and Austrédir use in oncology. We have
retained full development and commercializatiomtsgto forodesine in the rest of the world, inchgiNorth America.

Our other drug candidate in clinical trialoigr second generation PNP inhibitor, BCX-4208Nbvember 2005, we entered into an
exclusive worldwide development and commercial@atgreement with Roche. In 2007 Roche initiat@thase 1l clinical trial with oral
doses of BCX-4208/R3421, which was designed touatalthe drug candidate in patients with modemsevere plague psoriasis. The
assessment of the study endpoints has been coshpiasistent with interim findings we reportedMiay 2008, the Phase Il clinical study
BCX-4208, a potent, rationally designed, orallyitalde PNP inhibitor, met its primary objectivessafety and tolerability. In addition, BCX-
4208 displayed dose-dependent reductions in paabhod lymphocyte counts, including subsets meag B cells (CD20), total T cells
(CD3), T helper cells (CD4) and T suppressor/cyiataells (CD8).
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Further, plasma levels of BCX-4208 increased witka] and plasma uric acid levels showed dose-tetatkictions with BCX-4208. In
addition, consistent with interim results we prexsly reported, no evidence of clinical efficacysexondary objective, was observed in
psoriasis patients with doses and duration of ainétion tested. The dosing period was six weelkis the two lowest doses tested in our
single and multiple ascending dose trials.

In the Phase lla trial, BCX-4208 was genersdife and well-tolerated at doses up to 120 my ddibst adverse events reported were
considered mild or moderate, and low in frequemy opportunistic infections were observed. In additdetailed laboratory and clinical
monitoring did not indicate any patterns suggestiveff-target adverse findings.

Also in May 2008, we received notice that Reoelas exercising the “no cause” termination rigider the license agreement for BCX-
4208. As a result, we regained worldwide rightB@X-4208.

We recently initiated a clinical study of BG»08 for the treatment of gout, which is causeeélpbyated levels of uric acid in blood. We
believe that BCX-4208 is a good candidate to comfoot because data from a prior Phase Il clinical of BCX-4208 for psoriasis indicated
a dose related to reduction in uric acid that westasned for the duration of drug exposure. Ourt gtinical trial is a Phase I, randomized,
double-blind, placebo-controlled study to evaluhteefficacy and safety of BCX-4208 in subjectswgbut. The trial contains two parts:
Part 1 will study multiple doses of BCX-4208 agaiaplacebo and Part 2 will study dose escalafibe.trial’s primary objective is to
determine the effect of different doses of oratlyrénistered BCX-4208 on serum uric acid levelsatignts with gout. The trial is expected to
enroll up to 120 subjects and we expect to havmimlata from Part 1 in mid-2010.

BioCryst is a Delaware corporation origindlthyinded in 1986. Our Alabama office is located ®@Parkway Lake Drive, Birmingham,
Alabama 35244, where the telephone number is (285)4600 and our North Carolina office is locateds05 Emperor Blvd., Suite 200,
Durham, North Carolina 27703 where the telephomaber is (919) 859-1302. For more information al®ioCryst, please visit our website
at www.biocryst.com. The information on our websit@ot incorporated into this Form 10-K.

Our Business Strategy

We design, optimize and develop novel drugs lttock key enzymes involved in cancer, viral atiens and autoimmune diseases. We
integrate the necessary disciplines of biologysta§ography, medicinal chemistry and computer rnlinddo effectively use structure based
drug design to discover and develop small molepblrmaceuticals.

Our business strategy is to maximize sustéémeddue by moving our drug candidate portfolionfrdiscovery through clinical
development, registration and ultimately to the kmirWe believe this is best achieved by retaiffiifigoroduct rights to our drug candidates
within specialty markets, while relying on collabtive arrangements with third parties for drug ¢datds within larger markets or outside
area of expertise. Potential third party alliancesld include preclinical development, clinical é®pment, regulatory approval, marketing,
sales and distribution of our drug candidates. ftiirgcipal elements of our strategy are:

» Develop or License Inhibitorsthat are Promising Candidates for Commercialization. We test multiple compounds to identify those that
are most promising for clinical development. Weebasr selection of promising development candidatedesirable product
characteristics, such as initial indications oesafind efficacy. We believe that this focusedtsgy allows us to eliminate unpromising
candidates from consideration sooner without inngrsubstantial clinical costs. In addition, ouefgrence is to select drug candidates on
the basis of their potential for relatively effintePhase | and Phase Il clinical trials that regjfewer patients to initially indicate safety
and efficacy. We will consider, however, more coexptandidates with longer development cycles ibekeve that they offer promising
commercial opportunitie:

e Select and License Promising Enzyme Targets for the Discovery of Small-Molecule Pharmaceuticals. We use our technical expertise
and network of academic and industry contacts &duate and select promising enzyme targets todedor the discovery of small-
molecule pharmaceuticals. We choose enzyme tatlggteneet as many of the following criteria as pues
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e serve important functions in disease pathw

» have known animal or c-based models that would be indicative of resultsuimans
e address large potential markets or niche areassigtiificant unmet medical need; a
» have multiple potential clinical applicatior

Focuson High Value-Added Structure-Based Drug Design Technologies. We focus our drug discovery activities and expeandi on
applications of structure-based drug design teagies to design and develop drug candidates. Stextased drug design is a process
by which we design a drug candidate through detaitealysis of the enzyme target, which the druglichate must inhibit in order to stop
the progression of the disease or disorder. Wewelkhat structure-based drug design is a powtaxr@lifor efficient development of
small-molecule drug candidates that have the pialeontbe safe, effective and relatively inexperdi® manufacture. Our structure-based
drug design technologies typically allow us to dasind synthesize multiple drug candidates thabinthe same enzyme target. We
believe this strategy can lead to broad pateneptimn and enhance the competitive advantagesrafampounds

An important element of our business straisdg control fixed costs and overhead throughtremting and entering into license

agreements with other parties. We maintain a stieathcorporate infrastructure that focuses oureetxge. By contracting with other
specialty organizations, we believe that we cartrobnosts, enable our drug candidates to reacimtmixet more quickly and reduce our
business risk. Key elements of our contractingagnamay include:

Entering I nto Relationships with Academic I ngtitutions. Many academic institutions perform extensive resean the molecular and
structural biology of potential drug developmemg&ts. When we believe that an opportunity is hiergffor BioCryst we may enter into
relationships with academic institutions. We wihsider each opportunity and whether or not theticeiship will significantly reduce tl
time, cost and risks involved in drug developmém.example of such a collaborative relationshifhsarrangement that we have with
Albert Einstein College of Medicine of Yeshiva Uargity (“AECOM”) and Industrial Research LimitedRL") who are the licensors of
our PNP inhibitor program:

Developing Drug Candidates or Licensing Them to Other Parties. We generally plan to advance drug candidates thrinigal and/or
early-stage drug development. We prefer to retalimfoduct rights to our drug candidates withirsialty markets, while relying on
collaborative arrangements with third parties argdcandidates within larger markets or outsideasaa of expertise. For larger disease
indications or those outside our area of expertige strategy is to license drug candidates tomhaeutical or biotechnology partners for
collaborative development and global marketing. Wgkeve partnerships are a good source of developpa/ments, license fees, future
event payments and royalties. They also reducedbis and risks, and increase the effectivenedatesttage product development,
regulatory approval, manufacturing and marketing. &k willing to license a drug candidate to argartiuring any stage of the
development process we determine to be benefias tand to the ultimate development and commératan of that drug candidat

Products in Development

The following table summarizes our drug caatid in clinical development as of February 200201

Program and Candidate Disease

Category/Indication Delivery Form Development Stage Rights
PNP Inhibitor (forodesine; BioCryst (U.S.)/Mundipharm
CTCL Oral Pivotal (EU, Australia, Asia
CLL Oral Phase |
Neuraminidase Inhibitor (peramivir)
Viral (Acute Influenza V. Pivotal BioCryst (U.S.)
Viral (Seasonal Influenz: V. Filed Shionogi

(East Asia)/Green Cross (Kore
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Program and Candidate Disease
Category/Indication Delivery Form Development Stage Rights

PNP Inhibitor (BCX-4208/R3421
Gout Oral Phase | BioCryst

Additional Products

In addition to the programs shown above, v8e attain exclusive rights to other compoundsmuber of therapeutic areas. These
compounds are currently in pre-clinical developnaemd include potent inhibitors of parainfluenzajmninidase, hepatitis C, JAK,
Kallicrein and additional PNP inhibitors. We wilbetinue to evaluate and test these compounds ¢ordigte which should be taken forward
into clinical testing.

PNP Inhibitors

T-cell Related Diseases

Overview. The human immune system employs specialized, ¢etleiding T-cells, to control infection by recagimg and attacking
disease-causing viruses, bacteria and parasitesliSTare an essential part of the body’s immurséesy that serve a dual purpose to both
orchestrate and participate in the body’s immuieaase. For the most part, this system works flssi§eto protect the body. However, when
T-cells multiply uncontrollably, T-cell proliferaté diseases, such as T-cell cancers, can occur.

The link between T-cell proliferation and {hrine nucleoside phosphorylase, or PNP, enzymdivsasliscovered approximately twenty-
five years ago when a patient, who was genetichdficient in PNP, exhibited limited T-cell activjtput reasonably normal activity of other
immune functions. In other patients lacking PNRvégt the T-cell population was selectively dejglét however, B-cell function tended to be
normal. Based on these findings and the resultglbtulture studies, inhibiting PNP appears todpice primarily suppression of T-cells
without significantly impairing the function of ath non-lymphoid cells.

Acute Lymphoblastic Leukemi&cute lymphocytic leukemia (“ALL") is a type ofdiod cancer. Other names for ALL are acute
lymphoblastic leukemia and acute lymphoid leukerAial. is the most common form of leukemia in childréALL results from an acquired
injury to the DNA of a single cell in the bone nanr.

T-cell Lymphoma Lymphoma is a general term for a group of cantteasoriginate in the lymphatic system. T-cell lyinoma results
when a T-lymphocyte (a type of white blood celldergoes a malignant change and begins to mulgpiyntually crowding out healthy cells
and creating tumors, which enlarge the lymph nashekinvade other sites in the body. CTCL is a prynskin neoplasm and accounts for
nearly 50% of all T-cell malignancies.

T-cell Mediated Autoimmune Diseas€bere are more than 80 clinically distinct autoinmawliseases such as psoriasis, rheumatoid
arthritis, multiple sclerosis, and Crohn’s diseagich appear to have activated T-cells as a nggarof their pathogenesis. These diseases
occur when the immune system attacks the body’saila rather than invading microorganisms. Themfmhibition and/or elimination of
activated T-cells could have a beneficial effectliese diseases.

Transplant Rejectiorilhe greatest threat to transplant patients is tiejeof the transplanted organ by the badgivn immune system. F
this reason, transplant recipients must take dimgsppress the immune response and prevent mjagiually for the rest of their lives. A
regimen combining several drugs is usually givet s treatment has to be continued indefinitElyr kidney transplant recipients, rejection
of the new kidney by the patient’'s immune systemlead to loss of the transplanted organ and arrétudialysis. For heart, lung and liver
transplant patients, loss of the transplanted opgasents an immediate threat to life.

B-cell Related Cancers

Overview. There are two types of lymphocytes in the broasiesse — T-cells and B-cells. Although PNP inlitsitwere developed
specifically to block the T-cells, recent work indies that the same biochemical event — the intudeeaccumulation of deoxyguanosine
triphosphate (“dGTP”) also occurs in malignant Biscd=urthermore, work of Dr. Varsha Gandhi at Mbiderson Cancer Center has shown
that PNP inhibitors, when actirig vitro on B-cells from patients with CLL induce accumuwatiof dGTP with resultant apoptosis (cell death).
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These studies open the possibility of trea@hdy, B-ALL and B-cell non-Hodgkin Lymphoma (“NHL"ith forodesine. Importantly, B-
cell malignancies are considerably more prevalesm tare the T-cell leukemias and lymphomas.

Our PNP Inhibitors

PNP Inhibition. PNP is an enzyme that plays an important role-aell proliferation, because it is necessary tamaén normal DNA
synthesis in human T-cells. Selective inhibitiorPOfP causes certain nucleosides, including deoxyagiae, to accumulate. As the
concentration of deoxyguanosine increases withaells, it is converted by specific enzymes to dGARigh concentration of dGTP in T-
cells causes an imbalance in the intra-cellulautieotide pool and thus causes cell death.

In June 2000, we licensed a series of pothifit Rhibitors from AECOM and IRL. The lead drug datate from this collaboration,
forodesine, is a more potent inhibitor of human yrocyte proliferation than other previously knowxRPinhibitors. Clinical data in our past
and ongoing clinical trials, plus extensive preickh studies indicate that forodesine can modulatell activities. Forodesine is an
investigational PNP inhibitor for the potentialdtment of T-cell leukemias and T and B cell lymplagmn February 2006, we licensed
forodesine to Mundipharma to develop and commaereiah markets across Europe, Asia and Australiaiée in oncology.

During 2002, we exercised the option to adéa compound, BCX-4208, to the series of inhibiwf®NP licensed from AECOM and
IRL. Preclinical results indicated that BCX-4208saamore potent inhibitor than forodesine. We catgul a Phase | single ascending dose
clinical trial and a Phase Ib multi-dose cliniagl; both in healthy volunteers. In November 2088, licensed BCX-4208 to Roche for the
world wide development and commercialization irogmmune diseases and transplant rejection. We aroedutermination of the Roche
license in 2008 and have regained world wide right8CX-4208.

PNP Inhibitor (forodesine)
Overview

The first clinical trial with an intravenousriulation of forodesine, which began in 2002, wahase | clinical trial that enrolled T-ALL
patients at the M.D. Anderson Cancer Center in koysTexas. Simultaneously, there were preclirétadlies being conducted at the M.D.
Anderson Cancer Center which indicated that forimgeimduces the same biochemical changes in vadthes types of leukemia cells that
responsible for the inhibition of T-leukemia cell$ie results of these preclinical studies led usdmand beyond the single starting trial in T-
ALL by initiating additional clinical trials for feactory patients with B-ALL, CTCL, CLL, and otheematologic malignancies. Based on the
encouraging results of these initial studies, veevearking with our partner, Mundipharma, to devetogtrategy for the simultaneous
development of forodesine in multiple indicatiomslan potential combination therapies.

Current Development Strategy (T-ALL, CTCL, B-ALL, and CLL)

Forodesine Clinical DevelopmenFollowing the completion of a Phase I/11 clini¢gll in patients with refractory CTCL, in
October 2007, we initiated a pivotal trial with aral formulation of forodesine for treatment ofipats with CTCL. This trial is being
conducted under a SPA agreement negotiated witREeand will serve as a basis for a new drug apilbn to the FDA using the oral
formulations in patients with relapsed CTCL. ThiwaBe Il clinical study has enrolled all of the &tegl patients. We expect to report top line
data on this study in the second half of 2010.

Currently, 144 patients are enrolled in theOCBtudy. Eligible patients are those with CTCLstdges IB through IVA who have disease
that is persistent, progressive or recurrent dusingfter treatment with at least three systemicahies. The study is a multinational, non-
randomized, open-label, single-arm trial that ialeating 200 mg once-daily oral forodesine treatiméhe study will examine the rate of
objective responses in patients enrolled at sitd¢orth America, Europe and Australia. The stugyismary endpoint is objective response
rate, defined as either complete response or padianeous response that is sustained for at #8adays.

8




Table of Contents

Based on preclinical studies conducted atHg. Anderson Cancer Center which indicated theddesine induces the same biochemical
changes in various other types of leukemia celis éhe responsible for the inhibition of T-leukero@ls, we initiated two small clinical
studies late in 2005 in B-cell leukemias, which m@e prevalent than T-cell leukemias.

First, we initiated a Phase Il trial with ofatodesine in patients with CLL in an advancedstand refractory to fludarabine, a current
standard therapy. Our initial trial has been amdrsiethat any potential subject who had fludarabie&tment in the past is now eligible. T
trial is on-going. In December 2008, we announcgerim data from the ongoing forodesine Phasedg@m in patients with CLL and data
from a healthy subject pharmacokinetic and pharmhatamic study. The interim analysis was conductedata from an exploratory Phase |l
single-arm, open-label program in patients with Githose previous treatment had failed. While thislgsis showed that no partial or
complete responses were observed, five out of fi8ria administered 200 mg of forodesine once-dalg substantial reductions in
malignant lymphocytes, and at the time of the asia)yseven patients were still on study. Forodesia® generally safe and well-tolerated at
the 200 mg onceaily dose. Also, in a parallel, healthy subjetiapnacokinetic and pharmacodynamic study, we coatpidire effect of sev
days of 200 mg forodesine dosed once-daily witlesedays of 200 mg forodesine dosed twice-daily. §ibdy demonstrated substantially
increased drug exposure and pharmacodynamic @ffeabjects administered forodesine 200 mg twidgrdarug exposure, as measured by
area under the (plasma-concentration/time) cunkgé@) increased by 63 percent (P<0.001) for twiciyd#osing compared to once-daily
dosing. Serum uric acid levels were reduced atlgtetate compared to baseline by 50.0 percentioetdaily dosing compared to
23.5 percent for once-daily dosing (p<0.001), iatlitg increased PNP enzyme inhibition with twicéyddosing. Subsequently, we amended
the study to increase the dosing regimen of oradesine to 200 mg twice-daily.

This study for forodesine in subjects with Chas enrolled 20 of the targeted 26 patients, ®&tipatients currently still on treatment. The
primary purpose of the study is to evaluate theatiffeness and safety of oral forodesine admirgdtas monotherapy at a dose of 200 mg
twice-daily in relapsed CLL patients. Previous iciat trial data indicated that forodesine demortsttalinical activity in CLL patients at a
dose of 200 mg once-daily, and was generally sadengll-tolerated. The current trial is testing tenefit and safety of increasing forodesine
drug exposure with twice-daily dosing.

We initiated a Phase I/l clinical trial ofrfdesine to determine the safety of repeat dosas o¥. formulation of the drug in patients with
B-ALL. This trial is completed. Once the data drerbughly analyzed, we will review the results willundipharma to determine the best
clinical development strategy going forward.

In January 2007, we initiated a Phase Ilb icetiter, open-label, non-randomized repeat-dodstration study to evaluate an intravenous
treatment of forodesine followed by an oral treattraf forodesine in patients with relapsed or retivay T-ALL. This study was being
conducted under an SPA negotiated with the FDAveasl designed to determine the rate of completessari achieved with forodesine. In
March 2007, we announced that as a result of distabsue with the i.v. formulation, that we weveluntarily placing this Phase IIb clinical
trial on hold pending internal review and discussiwith our partner, Mundipharma. In December 208¥ announced the formal terminat
of this study.

In February 2006, we and Mundipharma entemtalan exclusive license agreement to develop antreercialize forodesine in markets
across Europe, Asia and Australia for use in orgpol@he agreement covers a number of markets ia &sil Australasia including Japan,
Australia, New Zealand, China and India. This dmdie@ation should help maximize the global developtnemmmercialization, and market
potential of forodesine in a variety of serious matconditions potentially including T-cell leukéam CTCL, CLL, T-cell non-Hodgkin
lymphoma and B-cell non-Hodgkin lymphoma.

PNP Inhibitor (BCX-4208)

Overview

During 2004, we began clinical developmenB6fX-4208, another PNP inhibitor, as a drug candidat the treatment of T-cell mediated
autoimmune diseases, including psoriasis, andgtansrejection. Although BCX- 4208 and forodesame both investigational PNP
inhibitors, BCX-4208 differs from forodesine in sificant ways.
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For example, BCX-4208 is more potent, and has Ifléyato suppress PNP for longer periods of tifibus, BCX-4208 has potential
advantages over forodesine for the treatment @ladiss requiring long-term, chronic administratiba BNP inhibitor.

In November 2005, we and Roche entered intexatusive license agreement for the worldwide tgyment and commercialization of
BCX-4208 for the prevention of acute rejectionransplantation and for the treatment of autoimmiseases. This collaboration provided
substantial strategic and economic benefit to wlsadgo all the essential elements for the rapityprehensive and competitive development
of BCX-4208. The two companies established a joimhmittee to set the clinical development strat@gy the future development program
for BCX-4208.

During the third quarter of 2007, Roche in@a Phase lla clinical trial to evaluate BCX-4E®121 in patients with moderate to severe
plaque psoriasis. In the Phase lla trial, BCX-42@8 generally safe and well-tolerated at dose® Uj2® mg daily for six weeks. Most
adverse events reported were considered mild oerate] and low in frequency. No opportunistic itiferes were observed. In addition,
detailed laboratory and clinical monitoring did madicate any patterns suggestive of off-targeteask findings. In addition, consistent with
interim results previously reported by the Comparyevidence of clinical efficacy, a secondary otiye, was observed in psoriasis patients
with doses and duration of administration testddoAn May 2008, we announced that we receiveccadtiat Roche was exercising the “no
cause” termination right under the license agre¢rfuerBCX-4208.

As a result, we regained worldwide rights ©X84208 and are currently pursuing BCX-4208 develept in gout. We believe that BCX-
4208 is a good candidate to control gout becautsefoam a prior Phase Il clinical trial of BCX-42@@& psoriasis indicated a dose related
reduction in uric acid that was sustained for theatlon of drug exposure.

Current Development Strategy

We completed our initial Phase | study of B&XB8, a single dose pharmacokinetic trial in hgalhlunteers, early in 2005 and during
third quarter of 2005, we initiated a Phase Ib midse trial in healthy volunteers to evaluateshfety, tolerability, and pharmacokinetics of
multiple oral doses of BCX-4208.

We recently initiated a clinical study of BG»08 for the treatment of gout, which is causealeyated levels of uric acid in blood. Our
gout clinical trial is a Phase Il, randomized, dedblind, placebo-controlled study to evaluate éffecacy and safety of BCX-4208 in subjects
with gout. The trial contains two parts: Part 1lwildy multiple doses of BCX-4208 against a placabd Part 2 will study dose escalation.
The trial’s primary objective is to determine theet of different doses of orally administered B&%08 on serum uric acid levels in patients
with gout. The trial is expected to enroll up tdlbjects.

Neuraminidase Inhibitor

Influenza

Seasonal Influenz&easonal influenza, commonly known as the flu\isa infection characterized by symptoms inclgdfever, cough,
sore throat, fatigue, headache, and/or chills. Adicg to the U.S. Centers for Disease Control ardyé&htion (“CDC"), an estimated 5% to
20% of the American population suffers from inflaarannually, there are an estimated 200,000 infla@ssociated hospitalizations, and
influenza is responsible for approximately 36,0@@tts annually. Influenza is particularly dangerauthe elderly, young children and pec
with certain health conditions. Outbreaks of seaktin tend to follow predictable patterns usualbcurring in the winter. New vaccines are
developed annually based on known flu strains aedisually available for the annual flu seasonré&lae also antiviral treatments available
for the treatment of people infected with influenza

Pandemic InfluenzaPandemic influenza is a global disease outbreatkadccurs when a new influenza virus emerges anglp have had
no previous exposure. This situation occurs verglygonly three times in the 20th century). In M2309, the World Health Organization
(“WHQO") declared an influenza pandemic caused Iopweel influenza virus. According to the WHO, théesttific criteria for an influenza
pandemic had been met. According
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to the CDC, H1N1 flu was the most widespread inWnéed States in late October and early NovemBé82October 2009 saw the highest
rate of flu illness of any flu season since sufaaite began. Children ages 5-17 were most likehetbospitalized from the H1N1 flu virus.
The majority of people who were hospitalized hadiaderlying condition, with asthma being the mashmon. Furthermore, the CDC
Influenza Division also reported that HIN1 virugesn over 100 countries have been characterized/auhlly all of them are similar to the
strain of HIN1 included in the 2009 H1N1 flu vaeeiiccording to the CDC, the H1N1 virus has notngjeal significantly since it was first
recognized in spring 2009 and remains responsiaatigiral treatment.

Avian Influenza According to information from the CDC, avian uinéinza, or bird flu is an infection caused by visuadich occur
naturally among birds. This form of flu is very ¢agious among birds and can lead to serious illaedssometimes death. While there are
many different subtypes of the influenza A viruslyatwo subtypes are known to be currently cirdaptamong humans. Avian influenza A
viruses are found chiefly in birds, but there hbeen confirmed cases of infection in humans, gdélgexs a result of contact with infected
birds. Thus far, person to person spread of thissvis considered extremely rare, but as influeghzé&uses constantly change, they could
mutate over time to have the ability to spreaddigpamong humans.

Influenza Prevention and Treatmerfthe development of effective therapeutics haietiged medical researchers due to the seasonal
variation in viral strains and the highly infectinature of influenza. Patients, therefore, hawédid treatment options. Amantadine and
rimantadine, drugs in the adamantine class, haer bsed for treatment of influenza A but are ineffe against influenza B. In addition,
these drugs cause some adverse side effects, @nifub tends to develop resistance to these ditgsCDC has recommended against the
use of amantadine and rimantadine for the treatmeptophylaxis of influenza in the United Statesilisusceptibility to these antiviral
medications has been re-established among cimglatfluenza A viruses. Osteltamivir and zanamigiygs in the neuraminidase inhibitor
class, have been used for the treatment of infleRecently, the prevalence of resistance to asaliain subtype H1N1 of influenza A has
increased, and the CDC has recommended the us@aiivir or a combination of oseltamivir and rinthtee when influenza A (“HIN1")
virus infection or exposure is suspected.

Vaccines are available against the diseasbhawué limitations: people require advance vacaimatvaccines are limited by their specificity
to particular strains of the virus; and vaccindeolfittle protection if the strain of influenzaahcirculates is different from that present in the
vaccine. In addition, many people decline the negliinjections. Different strains can arise wheriagie antigens on the virus (the portion of
the virus that causes an immune reaction in humam$®rgo minor genetic mutations each year asithe xeplicates (antigenic drift).
Because of this mutability, the immunity acquiradesponse to infection by a particular strainheftirus does not provide adequate
protection against viruses that subsequently afise.production of a new vaccine each year is ntyt complex and expensive, but also an
inefficient method of global disease control.

Inhibiting Influenza Neuraminidasesearch during the past two decades has seentidrahzances in understanding the molecular
structure and function of the influenza virus. Adagable attention has been focused on the enzgmeaminidase, which is located on the
surface of the virus. Neuraminidase assists imalease and spread of the flu virus by breakingHeenical strands that hold the new viruses
to the cell surface, allowing the replicated vitospread and infect other cells. This processressgs until the host’s immune response can
produce enough antibodies to bring the infectiodenrcontrol. Inhibiting the neuraminidase enzymepsenew viruses attached to the cell
surface, thereby preventing the spread of the \@ngsthe further infection of other cells. The dugent quantities of virus in the bloodstre
are not enough to cause disease but are sufficientiuce the body to mount an immune response.

In addition to our neuraminidase inhibitor gleandidate, peramivir, both Roche, in collaboratidth Gilead Sciences, and
GlaxoSmithKline (“GSK”) have neuraminidase inhibgmn the market. Roche’s neuraminidase inhibgar iwice-a-day, orally active
neuraminidase inhibitor, while GSK’s neuraminidagsbitor is administered by dry powder inhalerd¢wia day. Both drugs are approved for
marketing in the United States and other counfaefreatment of influenza and are to be admingstdor 5 days. Both companies are have
i.v. formulations in clinical trial development. Blte’s neuraminidase inhibitor is also approvedofophylaxis of influenza. In addition to
these companies with neuraminidase inhibitorsgtlaee other companies working to develop additianéiviral drugs to be used against
various strains of influenza.
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Some studies in laboratories suggest that sdniese neuraminidase inhibitor drugs should wrtkeating avian influenza infections in
humans, but additional studies are needed to dernatmshe effectiveness of these drugs.

Government StockpilingVith the concern of avian influenza and the possibfeat of a pandemic, many governments througheut
world have been stockpiling antiviral drugs, sustRache’s neuraminidase inhibitor, oseltamivir. rEhis interest in many of these
governments, including the U.S. government to &idditional vaccines and antivirals to address arg@l pandemic situation.

Neuraminidase Inhibitor (peramivir)
Overview

Backgroundln 1987, scientists at The University of Alabam®&mingham (“UAB”), in collaboration with our santists, began
determining the molecular structure of the influemeuraminidase enzyme from several differentrtraf influenza, using X-ray
crystallography. Subsequently, our scientists aA® Jcientists developed numerous new inhibitorthese enzymes using structure-based
drug design. We licensed the influenza neuramieiglmegram from UAB in 1994 and proceeded to coreplet studies of the enzyme’s
molecular structure needed to advance the developofi@euraminidase inhibitors. The structure &f #ctive site of influenza neuraminidase
is similar among different viral strains. Becau$¢his similarity, we believe that our neuraminidashibitors may be effective in the
treatment and prevention of influenza, regardléshanges in the virus.

Previous development of peramivir in an ocaihfulation was conducted through a worldwide lieeagreement between the Company
the R.W. Johnson Pharmaceutical Research InstihndeOrtho-McNeil Pharmaceutical Inc. (both John&alohnson companies). Johnson &
Johnson made the business decision to terminat@dginéement in 2001 and returned all rights tdrudune 2002, we completed an ongoing
Phase llI clinical trial that had been started blgnkon & Johnson and subsequently terminated dawelnt of our oral peramivir program as
a result of missing the primary endpoint in theopa trial.

Current status of peramiviiVe filed an investigational new drug applicatiofND") in 2005 and re-initiated the clinical developnt of
peramivir during 2006. Currently peramivir i.v.ilsPhase Il clinical trial development with two & 11l trials underway for the treatment of
hospitalized patients with serious influenza.

Current Development Strategy

Preclinical studies comparing peramivir wither anti-influenza drugs have demonstrated thatrpieir has broad-spectrum potency
against multiple strains of influenza in the nantanor sub-nanomolar range, including the aviaaistH5N1. We are currently focusing on
injectable formulations of peramivir to achievethigood levels that may be effective against musairss of influenza, including strains that
may be resistant to oseltamivir (Tamiflu). Our IN@ i.v. peramivir became effective in December 2@@dd for i.m. in December 2006. We
received fast track designation from the FDA inukag 2006 and initiated a Phase | clinical triathaiiv. peramivir in March 2006. During
2006, we conducted multiple Phase | clinical trinlsealthy volunteers in preparation for the PHasgals to be initiated during the 2006-
2007 influenza season, which began with the initiedf a Phase Il study with the i.m. formulationJanuary 2007.

Intramuscular peramivirWe completed a double-blind placebo-controlled BHbslinical trial with i.m. peramivir testing twdifferent
dose levels of peramivir (150 mg and 300 mg) vepasebo in adults with acute uncomplicated infzeer\While the trial did not demonstrate
statistically significant differences for its prinyaendpoint of time to alleviation of symptoms, threliminary analysis of the virologic data
indicated that peramivir demonstrated statisticaigynificant reductions in influenza virus sheddindpoth peramivir treatment groups
compared to placebo, with greater reductions irB0@mg dose. With this information and the add#igpharmacokinetic information we
have obtained subsequent to the trial, we initiat€&hase Il placebo-controlled trial of 600 mg ipacamivir for the treatment of seasonal
influenza. In May 2009, we announced preliminasutes from the Phase Il study of i.m. peramivir loe treatment of seasonal influenza.
This Phase Il study was a randomized, double-bfitatebo-controlled trial conducted in influenzasms in the Southern Hemisphere
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(Australia, New Zealand and South Africa) in 2008 she Northern Hemisphere (United States) in 200809. While the study
demonstrated a numerical trend in its primary eirdpaf improvement in the median time to TTAS irbgcts with confirmed, acute,
uncomplicated influenza infection versus placehe,difference between the two study groups wastagistically significant. We are not
planning additional development of i.m. peramitithas time.

Intravenous peramiviin July 2007, we announced the initiation of a Rhaslinical trial of i.v. peramivir to comparedetefficacy and
safety of i.v. peramivir to orally administered tamivir in patients who require hospitalizationedio acute influenza. This trial was initiated
in the Southern Hemisphere and continued in theldan Hemisphere. On October 27, 2008 the Compangumnced results of this
exploratory Phase Il trial. The study comparedeafiieacy and safety of five days of therapy witther 200 mg i.v. peramivir per day, 400
i.v. peramivir per day or 75 mg oral oseltamiviideva day, in patients who required hospitalizatielated to influenza. The results were
presented at the XI International Symposium on Raspy Viral Infections in Bangkok, Thailand in lary 2009.

The Phase Il trial compared the efficacy aaféty of five days of therapy with either 200 mg peramivir per day, 400 mg i.v. peramivir
per day or 75 mg oral oseltamivir twice a day feefdays, in subjects who required hospitalizatielated to influenza. The primary objective
of the study was to evaluate a novel composite @ntltime to clinical stability, which is compridef normalization of temperature, oxygen
saturation, respiratory rate, systolic blood pressund heart rate. Secondary objectives of theyshaluded evaluation of viral shedding,
mortality, clinical relapse and time to resumptafrusual activities. As reported in October 200&ré were no statistically significant
differences in any of the efficacy endpoints betwtee three treatment arms, and peramivir was géipesiafe and weltolerated at those do
levels. Evaluation of time to clinical stabilithe primary endpoint, showed a median of 23.7 hfmrrperamivir 200mg, 37.0 hours for
peramivir 400 mg and 28.1 hours for oseltamivir.8®6). This exploratory endpoint was driven by heton of fever. Viral shedding (time
weighted change from baseline in viral titer) waduced by a median of -2.0 logs for peramivir 2008dL logs for peramivir 400mg, and -
1.9 logs for oseltamivir (p=.908). There was no tality in the primary efficacy population, and teevere no clinical relapses. Patients were
discharged from the hospital after a median ofdés for peramivir 200 mg, 3,8 days for peramidf4ng, and 4.0 days for oseltamivir
(p=0.994). The median number of days requireddsumption of usual activities was 8.8 days for péva 200 mg, 9.0 days for peramivir
400 mg, and 13.7 days for oseltamivir (p=0.276).

In September 2009 we announced the initiatfamvo Phase Il clinical trials of i.v. peramivior the treatment of hospitalized patients \
serious influenza. The combined enrollment targettiese studies is approximately 700 patients.réximately 300 study locations are
targeted to participate in these studies globalhese studies are intended to support U.S. regylatgproval of peramivir as a treatment for
influenza.

One Phase Il study is a multicenter, randeahizilouble-blind, controlled study to evaluatedffecacy and safety of i.v. peramivir
administered once-daily for five days in additiorstandard of care, compared to standard of careeain adults and adolescents who are
hospitalized due to influenza. The other Phasstlitly is an open-label, randomized study of thearal activity, safety and tolerability of
i.v. peramivir 600 mg administered once-daily conegawith split doses twice-daily for five days idut and adolescent hospitalized subjects
with confirmed or suspected influenza infection.

Shionogi previously completed a Phase |l stofdyv. peramivir administered via a single dostision in the outpatient setting for
treatment of seasonal influenza. Shionogi presethiedata at the 2008 ICAAC / IDSA annual meetimyMashington, D.C.

In July 2009, Shionogi announced positive ltesn two Phase 11l clinical trials of i.v. perawm. The studies were sponsored by Shionogi
and conducted in Japan, Taiwan and South Koreagitiie 2008-2009 influenza season. Shionogi anérG@zoss Corporation (“Green
Cross”), the license holder of peramivir in Koraaguant to a June 2006 license agreement withouspieducted the portion of the studies in
Korea. Doses of i.v. peramivir of 300 mg and 60Q administered in single and multiple doses wetmébto be generally safe and well-
tolerated in these trials. A total of 1,099 patsewere enrolled at 146 centers in Japan, Korealaivdan. Both the 300 mg and 600 mg single
dose peramivir groups demonstrated non-inferiddtythe primary endpoint, TTAS, compared to theltasaivir group. The medians for
TTAS for the peramivir 300 mg, peramivir 600 mg arseltamivir groups were 78.0 hrs, 81.0 hrs an8 8is, respectively. Additionally,
Shionogi conducted a double-blind, multi-centergehidl study of i.v. peramivir with dosing over ntiple days. The study enrolled 42
influenza patients at high-risk
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of serious complications due to one or more quialifyconditions: diagnosis with poorly controllecddetes mellitus, a chronic respiratory
disease requiring pharmacotherapy, or currentriveat with any immunosuppressive drug. Peramivir adisinistered at 300 mg or 600 mg
per day, and the duration was adjusted (up todaes) on a case-by-case basis, depending on teafmtemperature and clinical condition.
In this study, the median time to alleviation ofrggtoms in all 37 evaluable patients treated withexzi300 mg or 600 mg peramivir daily was
68.6 hours. Shionogi presented the data at the RDAAC / IDSA annual meeting in San Francisco, @ahia. Shionogi filed an NDA in
Japan for i.v. peramivir in 2009.

Shionogi has commercially launched peraminaler the commercial name RAPIACTA in Japan. Shiohag received the indications of
single dose administration of 300 mg i.v. peramigiradult uncomplicated seasonal influenza infettas well as single and multiple dose
administration of 600 mg i.v. peramivir for the ieats at high-risk for complications associatedwiiifluenza. Shionogi is authorized to
supply peramivir as either a 300 mg i.v. bag 0b@ thg vial for i.v. drip infusion. Shionogi has cpl@ted clinical studies for pediatric
patients and has filed an additional applicatianpiediatric use of RAPIACTA in Japan.

SummaryQOur plan is to continue developing i.v. peramiliraddition to the progress made clinically, we dalso made significant
progress in the manufacturing and toxicology watuired to advance the program toward product ajabro

Congress approved an appropriation of $3|Bbifor 2006 to support the development of varicaantermeasures for a flu pandemic.
appropriation included funding for the developmeitew antiviral agents. In January 2007, we annedrthat HHS had awarded us a
$102.6 million, four-year contract for the advandedelopment of peramivir for U.S. licensure. Ip&enber 2009, we received an award of
$77.2 million toward completion of the Phase llvdlpment of i.v. peramivir pursuant to a contmacdification with HHS. This additional
funding brings the total award from HHS for the elepment of peramivir to $179.9 million and extetius contract term by 12 months to
five years. Any funding above the $179.9 millionyntee our responsibility.

Also in September 2009, we received an RFR #HS for the supply of i.v. peramivir for the ttegent of critically ill influenza patients
under an EUA. On November 4, 2009 the Company vedean initial order for 10,000 courses of i.v.gmivir (600 mg once-daily for five
days) for an aggregate purchase price of $22.%5omi#ind shipped the entire order from existingperamivir inventory that same day. HHS
may place additional orders for peramivir up totaltof 40,000 courses at the same unit price @$irt order. In addition to the U.S.
Government order that came from the request fqpgsal (“RFP”) negotiations, we have donated anmusfeared to HHS an initial supply
sufficient for 1,200 courses of i.v. peramivir 6@ once-daily for five days. This transfer was madder the development contract with
HHS and is separate from the RFP process.

In October 2009, the FDA, in response to aiestifrom the U.S. Centers for Disease ControlRmegention, issued an EUA for i.v.
peramivir in certain adult and pediatric patientsler specific conditions with confirmed or suspd@609 H1N1linfluenza infection who are
admitted to a hospital.

In addition to the contract with HHS, we hagtablished collaborative relationships with Shigiremd Green Cross for the development
and commercialization in Japan and Taiwan by Shgband in Korea by Green Cross. The Shionogi ages¢nvas established in
February 2007, which resulted in an upfront payneéi$tl4 million and future clinical event milestopayments of up to $21 million. The
Shionogi agreement was amended in 2008 to expanekttitory in the agreement to include Taiwan tngdrovide rights for Shionogi to
perform its Phase Il clinical trial in Hong Konghionogi recently announced positive results in Rhase 11l studies of i.v. peramivir
administered via a single dose and multiple dogeiions in the outpatient setting for treatmens@fsonal influenza during the 2008-2009
influenza season. This trial met its primary endpof improvement in the median time to alleviatafrsymptoms in subjects with confirmed,
acute, uncomplicated influenza infection, compaceglacebo alone.

In addition to Shionogi and Green Cross, weetentered into several agreements with companitssde the U.S. to represent us and
peramivir primarily for stockpiling opportunitieBor example, on December 23, 2009, we enterechimtagreement with Merck Serono, S.
through its affiliate, Ares Trading S.A., to exditey represent us and peramivir for stockpilingpogunities in Europe, Russia, Canada and
Singapore. Also in December 2009, we entered intagaeement with Hikma Pharmaceuticals, PLC toasgmt us and peramivir for
stockpiling
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opportunities in the Middle East and North Afriexcluding Israel. In January 2010 we entered intagreement with moksha8
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. to exclusively representnaspgeramivir for influenza stockpiling opportungian Brazil and Mexico.

In addition, we have a binding letter of irtterith NT Pharma, Co., Ltd. to exclusively represes and peramivir for influenza stockpiling
opportunities in China. We also have a bindingeletff intent with Neopharm Scientific, Ltd. to eusively represent us and peramivir for
influenza stockpiling opportunities in Israel.

Structure-Based Drug Design

Structure-based drug design is a drug disgoapproach by which we design synthetic compouraia fletailed structural knowledge of
the active sites of enzyme targets associatedpaitticular diseases. Enzymes are proteins thatsacatalysts for many vital biological
reactions. Our goal generally is to design a comgdhat will fit in the active site of an enzymabdtactive site of an enzyme is the area into
which a chemical or biological molecule fits totiaie a biochemical reaction) and thereby interfeita the progression of disease.

Our structure-based drug design involves gptieation of both traditional biology and medicithemistry and an array of advanced
technologies. We use X-ray crystallography, compmnedeling of molecular structures and advancednistey techniques to focus on the
three-dimensional molecular structure and actitechiaracteristics of the enzymes that controutalilbiology.

We believe that structure-based drug desigmiglogies are superior to drug screening techsigdg identifying the target enzyme in
advance and by discovering the chemical and maestilucture of the enzyme, we believe it is pdedit design a better drug to interact
with the enzyme. In addition, the structural ddttamed by X-ray crystallographic analysis allovd#idnal analysis and compound
modification at each stage of the biological evaara This capability makes structure-based drugjgiea powerful tool for efficient
development of drugs that are highly specific fartigular enzyme target sites.

Research and Development

We initiated our research and developmentnamgn 1986, with drug synthesis beginning in 1982 have assembled a scientific
research staff with expertise in a broad base wfacked research technologies including proteinHaotstry, X-ray crystallography,
chemistry and pharmacology. Our research facilitiekide protein biochemistry and organic synth&sieratories, testing facilities, X-ray
crystallography, computer and graphics equipmedtfagilities to make drug candidates on a smalkesita early stage clinical trials.
Beginning in June 2006, we began building an irgkcfinical development and regulatory team, basddiorth Carolina to manage the
development strategy for our later stage proditsing the years ended December 31, 2009, 20082@@d, our research and development
expenses were $72.3 million, $73.3 million, and.$%illion, respectively.

Collaboration and In-License Relationships

We seek to enter into collaborations with laggharmaceutical and biotechnology companies wieefeel it is advantageous to leverage
these companies’ resources to develop and comrtizectaur drug candidates on a global basis. Thanal us to remain focused on our
strength of early stage discovery and developmediuy candidates. To date, we have entered intontajor collaborations for the
development and commercialization of our lead PiNfbitors and two collaborations for the developtramd commercialization of perami
in certain countries outside the U.S. In additionJanuary 2007, we announced that HHS had awarsled$102.6 million, four-year contract
for the advanced development of peramivir for Uicgnsure. The total award under this contracow $179.9 million, and the term has been
extended to five years.

Another important component of our strategipiaugment our internal discovery programs thratighselective in-licensing of potential
drug development targets or early stage compowrdiése specific targets. For example, our PNWituns were in-licensed from AECOM
and IRL in June 2000.
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Corporate Alliances

Mundipharma. In February 2006, we entered into an exclusiegalty bearing right and license agreement with Mpharma for the
development and commercialization of our lead PiNfibitor, forodesine, for use in oncology. Undex tarms of the agreement,
Mundipharma obtained rights to forodesine in marletross Europe, Asia, and Australasia in exchéorge$10.0 million up-front payment.
In addition, Mundipharma contributed $10.0 milliohthe documented out of pocket development costsried by us in respect of the cur
and planned trials as of the effective date ofatpeeement and Mundipharma will conduct additiotiaiaal trials at their own cost up to a
maximum of $15.0 million. The license provides parssibility of future event payments totaling $Xbaillion for achieving specified
development, regulatory and commercial events(itiog certain sales level amounts following a paitdlaunch) for certain indications. In
addition, the agreement provides that we will reeedyalties (ranging from single digits to midrisgbased on a percentage of net product
sales, which varies depending upon when certaiigations receive NDA approval in a major marketrdoyand can vary by country
depending on the patent coverage or sales of geo@mpounds in a particular country. Generallypayments under the agreement are
nonrefundable and non-creditable, but they areestihp audit. We licensed forodesine and other PiBitors from AECOM and IRL and
will owe sublicense payments to these third padieshe upfront payment, event payments, and riegaleceived by us from Mundipharma.

For five years, Mundipharma will have a riglifirst negotiation on existing backup PNP inhdoi& we develop through Phase Ilb in
oncology, but any new PNP inhibitors will be exerfipim this agreement and we will retain all rigldssuch compounds. We retained the
rights to forodesine in the U.S. and Mundipharmealikgated by the terms of the agreement to usemwantially reasonable efforts to develop
the licensed product in the territory specifiedthgy agreement. The agreement will continue forcimamercial life of the licensed products,
but may be terminated by either party followinguetured material breach by the other party or éneent the prexisting third party licen:
with AECOM and IRL expires. It may be terminatedMyndipharma upon 60 days written notice withouisEaor under certain other
conditions as specified in the agreement andgtittsi data, materials, products and other infomnatiould be transferred back to us at no
cost. In the event we terminate the agreement &ieral default or insolvency, we could have to payndipharma 50% of the costs of any
independent data owned by Mundipharma in accordaitbethe terms of the agreement.

Shionogi.ln March 2007, we entered into an exclusive liceaggeement with Shionogi to develop and commersgdlie Company’s lead
influenza neuraminidase inhibitor, peramivir, ipda for the treatment of seasonal and potentiddiythreatening human influenza. Under
terms of the agreement, Shionogi obtained righisjeztable formulations of peramivir in Japan ktleange for a $14 million up-front
payment. The license provides for potential futmitestone event payments (up to $21 million) anchewrcial event milestone payments
to $95 million) in addition to double digit (betwe&0 and 20% range) royalty payments on produessafl peramivir. In December 2007, the
Company received a $7 million milestone paymennfi®hionogi for their initiation of a Phase Il ckial trial with i.v. peramivir. Generally,
all payments under the agreement are nonrefundalolénon-creditable, but they are subject to a&ditonogi will be responsible for all
development, regulatory and marketing costs intdaple term of the agreement is from February P872until terminated by either party in
accordance with the license agreement. Either paaty terminate in the event of an uncured breakion®gi has the right of without cause
termination. In the event of termination all licerand rights granted to Shionogi shall terminatk srall revert back to the Company. The
Company developed peramivir under a license fronBlaad will owe sublicense payments to them on fhfeomt payment and any future
event payments and/or royalties received by the gamy from Shionogi. In October 2008, we and Shidmogended the license agreemer
expand the territory covered by the agreementdindte Taiwan and to provide rights for Shionogp&sform a Phase 11l Clinical Trial in
Hong Kong. Shionogi announced positive resultsvia Phase 11l studies in July 2009 and received etary and manufacturing approval for
i.v. peramivir in Japan in January 2010. This manigeapproval triggered a third and final regulstarilestone payment to us of $7.0 million
in January 2010.

Green Crossln June 2006, we entered into an agreement witleiG@ross to develop and commercialize peramiviédrea. Under the
terms of the agreement, Green Cross will be resplenfor all development, regulatory, and commdizadion costs in Korea. We received a
one-time license fee of $250,000. Total future sid@e payments would be equally modest. The licatsgeprovides that we will share in
profits resulting from the sale of peramivir in kar; including the sale of peramivir to the Koreamarnment for stockpiling purposes.
Furthermore, Green Cross will pay us a premium dasegsost to supply peramivir for development ang future marketing of peramivir
products in Korea. Both parties have the righetoinate in the event of an uncured
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material breach. In the event of termination ajhts, data, materials, products and other infolwnatiould be transferred to us. Green Cross
filed a New Drug Application for i.v. peramivir fBouth Korea in Jaunary 2010.

Roche. In November 2005, we entered into an exclusisenise with Roche for the development and commeézatain of our second
generation PNP inhibitor, BCX-4208, for the prewemtof acute rejection in transplantation and fa treatment of autoimmune diseases.
Under the terms of the agreement, Roche obtaineliiwide rights to BCX-4208 in exchange for an uprAirpayment of $30 million, which
included a payment as reimbursement for a limitgaply of material during the first 24 months of t@laboration. The license also provided
for future milestone event payments for achievipgcified development, regulatory and commerciaéstdnes (including sales level
milestones following a product’s launch) for centaidications.

In May 2008 the Company received notice thathR was exercising the “no cause” terminationtrigider the license agreement for
BCX-4208. Upon termination during the fourth quarte2008, the Company recognized the remaining defemeenue and deferred expe
related to the license agreement, which were $2@I®n and $8.2 million, respectively.

Academic Alliances

Albert Einstein College of Medicine of Yeshiva @nsity and Industrial Research, Ltd, New ZealanECOM” and “IRL” respectively)
In June 2000, we licensed a series of potent itdribiof PNP from AECOM and IRL. The lead drug caladiés from this collaboration are
forodesine and BCX-4208. We have obtained worldvexidusive rights to develop and ultimately distitdothese compounds or any other
drug candidates that might arise from researcthese inhibitors. We have the option to expand tgeedment to include other inventions in
the field made by the investigators or employeeAEEEOM and IRL. We have agreed to use commerciatgonable efforts to develop these
drugs. In addition, we have agreed to pay certdiestone payments for each licensed product (whadlge in the aggregate from $1.4 mill
to almost $4 million per indication) for future ddepment of these inhibitors, single digit royadten net sales of any resulting product made
by us, and to share approximately one quartertaféypayments received from other third-party pengnif any. In addition, we have agreed
to pay annual license fees that can range from $0800o $500,000 depending on stage of developofgmibducts that are non-refundable,
but are creditable against actual royalties andrgthyments due to AECOM and IRL. This agreement beaterminated by us at any time by
giving 60 days advance notice or in the event afenie uncured breach by AECOM and/or IRL.

The University of Alabama at Birmingham (“UAB")Ne have had a close relationship with UAB singeformation. Our former
Chairman, Dr. Charles E. Bugg, was the previousd@ar of the UAB Center for Macromolecular Crysigiaphy, and our former Chief
Operating Officer, Dr. J. Claude Bennett, was tirvener President of UAB, the former Chairman of Brepartment of Medicine at UAB anc
former Chairman of the Department of MicrobiolodyJs#\B. Several of our early programs originatedJatB.

We currently have agreements with UAB forumfhza neuraminidase and complement inhibitors. Utheeterms of these agreements,
UAB performed specific research for us in returnrissearch payments and license fees. UAB hasagtarst certain rights to any discoveries
in these areas resulting from research developediA®y or jointly developed with us. We have agreegay single digit royalties on sales of
any resulting product and to share in future paysiegceived from other third-party partners. Wedheompleted the research under both the
complement and influenza agreements. These twengmats have initial 25-year terms, are automagicatiewable for five-year terms
throughout the life of the last patent and are teafle by us upon three months notice and by UA8eurcertain circumstances. Upon
termination each party shall cease using the qthdy’s proprietary and confidential informationdamaterials, the parties shall jointly own
joint inventions and UAB shall resume full ownegsloff all UAB licensed products. There is curremttyactivity between us and UAB
these agreements, but when the Company licensetettinology, such as in the case of the Shioma)iGreen Cross agreements, or
commercialize products related to these prograresyill owe sublicense fees or royalties on amowdseceive.

Emory University (“Emory”). In June 2000, we licensed intellectual propertynffemory related to the HCV polymerase target assec
with hepatitis C viral infections. Under the origlrierms of the agreement, the research investigétam Emory provided us with materials
and technical insight into the target. We have egjte pay Emory single digit royalties on saleamy resulting product and to share in future
payments received from other third party partnéemny. We can terminate this agreement at any bsngiving 90 days advance notice. Ug
termination, we would cease using the licensedrteiciyy.
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Government Contracts

In January 2007, we announced that HHS haddesaus a $102.6 million, four-year contract fa dvanced development of peramivir.
In September 2009, we received an award of $77lBmtoward completion of the Phase Ill developitnehi.v. peramivir pursuant to a
recent contract modification with HHS. This addiiéd funding brings the total award from HHS for thevelopment of peramivir to
$179.9 million and extends the contract term byriihths to five years. Any funding above the $178iilon may be our responsibility.

This contract is a milestone-driven, cost-gined-fee contract. HHS will make periodic asseestn of our progress, and the continuation
of the contract is based on our performance, theltness and quality of deliverables, and othetoi@c The government has rights under
certain contract clauses to terminate this contioe contract is terminable by the governmenngttame for breach or without cause.

On November 4, 2009, we received an initidieorfrom HHS under the RFP for 10,000 coursesvofperamivir and shipped the entire
order from existing i.v. peramivir inventory on teame day. Under the Indefinite Delivery Indefir@aantity contract issued to us on
November 3, 2009, HHS may place additional ordargpéramivir up to a total of 40,000 courses attme unit price as the first order.
addition to the U.S. Government order that cammftioe RFP, we have donated and transferred to HHSitéal supply sufficient for 1,200
courses of i.v. peramivir. This transfer was madeeu the development contract with HHS and is sgpdrom the RFP process.

HHS has indicated that antiviral drugs arénaportant element of their pandemic influenza pregaess efforts and that their strategy
includes not only stockpiling of existing antividdugs but also seeking out new antiviral medicetito further broaden their capabilities to
treat and prevent all forms of influenza. Peramiwiin the same class of neuraminidase inhibitersseltamivir (Tamiflu) and zanamivir
(Relenza). We are committed to working with HHS thoe development of these parenteral formulatidrsecamivir which could be
especially useful in hospital settings or pandesitigations due to the ability to achieve high Ievefl the drug rapidly throughout the body.

Patents and Proprietary Information

Our success will depend in part on our abtlitpbtain and enforce patent protection for owdprcts, methods, processes and other
proprietary technologies, preserve our trade sgcaeid operate without infringing on the proprigtaghts of other parties, both in the United
States and in other countries. We own or havegightertain proprietary information, proprietagghnology, issued and allowed patents and
patent applications which relate to compounds eedarveloping. We actively seek, when appropriataegtion for our products, proprietary
technology and proprietary information by meant/@&. and foreign patents, trademarks and contrbattengements. In addition, we rely
upon trade secrets and contractual arrangemeptstiect certain of our proprietary information, prietary technology and products.

The patent positions of companies like ouesgimerally uncertain and involve complex legal fandual questions. Our ability to maintain
and solidify our proprietary position for our techogy will depend on our success in obtaining @ffecpatent claims and enforcing those
claims once granted. We do not know whether arguofpatent applications or those patent applicattbat we license will result in the
issuance of any patents. Our issued patents asd that may issue in the future, or those licetsers, may be challenged, invalidated,
rendered unenforceable or circumvented, which cburlid our ability to stop competitors from markegi related products or the length of
term of patent protection that we may have formnaducts. In addition, the rights granted underiaeyed patents may not provide us with
competitive advantages against competitors withlairmompounds or technology. Furthermore, our cetibprs may independently develop
similar technologies or duplicate any technologyadeped by us in a manner that does not infringepatents or other intellectual property.
Because of the extensive time required for devetpintesting and regulatory review of a potentialdoict, it is possible that, before any of
our drug candidates or those developed by our @aritan be commercialized, any related patent mygiyeeor remain in force for only a
short period following commercialization, thereleglucing any advantage of the patent.

As of February 28, 2010, we have been iss@ad.$. patents that expire between 2015 and 202%het relate to our PNP, serine prote
and neuraminidase inhibitor compounds. We havegsied six different class of
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compounds representing new composition of mattemps from AECOM and IRL for our PNP inhibitorsupladditional manufacturing
patents related to these PNP inhibitors and orenp&iom Emory related to hepatitis C. Additionallye have 20 PCT or U.S. patent
applications pending related to PNP, neuraminid@b& or DNA polymerase, Janus Kinase and serintepse inhibitors. Our pending
applications may not result in issued patents,andgatents may not provide us with sufficient potibn against competitive products or
otherwise be commercially viable.

Our success is also dependent upon the dkiltsyledge and experience of our scientific antiézal personnel, none of which is
patentable. To help protect our rights, we reqgalfemployees, consultants, advisors and partoegster into confidentiality agreements,
which prohibit the disclosure of confidential infieition to anyone outside of our company and, whessible, requires disclosure and
assignment to us of their ideas, developmentspdés@es and inventions. These agreements may nwidgradequate protection for our trade
secrets, know-how or other proprietary informatiothe event of any unauthorized use or disclosutée lawful development by others of
such information.

Marketing and Sales

We may decide to market, distribute and seltipcts within specialty markets for use in treattraf various diseases. Our general stra
is to maximize sustainable value by moving our dragdidate portfolio through clinical developmemrgistration and ultimately to the
market. We believe that this is best achieved tgiming full product rights to certain drug candigwithin specialty markets, while relying
on collaborative arrangements with third partiesdizig candidates within larger markets or outsidearea of expertise. However, in gene
we lack experience in marketing, distributing asltlisg pharmaceutical products. Our strategy inekitklying on partners, licensees or
arrangements with others to provide for the mankgtilistribution and sales of products we may dgvélVe may not be able to establish and
maintain acceptable commercial arrangements wittn@es, licensees or others to perform such aiavit

Competition

The pharmaceutical and biotechnology industie intensely competitive. Many companies, indgdbiotechnology, chemical and
pharmaceutical companies, are actively engagedtivitees similar to ours, including research amyelopment of drugs for the treatment of
cancer, infectious, autoimmune, and inflammatospdiers. Many of these companies have substangiedter financial and other resources,
larger research and development staffs, and maemgixe marketing and manufacturing organizatibas twe do. In addition, some of them
have considerable experience in preclinical testiigical trials and other regulatory approval ggdures. There are also academic
institutions, governmental agencies and other rebaarganizations that are conducting researcheasain which we are working. They may
also market commercial products, either on thein owthrough collaborative efforts.

We expect to encounter significant competifimmany of the pharmaceutical products we pladeeelop. Companies that complete
clinical trials, obtain required regulatory apprtsvand commence commercial sales of their prochefisre their competitors may achieve a
significant competitive advantage. Such is the egitfe Eisai's Targretin for CTCL and the current neuraminidaséitors marketed by GS
and Roche for influenza. In addition, several phareutical and biotechnology firms, including mgarmaceutical companies, have
announced efforts in the field of structure-basedydiesign and in the therapeutic areas of caifectious disease, autoimmune, and
inflammatory disorders, as well as other therapeattas where we are focusing our drug discovéoytef

In order to compete successfully, we must bgvproprietary positions in patented drugs fordipeutic markets that have not been
satisfactorily addressed by conventional resedreltegjies and, in the process, expand our expéntisteucture-based drug design. Our
products, even if successfully tested and developeg not be adopted by physicians over other misdand may not offer economically
feasible alternatives to other therapies.

Government Regulation

The FDA regulates the pharmaceutical and biotelogy industries in the U.S., and our drug cdatdis are subject to extensive and
rigorous domestic government regulations priordmmercialization. The FDA regulates, among otherg$, the development, testing,
manufacture, safety, efficacy, record-keeping, liagestorage,

19




Table of Contents

approval, advertising, promotion, sale and distidsuof pharmaceutical products. In foreign cowegriour products are also subject to
extensive regulation by foreign governments. Thggseernment regulations will be a significant fadtothe production and marketing of any
pharmaceutical products that we develop. Failuetoply with applicable FDA and other regulatorgugements at any stage during the
regulatory process may subject us to sanctionkjding:

* delays;

e warning letters

» fines;

e product recalls or seizure

e injunctions;

e penalties

» refusal of the FDA to review pending market appt@gplications or supplements to approval applicei
» total or partial suspension of productic

e civil penalties;

« withdrawals of previously approved marketing apgtiiens; anc
e criminal prosecutions

The regulatory review and approval processrigthy, expensive and uncertain. Before obtainggulatory approvals for the commercial
sale of any products, we or our partners must detnate that our product candidates are safe ardtiafé for use in humans. The approval
process takes many years, substantial expenseberiagurred and significant time may be devoteditacal development.

Before testing potential candidates in humamscarry out laboratory and animal studies tomeitge safety and biological activity. After
completing preclinical trials, we must file an IND¢cluding a proposal to begin clinical trials, withe FDA. We have filed thirteen INDs to
date and plan to file, or rely on future partnergile, additional INDs in the future as our poiehtirug candidates advance to that stage of
development. Thirty days after filing an IND, a Bea human clinical trial can start, unless the Riddces a hold on the study.

Our Phase | trials are designed to determafetysin a small group of patients or healthy vodans. We also assess tolerances and the
metabolic and pharmacologic actions of our drugladates at different doses. After we complete tiitgal trials, we conduct Phase Il trials
assess safety and efficacy and establish the dpdiosa in patients. If Phase Il trials are sucagdsafe or our partners conduct Phase lll trials
to verify the results in a larger patient populatiBhase 11l trials are required for FDA approwahtarket a drug. A Phase Il trial may require
hundreds or even thousands of patients and is tis expensive to conduct. The goal in Phase tb mollect enough safety and efficacy data
to obtain FDA approval of a drug for treatment gfaaticular disease. For some clinical indicatithveg are especially serious and for which
there are no effective treatments, such as refnactncers, conditional approval can be obtainddving Phase Il trials.

Initiation and completion of the clinical trjghases are dependent on several factors incluldings that are beyond our control. For
example, the clinical trials cannot begin at aipaldr site until that site receives approval frigninstitutional Review Board (“IRB”), which
reviews the protocol and related documents. Thosgss can take from several weeks to several mdnthsldition, clinical trials are
dependent on patient enrollment, but the rate &thwbatients enroll in the study depends on:

» willingness of investigators to participate in acst;

» ability of clinical sites to obtain approval fromnetr IRB;
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« the availability of the required number of eligilsigbjects to be enrolled in a given tri

« the availability of existing or other experimendaligs for the disease we intend to tr

» the willingness of patients to participate; ¢

» the patients meeting the eligibility criter

Delays in planned patient enrollment may reisuincreased expense and longer developmentitieel

After completion of the clinical trials of aquluct, we or our partners must submit a NDA toRB&\ for marketing approval before
commercialization of the product. The FDA may n&rg approval on a timely basis, if at all. The F[2& a result of the Food and Drug
Administration Modernization Act of 1997, has sixnths to review and act upon license applicationgfiority therapeutics that are for life-
threatening or unmet medical needs. Standard review take between one and two years, and cana@eionger if significant questions
arise during the review process. The FDA may wikdany required approvals, once obtained.

In addition to clinical development regulatipmve and our contract manufacturers and partness comply with the applicable FDA
current good manufacturing practice (‘GMP”) regidas. GMP regulations include requirements relatimguality control and quality
assurance as well as the corresponding mainterdimeeords and documentation. Manufacturing faeglitare subject to inspection by the
FDA. Such facilities must be approved before we usethem in commercial manufacturing of our péséproducts. We or our contract
manufacturers may not be able to comply with thaiegble GMP requirements and other FDA regulatequirements. If we or our contract
manufacturers fail to comply, our business, finahcondition and results of operations will be mially adversely affected.

Human Resources

As of February 28, 2010, we had 79 employekahom 56 were engaged in research and developameh?3 were in general and
administrative functions. Our research and devebmmntaff, 23 of whom hold Ph.D. or M.D. degreeséndiversified experience in
biochemistry, pharmacology, X-ray crystallograpsynthetic organic chemistry, computational chemjsind medicinal chemistry, clinical
development and regulatory affairs. We considemelations with our employees to be satisfactory.

Financial Information

For information related to our revenues, pisofiiet loss and total assets, in addition to dihancial information, please refer to the
Financial Statement and Notes to Financial Statésremtained in this Annual Report.
Available Information

We have available a website on the Internat.a@dress is www.biocryst.com. We make availdbée, of charge, at our website our
Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports omi-10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and amendsnterthose reports filed or
furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) offkehange Act as soon as reasonably practicaldewaé electronically file such material
with, or furnish it to, the SEC. We also make aafalié at our website copies of our audit committesrter, compensation committee charter,
corporate governance and nominating committee ehartd our code of business conduct, which apfied our employees as well as the
members of our Board of Directors. Any amendmenbtavaiver from, our code of business conduct béllposted on our website.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

An investment in our stock involves risks. You Ehoonsider carefully the following uncertaintiesdarisks, which may adversely affect
our business, financial condition or results of mgi@ns, along with all of the other
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information included in our other filings with tigecurities and Exchange Commission, before dectdibgy our common stock. Additional
risks and uncertainties not currently known to ushat we currently deem to be immaterial may adwersely affect our business, financial
condition or results of operations.

Risks Relating to Our Business
We have incurred substantial losses since our inception in 1986, expect to continue to incur such losses, and may never be profitable.

Since our inception in 1986, we have not h@efitable. We expect to incur additional lossestfe foreseeable future, and our losses
could increase as our research and developmemtseffmgress. To become profitable, we must subdgssanufacture and develop drug
product candidates, receive regulatory approval sarccessfully commercialize or enter into profitkadgreements with other parties. It could
be several years, if ever, before we receive rimgftom any current or future license agreements\enues directly from product sales.

Because of the numerous risks and uncertaiatsociated with developing our product candidatelstheir potential for
commercialization, we are unable to predict thewrixof any future losses. Even if we do achievditatality, we may not be able to sustair
increase profitability on a quarterly or annualibali we are unable to achieve and sustain pioifity, the market value of our common stock
will likely decline.

Our success depends upon our ability to advance our products through the various stages of development, especially through the clinical
trial process.

To receive the regulatory approvals necesairthe sale of our product candidates, we or @utngrs must demonstrate through
preclinical studies and clinical trials that eacbduct candidate is safe and effective. The clirtital process is complex and uncertain.
Because of the cost and duration of clinical trimle may decide to discontinue development of pcodandidates that are unlikely to show
good results in the trials, unlikely to help advascproduct to the point of a meaningful collabiorator unlikely to have a reasonable
commercial potential. We may suffer significantosetks in pivotal clinical trials, even after earlgdinical trials show promising results.
Clinical trials may not be adequately designedxaceted, which could affect the potential outcomé analysis of study results. Any of our
product candidates may produce undesirable sigetsfin humans. These side effects could causeneguolatory authorities to interrupt,
delay or halt clinical trials of a product candielathese side effects could also result in the BDforeign regulatory authorities refusing to
approve the product candidate for any targetectaiins. We, our partners, the FDA or foreign ratprly authorities may suspend or
terminate clinical trials at any time if we or thieglieve the trial participants face unacceptaklgth risks. Clinical trials may fail to
demonstrate that our product candidates are safffamtive and have acceptable commercial viability

Our ability to successfully complete clini¢als is dependent upon many factors, includingrim limited to:
e our ability to find suitable clinical sites and &stigators to enroll patient

« the availability of and willingness of patientsgarticipate in our clinical trials

» difficulty in maintaining contact with patients ppovide complete data after treatme

» our product candidates may not prove to be eithfer ar effective

» clinical protocols or study procedures may not teqaately designed or followed by the investigat

« manufacturing or quality control problems couldeaffthe supply of drug product for our trials; ¢

« delays or changes in requirements by governmegtaiaes

Clinical trials are lengthy and expensive. Weur partners incur substantial expense for,d@wbte significant time to, preclinical testing
and clinical trials, yet cannot be certain thattiésts and trials will ever result in the commdrsae of a product. For example, clinical trials
require adequate supplies of drug and sufficietiepa
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enrollment. Delays in patient enroliment can resulbhcreased costs and longer development timesn E we or our partners successfully
complete clinical trials for our product candidates or our partners might not file the requiregulatory submissions in a timely manner |
may not receive regulatory approval for the procactdidate.

Our clinical trials may not adequately show that our drugs are safe or effective.

Progression of our drug products through thrécal development process is dependent uponrdals indicating our drugs have adequate
safety profiles and show positive therapeutic affét the patients being treated by achieving pefinined endpoints according to the trial
protocols. Failure to achieve either of these coetuilt in delays in our trials or even require pleeformance of additional unplanned trials.
This could result in delays in the developmentwf groduct candidates and could result in significenexpected costs.

If we fail to obtain additional financing, we may be unable to complete the development and commercialization of our product candidates
or continue our research and development programs.

As our clinical programs continue to grow gadient enroliment increases, our costs will insee®ur current and planned clinical trials
plus the related development, manufacturing, régojeapproval process requirements, and additipeegonnel resources and testing reqt
for supporting the development of our product cdatis will consume significant capital resourcas. €xpenses, revenues and burn rate
could vary significantly depending on many factansjuding our ability to raise additional capitidie development progress of our
collaborative agreements for our product candidakesamount of funding we receive from HHS forgmeivir, the amount of funding or
assistance, if any, we receive from other governal@ygencies or other new partnerships with thadigs for the development of our product
candidates, the amount or profitability of any esd®r peramivir by any government agency or offeaty, the progress and results of our
current and proposed clinical trials for our mabtanced drug products, the progress made in thef@etaring of our lead products and the
progression of our other programs.

We expect that we will be required to raisditinal capital to complete the development anahime@rcialization of our current product
candidates and we may seek to raise capital atimeywe deem market conditions to be favorable.iaftal funding, whether through
additional sales of securities or collaborativethrer arrangements with corporate partners or fsther sources, including governmental
agencies, in general and from any HHS contractipaity, may not be available when needed or omteacceptable to us. The issuance of
preferred or common stock or convertible securitiggh terms and prices significantly more favomtilan those of the currently outstanding
common stock, could have the effect of dilutingadversely affecting the holdings or rights of oxiséng stockholders. In addition,
collaborative arrangements may require us to tearedrtain material rights to such corporate pastriesufficient funds may require us to
delay, scale-back or eliminate certain of our reteand development programs.

If HHS were to eliminate, reduce or delay funding from our contract, or dispute some of our incurred costs or other actions taken under
the contract, this would have a significant negative impact on our revenues, cash flows and the development of peramivir.

Our projections of revenues and incoming dhsis are substantially dependent upon HHS reimdouent for the costs related to our
peramivir program. If HHS were to eliminate, reducalelay the funding for this program or disallseme of our incurred costs, we would
have to obtain additional funding for developmeinthis drug candidate or significantly reduce apsthe development effort. Further, HHS
may challenge actions that we have taken or mag/ uakler our contract, which could negatively imgagatoperating results and cash flows.

In contracting with HHS, we are subject toieas U.S. government contract requirements, inclgdjeneral clauses for a cost-
reimbursement research and development contraathwaay limit our reimbursement or if we are founde in violation could result in
contract termination. U.S. government contractsclfy contain extraordinary provisions which wouldt typically be found in commercial
contracts. For instance, government contracts pemilateral modification by the government, intexfation of relevant regulations (i.e.,
federal acquisition regulation clauses), and thltyko terminate without cause. As such, we mayal a disadvantage as compared to other
commercial contracts. In addition, U.S. governnaamttracts are subject to audit and
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modification by the government at its sole discnetilf the government terminates its contract wighor its convenience or if we default by
failing to perform in accordance with the contrachedule and terms, significant negative impaatwncash flows and operations could
result.

Our contract with HHS has special contracting requirements, which create additional risks of reduction or loss of funding.

We have entered into a contract with HHS lfier advanced development of our neuraminidase bohjigeramivir. We also have
obligations with HHS under the Indefinite Delivdndefinite Quantity contract issued in November 200 contracting with HHS, we are
subject to various U.S. government contract requéngts, including general clauses for a cost-reisdgment research and development
contract. U.S. government contracts typically contafavorable termination provisions and are scitje audit and modification by the
government at its sole discretion, which subjesttouadditional risks. These risks include theighdf the U.S. government to unilaterally:

» terminate or reduce the scope of our contract;
« audit and object to our contr-related costs and fees, including allocated intlicests.

The U.S. government may terminate its consradth us either for its convenience or if we dédiféwy failing to perform in accordance with
the contract schedule and terms. Termination fawvenience provisions generally enable us to recomBrour costs incurred or committed,
and settlement expenses and profit on the work tetagbprior to termination. Termination for defaptbvisions does not permit these
recoveries.

As a U.S. government contractor, we are regutio comply with applicable laws, regulations atahdards relating to our accounting
practices and are subject to periodic audits avidwes. As part of any such audit or review, the \¢&/ernment may review the adequacy of,
and our compliance with, our internal control sgséeand policies, including those relating to ourcpasing, property, estimating,
compensation and management information systensedan the results of its audits, the U.S. govenmimmy adjust our contract-related
costs and fees, including allocated indirect cdastaddition, if an audit or review uncovers anynwoper or illegal activity, we may be subject
to civil and criminal penalties and administratsanctions, including termination of our contraésfeiture of profits, suspension of
payments, fines and suspension or prohibition fdmimg business with the U.S. government. We colsd suffer serious harm to our
reputation if allegations of impropriety were madginst us. In addition, under U.S. governmenthmsing regulations, some of our costs
may not be reimbursable or allowed under our cetdrdurther, as a U.S. government contractor, reeabject to an increased risk of
investigations, criminal prosecution, civil frawdhistleblower lawsuits and other legal actions kaoilities as compared to private sector
commercial companies.

If we fail to successfully commercialize or establish collaborative relationships to commercialize certain of our drug product candidates or
if any partner terminates or fails to perform its obligations under agreementswith us, potential revenues from commercialization of our
product candidates could be reduced, delayed or eliminated.

Our business strategy is to increase the aiate of our drug candidate portfolio. We belid¢his is best achieved by retaining full product
rights or through collaborative arrangements whildt parties as appropriate. As needed, poteittial-party alliances could include
preclinical development, clinical development, fegary approval, marketing, sales and distributidour drug product candidates.

Currently, we have established collaboratelationships with Mundipharma for the developmert aommercialization of forodesine and
with each of Shionogi and Green Cross for the dgmknt and commercialization of peramivir. The pascof establishing and implement
collaborative relationships is difficult, time-camsing and involves significant uncertainty, inclugl

e our partners may seek to renegotiate or termithate relationships with us due to unsatisfactiyical results, a change in business
strategy, a change of control or other reas

» our contracts for collaborative arrangements majrex
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e our partners may choose to pursue alternative tdabies, including those of our competitc
e we may have disputes with a partner that could teditigation or arbitration
« we do not have day to day control over the acésitf our partners and have limited control oveirttecisions

» our ability to generate future event paymentsraydlties from our partners depends upon thelitigsi to establish the safety and
efficacy of our product candidates, obtain regulatpprovals and achieve market acceptance of ptedieveloped from our prodt
candidates

* we or our partners may fail to properly initiateaintain or defend our intellectual property righwhere applicable, or a party may
utilize our proprietary information in such a wag/ta invite litigation that could jeopardize or eotially invalidate our proprietary
information or expose us to potential liabili

e our partners may not devote sufficient capitalemources towards our product candidates;
» our partners may not comply with applicable govegntrregulatory requirement

If any partner fails to fulfill its respordlities in a timely manner, or at all, our commiatization efforts related to that collaboration
could be reduced, delayed or terminated, or it beapecessary for us to assume responsibility fiviies that would otherwise have been
the responsibility of our partner. If we are unatol@stablish and maintain collaborative relatigpston acceptable terms, we may have to
delay or discontinue further development of onenore of our product candidates, undertake comnigaien activities at our own expense
or find alternative sources of funding. Any delaythe development or commercialization of our coumruts would severely affect our
business, because if our compounds do not protressgh the development process or reach the marketimely manner, or at all, we may
not receive additional future event payments anyg never receive product or royalty payments.

We have not commercialized any products or technologies and our future revenue generation isuncertain.

We have not commercialized any products dirtelbgies, and we may never be able to do so. Werttly have no marketing capability
and no direct or third-party sales or distributa@pabilities and may be unable to establish thapalilities for products we plan to
commercialize. In addition, our revenue from caliediive agreements is dependent upon the staimgrgfreclinical and clinical programs. If
we fail to advance these programs to the poineaidable to enter into successful collaboratiareswill not receive any future event or ot
collaborative payments.

Our ability to receive revenue from produgtscommercialize presents several risks, including
» we or our collaborators may fail to successfullynpdete clinical trials sufficient to obtain FDA nkating approval

* many competitors are more experienced and hgwdisantly more resources and their products canglanore cost effective or have
a better efficacy or tolerability profile than quroduct candidate:

* we may fail to employ a comprehensive and efeciitellectual property strategy which could résuldecreased commercial value
of our company and our produc

* we may fail to employ a comprehensive and effectegulatory strategy which could result in a gedafailure in commercialization
of our products

* our ability to successfully commercialize our gwots are affected by the competitive landscapéwtannot be fully known at this
time;

* reimbursement is constantly changing which coukhtly affect usage of our products; ¢
« any future revenue directly from product salesidaepend on our ability to successfully compldieical studies, obtain regulatory
approvals, manufacture, market and commercialigeapproved drugs
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If our development collaborations with third parties, such as our development partners and contract research organizations, fail, the
development of our drug product candidates will be delayed or stopped.

We rely heavily upon other parties for mamyportant stages of our drug development programetyding but not limited to:

» discovery of compounds that cause or enable diicdd reactions necessary for the progressionefithease or disorder, called
enzyme target:

» licensing or design of enzyme inhibitors for deyetient as drug product candidat

» execution of some preclinical studies and-stage development for our compounds and produclidates;

* management of our clinical trials, including medicenitoring and data manageme

» execution of additional toxicology studies that nieyrequired to obtain approval for our productdidates; anc

* manufacturing the starting materials and drugstrtte required to formulate our drug productsthadirug products to be used in
both our clinical trials and toxicology studit

Our failure to engage in successful collaboret at any one of these stages would greatly ibqpacbusiness. If we do not license enzyme
targets or inhibitors from academic institutionsrom other biotechnology companies on acceptadtad, our product development efforts
would suffer. Similarly, if the contract researafganizations that conduct our initial or leg&ge clinical trials, conduct our toxicology seg
manufacture our starting materials, drug substancdedrug products or manage our regulatory fundiieached their obligations to us or
perform their services inconsistent with industianslards and not in accordance with the requirgdiagions, this would delay or prevent the
development of our product candidates.

If we lose our relationship with any one orrmof these parties, we could experience a signifidelay in both identifying another
comparable provider and then contracting for itgises. We may be unable to retain an alternatregiger on reasonable terms, if at all.
Even if we locate an alternative provider, it kel that this provider may need additional timedspond to our needs and may not provide
the same type or level of service as the originavipler. In addition, any provider that we retaiill e subject to applicable FDA current
Good Laboratory Practices (“cGLP”), current Goodndacturing Practices (“cGMP”) and current Goodh@lal Practices (“cGCP”), and
comparable foreign standards. We do not have domiey compliance with these regulations by theswigers. Consequently, if these
practices and standards are not adhered to by phegelers, the development and commercializatioouo product candidates could be
delayed, and our business, financial conditionrasdlts of operations could be materially adverséffgcted.

Our development of peramivir for influenzais subject to all disclosed drug development and potential commercialization risks and
numerous additional risks. Any potential revenue benefits to us are highly speculative.

Further development and potential commerztibn of peramivir is subject to all the risksdaimcertainties disclosed in our other risk
factors relating to drug development and commadeezitibn. In addition, potential commercializatiohp@ramivir is subject to further risks,
including but not limited to the following:

» the peramivir i.v. currently in clinical developmt may not prove to be safe and sufficiently gffecfor market approval in the
United States or other major marke

* necessary government or other third party fundimg clinical testing for further development ofammivir may not be available
timely, at all, or in sufficient amount

» the flu prevention or pandemic treatment concerag not materialize at all, or in the near futt
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« advances in flu vaccines or other antiviralsluding competitive i.v. antivirals, could substatii replace potential demand for
peramivir;

» any substantial demand for pandemic or seashnakhtments may occur before peramivir can bejaalely developed and tested in
clinical trials;

e peramivir may not prove to be accepted by patiantd physicians as a treatment for seasonal mftueompared to the other
currently marketed antiviral drugs, which would iimevenue from nc-governmental entitie:

« numerous large and well-established pharmacéuatizhbiotech companies will be competing to meetrharket demand for flu
drugs and vaccine

« the only major markets in which patents relatmgeramivir have issued or been allowed are thiedrstates, Canada, Japan,
Australia and many contracting and extension st@fttise European Union, while no patent applicaionissued patents for
peramivir exist in other potentially significant rkats;

» regulatory authorities may not make needed accoratirmts to accelerate the drug testing and apprnesiess for peramivir; ar

* inthe next few years, it is expected that atlahinumber of governmental entities will be thenaiy potential customers for
peramivir and if we are not successful at markegiagamivir to these entities for any reason, wé nat receive substantial revenues
from stockpiling orders from these entiti

If any or all of these and other risk fastoccur, we will not attain significant revenuegjorss margins from peramivir and our stock
price will be adversely affected.

There arerisks related to the potential emergency use or sale of peramivir.

To the extent that peramivir is used as armeat for HLIN1 flu (or other strains of flu), thezan be no assurance that it will prove to be
generally safe, well tolerated and effective. Emany use of peramivir may create certain liab#itier us. There is no assurance that we or
our manufacturers will be able to fully meet thended for peramivir in the event of additional osldfurther, we may not achieve a
favorable price for additional orders of peramiwithe U.S. or in any other country. Our compesitoray develop products that could com
with or replace peramivir. We may face competiiomarkets where we have no existing intellectuapprty protection or are unable to
successfully enforce our intellectual property tigh

There is no assurance that the non-U.S. pattips that we have entered into for peramivir véBult in any order for peramivir in those
countries. There is no assurance that peramivirbgibpproved for emergency use or will achieveketaapproval in additional countries. In
the event that any emergency use is granted, ihe@assurance that any order by any non-U.Sh@ahip will be substantial or will be
profitable to us. The sale of peramivir, emergensg or other use of peramivir in any country maate certain liabilities for us.

Because we have limited manufacturing experience, we depend on third-party manufacturers to manufacture our drug product candidates
and the materials for our product candidates. If we cannot rely on third-party manufacturers, we will be required to incur significant costs
and potential delays in finding new third-party manufacturers.

We have limited manufacturing experience amg a small scale manufacturing facility. We cuthemely upon third-party manufacturers
to manufacture the materials required for our grrafuct candidates and most of the preclinical@dimital quantities of our product
candidates. We depend on these third-party manuastto perform their obligations in a timely manand in accordance with applicable
governmental regulations. Our thipdwty manufacturers may encounter difficulties witheting our requirements, including but not lidite
problems involving:

* inconsistent production yield
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e product liability claims

« difficulties in scaling production to commercialcawalidation sizes

» interruption of the delivery of materials requifed the manufacturing proces
» scheduling of plant time with other vendors or yrepted equipment failur

» potential catastrophes that could strike theirlitées;

« potential impurities in our drug substance omgdouoducts that could affect availability of protiémr our clinical trials or future
commercialization

e poor quality control and assurance or inadequategss controls; ar
» lack of compliance with regulations and specificas set forth by the FDA or other foreign regulatagencies

These contract manufacturers may not betabteganufacture the materials required or our gnagluct candidates at a cost or in
guantities necessary to make them commerciallyl@iale also have no control over whether thirdyparanufacturers breach their
agreements with us or whether they may terminati=oline to renew agreements with us. To datethord-party manufacturers have met:
manufacturing requirements, but they may not camtito do so. Furthermore, changes in the manufagtprocess or procedure, including a
change in the location where the drug is manufadtaer a change of a third-party manufacturer, negyire prior review and approval in
accordance with the FDA’s cGMPs and comparabladareequirements. This review may be costly anagttonsuming and could delay or
prevent the launch of a product. The FDA or simitaieign regulatory agencies at any time may atgglément new standards, or change
interpretation and enforcement of existing stansléod manufacture, packaging or testing of produétse or our contract manufacturers are
unable to comply, we or they may be subject to lagry action, civil actions or penalties.

If we are unable to enter into agreements ®attiitional manufacturers on commercially reasom#daims, or if there is poor manufactur
performance on the part of our third-party manufeerts, we may not be able to complete developmieior onarket, our product candidates.

Our raw materials, drug substances, and drodugts are manufactured by a limited group of §appand some at a single facility. If any
of these suppliers were unable to produce thesssjtthis could significantly impact our supply @figs for further preclinical testing and
clinical trials.

If we or our partnersdo not obtain and maintain governmental approvals for our products under development, we or our partnerswill not
be able to sall these potential products, which would significantly harm our business because we will receive no revenue.

We or our partners must obtain regulatory apglrbefore marketing or selling our future drugducts. If we or our partners are unable to
receive regulatory approval and do not market brose future drug products, we will never receasmy revenue from such product sales. In
the United States, we or our partners must obtBiA Bpproval for each drug that we intend to comnadize. The process of preparing for
and obtaining FDA approval may be lengthy and espen and approval is never certain. Productsilisgted abroad are also subject to
foreign government regulation and export laws efthS. Neither the FDA nor foreign regulatory agesdave approved any of our drug
product candidates. Because of the risks and waioges in biopharmaceutical development, our peb@dandidates could take a significantly
longer time to gain regulatory approval than weestr may never gain approval. If the FDA delaggutatory approval of our product
candidates, our management’s credibility, our camgfsavalue and our operating results may suffeerkEl the FDA or foreign regulatory
agencies approve a product candidate, the appnaosalimit the indicated uses for a product candidatd/or may require post-marketing
studies.
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The FDA regulates, among other things, thenctkeeping and storage of data pertaining to piadgsharmaceutical products. We
currently store most of our preclinical researctadaur clinical data and our manufacturing datauatfacility. While we do store duplicate
copies of most of our clinical data offsite andgn#icant portion of our data is included in regubackups of our systems, we could lose
important data if our facility incurs damage. If get approval to market our potential products, tivein the United States or internatione
we will continue to be subject to extensive requiatrequirements. These requirements are wide mgreyid govern, among other things:

e adverse drug experience reporting regulati

» product promotion

* product manufacturing, including good manufactugangctice requirements; a
» product changes or modificatior

Our failure to comply with existing or fuuregulatory requirements, or our loss of, or cleartg, previously obtained approvals, could
have a material adverse effect on our businesaubeaae will not receive product or royalty reveniiege or our partners do not receive
approval of our products for marketing.

In June 1995, we notified the FDA that wbrsitted incorrect data for our Phase Il studieBGX-34 applied to the skin for CTCL and
psoriasis. In November 1995, the FDA issued adfishspectional Observations, Form FDA 483, whiitha our failure to follow good
clinical practices. The FDA also inspected us ineJi996. The focus was on the two 1995 Phase #-darsging studies of topical BC34 for
the treatment of CTCL and psoriasis. As a resulhefinvestigation, the FDA issued us a Form FDA&,4ghich cited our failure to follow
good clinical practices. We are no longer develg@BCX-34; however, as a consequence of these twastigations, our ongoing and future
clinical studies may receive increased scrutinyictvimay delay the regulatory review process.

We face intense competition, and if we are unable to compete effectively, the demand for our products, if any, may be reduced.

The biotechnology and pharmaceutical indestare highly competitive and subject to rapid smbistantial technological change. We
face, and will continue to face, competition in tleensing of desirable disease targets, licensfrdesirable drug product candidates, and
development and marketing of our product candid@tes academic institutions, government agenciesearch institutions and
biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies. Cotretinay also arise from, among other things:

» other drug development technologi

* methods of preventing or reducing the incidencdiséase, including vaccines; a

» new small molecule or other classes of therapaugts

Developments by others may render our prodaedidates or technologies obsolete or noncomgeti

We and our partners are performing reseamnctr developing products for the treatment of sswaisorders including T-cell mediated
disorders (T-cell cancers and other autoimmunecatitins), gout, CTCL, CLL, influenza, and hepat@liswe expect to encounter significant
competition for any of the pharmaceutical prodwe¢splan to develop. Companies that complete clinicas, obtain required regulatory
approvals and commence commercial sales of thetiyats before their competitors may achieve a Bagmit competitive advantage. Such is
the case with Eisai’s Targretin for CTCL and therent neuraminidase inhibitors marketed by GlaxatiSiline and Roche for influenza.
With respect to the neuraminidase inhibitors, tr@sapanies may develop i.v. formulations that cadohpete with peramivir. Further,
several pharmaceutical and biotechnology firmduiliag major pharmaceutical companies and speeidltructure-based drug design
companies, have announced efforts in the fieldrotture-based drug design and in the fields of ANfRuenza, hepatitis C, and in other
therapeutic areas where we have discovery effoageing. If one or more of our competitors’ produstgprograms are successful, the market
for our products may be reduced or eliminated.
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Compared to us, many of our competitors@téntial competitors have substantially greater:
» capital resource:

» research and development resources, including peesand technolog)

* regulatory experienct

» preclinical study and clinical testing experien

* manufacturing and marketing experience;

» production facilities

Any of these competitive factors could reeldemand for our products.

If we fail to adequately protect or enforce our intellectual property rights or secure rightsto patents of others, the value of those rights
would diminish.

Our success will depend in part on our gbéind the abilities of our partners to obtaintpcb and enforce viable intellectual property
rights including but not limited to trade namegdigamark and patent protection for our company ngroducts, methods, processes and othe
technologies we may license or develop, to preseuvdrade secrets, and to operate without infrigghe proprietary rights of third parties
both domestically and abroad. The patent positidsiaiechnology and pharmaceutical companies i®galy highly uncertain, involves
complex legal and factual questions and has rackbatn the subject of much litigation. Neither theted States Patent and Trademark
Office ("USPTQO"), the Patent Cooperation Treatyi@dt, nor the courts of the United States and gthimdictions have consistent policies
nor predictable rulings regarding the breadth afras allowed or the degree of protection affordedexr many biotechnology and
pharmaceutical patents. Further, we do not havédwate patent protection for our product candidated our intellectual property rights
may not be legally protected or enforceable ircallntries throughout the world. The validity, scopeforceability and commercial value of
these rights, therefore, is highly uncertain.

Our success depends in part on avoidingnfniegement of other parties’ patents and othéliactual property rights as well as avoiding
the breach of any licenses relating to our tectgieband products. In the U.S., patent applicatiibed in recent years are confidential for
18 months, while older applications are not pulgishntil the patent issues. As a result, avoidatgmt infringement may be difficult and we
may inadvertently infringe third-party patents ooprietary rights. These third parties could britgims against us, our partners or our
licensors that even if resolved in our favor, cotadise us to incur substantial expenses and dfvex$ against us, could additionally cause us
to pay substantial damages. Further, if a patérnib@ement suit were brought against us, our pastoe our licensors, we or they could be
forced to stop or delay research, development, faaturing or sales of any infringing product in #@untry or countries covered by the
patent we infringe, unless we can obtain a licéraa the patent holder. Such a license may notbédable on acceptable terms, or at all,
particularly if the third party is developing or rkating a product competitive with the infringingoguct. Even if we, our partners or our
licensors were able to obtain a license, the righag be nonexclusive, which would give our competitaccess to the same intellectual

property.

If we or our partners are unable or faihttequately, initiate, protect, defend or enforceiotellectual property rights in any area of
commercial interest or in any part of the world weheve wish to seek regulatory approval for our piag, methods, processes and other
technologies, the value of the drug product cartd&lto produce revenue would diminish. Additionalfiyur products, methods, processes,
and other technologies or our commercial use df puoducts, processes, and other technologiesidimg but not limited to any trade name,
trademark or commercial strategy infringe the pietpry rights of other parties, we could incur gahsal costs. The USPTO and the patent
offices of other jurisdictions have issued to usianber of patents for our various inventions anchaee in-licensed several patents from
various institutions. We have filed additional pdtapplications and provisional patent applicatiasith the USPTO. We have filed a number
of corresponding foreign patent applications anerid to file additional foreign and U.S. patentlaggtions, as appropriate. We have also
filed certain trademark and trade name applicatwoddwide. We cannot assure you as to:

» the degree and range of protection any patentsa¥fidld against competitors with similar produ
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e ifand when patents will issu

» if patents do issue we can not be sure that Wéoaviable to adequately defend such patents amdhehor not we will be able to
adequately enforce such patents

« whether or not others will obtain patents claimasgpects similar to those covered by our patenicgijans.

If the USPTO or other foreign patent offichofuls patents issued to others or if the USPTOtgnaatent applications filed by others, we
may have to:

» obtain licenses or redesign our products or presesavoid infringemen
e stop using the subject matter claimed in thosenpsiter
e pay damage:

We may initiate, or others may bring agairstlitigation or administrative proceedings rethto intellectual property rights, including
proceedings before the USPTO or other foreign patiice. Any judgment adverse to us in any litigator other proceeding arising in
connection with a patent or patent application douaterially and adversely affect our businessfaial condition and results of operations.
In addition, the costs of any such proceeding magubstantial whether or not we are successful.

Our success is also dependent upon the skilbwledge and experience, none of which is paltde of our scientific and technical
personnel. To help protect our rights, we requlireraployees, consultants, advisors and partneester into confidentiality agreements that
prohibit the disclosure of confidential informatitmanyone outside of our company and require aéscke and assignment to us of their ideas,
developments, discoveries and inventions. Thesseaggnts may not provide adequate protection fotrade secrets, know-how or other
proprietary information in the event of any unautbed use or disclosure or the lawful developmegnotiners of such information, and if any
of our proprietary information is disclosed, ousimess will suffer because our revenues depend apoability to license or commercialize
our product candidates and any such events wogltdfisiantly impair the value of such product carades.

Thereisa substantial risk of product liability claimsin our business. If we are unableto obtain sufficient insurance, a product liability
claim against us could adversely affect our business.

We face an inherent risk of product liagiktxposure related to the testing of our produnti@hates in human clinical trials and will face
even greater risks upon any commercialization bgfusir product candidates. We have product ligbitisurance covering our clinical trials
in the amount of approximately $11.0 million. Ctal trial and product liability insurance is becogyincreasingly expensive. As a result, we
may be unable to obtain sufficient insurance ordase our existing coverage at a reasonable cpsbtect us against losses that could have a
material adverse effect on our business. An indiaignay bring a product liability claim againstitiene of our products or product
candidates causes, or is claimed to have causédjuay or is found to be unsuitable for consumse.vAny product liability claim brought
against us, with or without merit, could result in:

» liabilities that substantially exceed our prodiigility insurance, which we would then be reggitto pay from other sources, if
available;

e anincrease of our product liability insuranceseor the inability to maintain insurance coveragthe future on acceptable terms, or
at all;

« withdrawal of clinical trial volunteers or patien
» damage to our reputation and the reputation opoeducts, resulting in lower sale
* regulatory investigations that could require costlgalls or product modification

» litigation costs; an
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» the diversion of managemss attention from managing our busine
If our facility incurs damage or power islost for a significant length of time, our business will suffer.

We currently store numerous clinical andbiitg samples at our facility that could be damagieour facility incurred physical damage or
in the event of an extended power failure. We Haagkup power systems in addition to backup generabomaintain power to all critical
functions, but any loss of these samples couldtressignificant delays in our drug developmenbgess.

In addition, we currently store most of ouegmical and clinical data at our facility. Dupdie copies of most critical data are stored off-
site in a bank vault. Any significant degradatiarfailure of our computer systems could cause usaocurately calculate or lose our data.
Loss of data could result in significant delaysur drug development process and any system falwid harm our business and operations.

If we fail to retain our existing key personnel or fail to attract and retain additional key personnel, the development of our drug product
candidates and the expansion of our business will be delayed or stopped.

We are highly dependent upon our senior mament and scientific team, the unpexcted losshafse services might impede the
achievement of our development and commercial dlbss Competition for key personnel with the exgece that we require is intense and
is expected to continue to increase. Our inabititattract and retain the required number of skiled experienced management, operational
and scientific personnel, will harm our businessause we rely upon these personnel for many driticetions of our business.

Our stock priceislikely to be highly volatile and the value of your investment could decline significantly.

The market prices for securities of biotemlbgy companies in general have been highly velaiid may continue to be highly volatile in
the future. Moreover, our stock price has fluctddtequently, and these fluctuations are oftenraltaited to our financial results. For the
twelve months ended December 31, 2009, the 52-varade of the market price of our stock was fromi$1o $13.47 per share. The
following factors, in addition to other risk facsodescribed in this section, may have a significapect on the market price of our common
stock:

« announcements of technological innovations or nesdyicts by us or our competito

» developments or disputes concerning patents orrigtapy rights;

» additional dilution through sales of our commorcktor other derivative securitie

» status of new or existing licensing or collaboratagreements and government contr:

e announcements relating to the status of our progy

e we or our partners achieving or failing to achieeselopment milestone

» publicity regarding actual or potential medicaluiés relating to products under development byusus competitors
* publicity regarding certain public health conceforswhich we are or may be developing treatme

* regulatory developments in both the United Statesfareign countries

* public concern as to the safety of pharmaceuticadyrcts;

e actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operatiegults;

» changes in financial estimates or recommendatigrseburities analyst:

» changes in the structure of healthcare paymenessstincluding developments in price control legisi;

* announcements by us or our competitors of sigmifie@quisitions, strategic partnerships, joint uees or capital commitment
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e additions or departures of key personnel or memifeosir board of director:

e purchases or sales of substantial amounts of ook &ty existing stockholders, including officersdirectors;
» economic and other external factors or other disagir crises; an

» perioc-to-period fluctuations in our financial resul

If, because of our use of hazardous materials, we violate any environmental controls or regulationsthat apply to such materials, we may
incur substantial costs and expensesin our remediation efforts.

Our research and development involves tiéralbed use of hazardous materials, chemicalsvanidus radioactive compounds. We are
subject to federal, state and local laws and reiguis governing the use, storage, handling andbdedpof these materials and some waste
products. Accidental contamination or injury fronese materials could occur. In the event of andeatj we could be liable for any damages
that result and any liabilities could exceed osoregces. Compliance with environmental laws andlegpns could require us to incur
substantial unexpected costs, which would matgréaild adversely affect our results of operations.

Information Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This filing contains forward-looking statente within the meaning of Section 21E of the SdémgiExchange Act of 1934, as amended,
which are subject to the “safe harbeoréated in Section 21E. All statements other thatesents of historical facts contained in thigdj| are
forward-looking statements. These forward-lookitagesments can generally be identified by the useasfis such as “may,” “will,”

“intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “anticipates,” “exgts,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “potential,” the gative of these words or similar expressions.
Statements that describe our future plans, stegegitentions, expectations, objectives, goalsraspects are also forward-looking
statements. Discussions containing these forwasklihg statements are principally contained in “Besis,” “Risk Factors” and
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations”, as well as@mendments we make to those
sections in filings with the SEC. These forwardKimg statements include, but are not limited tateshents about:

« the initiation, timing, progress and results of ptgclinical testing, clinical trials, and othesearch and development effoi
» the potential funding from our contract with HHS fhe development of peramiv

» the potential for a stockpiling order or profit fncany order for peramivi

» the potential use of peramivir as a treatment fbNH flu (or other strains of flu

» the further preclinical or clinical developmemidacommercialization of our product candidatesluding peramivir, forodesine and
other PNP inhibitor and hepatitis C developmengpams;

« the implementation of our business model, stratplgins for our business, product candidates arthtdagy;
e our ability to establish and maintain collaborasi

e plans, programs, progress and potential sucdems @ollaborations, including Mundipharma forddesine and Shionogi and Green
Cross for peramivir

» the scope of protection we are able to establichmaintain for intellectual property rights caagrour product candidates and
technology;

» our ability to operate our business without infimgthe intellectual property rights of othe
» estimates of our expenses, future revenues, capgalrements and our needs for additional finagc

» the timing or likelihood of regulatory filings aragbprovals
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e our financial performance; at
e competitive companies, technologies and our inglu

These statements relate to future evertis our future financial performance and involve wmoand unknown risks, uncertainties and
other important factors that may cause our acesllts, performance or achievements to be mateddferent from any future results,
performance or achievements expressed or impligtése forward-looking statements. Factors that caange actual results to differ
materially from current expectations include, amotiter things, those listed under “Risk FactorsiyAorward-looking statement reflects
our current views with respect to future events iarglibject to these and other risks, uncertaimtnesassumptions relating to our operations,
results of operations, industry and future grovidkcept as required by law, we assume no obligatiarpdate or revise these forwdabking
statements for any reason, even if new informatiecomes available in the future.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We lease offices in both Birmingham, Alabamd &urham, North Carolina. Our principal reseaitilities are located in Birmingham,
while our clinical and regulatory operations arenarily based in Durham. We believe that our féiefi are adequate for our current
operations.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
None.

ITEM 4. (REMOVED AND RESERVED)
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

Our common stock trades on the NASDAQ GlobathkétSM under the symbol BCRX. The following table setgHdhe low and high
sales prices of our common stock as reported by Global Markett™ for each quarter in 2009 and 2008:

2009 2008
Low High Low High
First quartel $ 1.1f $ 237 $ 281 $ 6.52
Second quarte 1.6% 4.9¢ 2.5¢ 4.9¢
Third quartel 3.6t 13.47 2.4C 3.6(
Fourth quarte 5.5t 12.7(¢ .8E 3.1¢

The last sale price of the common stock on Marc@010 as reported by NASDAQ Global Mark&twas $6.68 per share.
Holders

As of March 1, 2010, there were approximately 28[@lérs of record of our common stock.

Dividends

We have never paid cash dividends and do not patieipaying cash dividends in the foreseeabledutur

36




Table of Contents

Stock Performance Graph

This performance graph is not “soliciting mi&k” is not deemed filed with the SEC and is not torfm®iporated by reference in any fili
by us under the Securities Act of 1933, as amelfftthed'Securities Act”), or the Exchange Act, whetheade before or after the date hereof
and irrespective of any general incorporation lagguin any such filing. The stock price performasicewn on the graph is not necessarily
indicative of future price performance.

PERFORMANCE GRAPH FOR BIOCRYST

Indexed Comparison Since 2004
N
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D4 D15 Diee-06 Dacir? D0 ]
. BlplC oy Ptz ncwulicnle Inc. e o T Handug 3lock M et (UIE) Humla g Pham aceutcsl Stocks
Beginning
Investment Investment Investment Investment Investment Investment
12/31/04 at 12/31/0¢ at 12/31/0¢ at 12/31/0% at 12/31/0¢ at 12/31/0¢
BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Ir $ 100.0( $ 289.7¢ $ 200.0( $ 106.9: $ 23.7C $ 111.7¢
The NASDAQ Stock Marke 100.0( 102.1: 112.2( 121.67 58.6¢ 84.2¢
NASDAQ Pharmaceutical Stoc 100.0¢ 110.1: 107.7¢ 113.3¢ 105.47 118.5:

The above graph measures the change in aift@8tment in our common stock based on its clopize of $5.78 on December 31, 2004
and its year-end closing price thereafter. Ourtingdgperformance is then compared with the CRSRIMRéturn Indexes for the NASDAQ
Stock Market (U.S.) and NASDAQ Pharmaceutical S¢ock

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

None.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table contains information aboepurchases of our common stock or shares sumethdie satisfy tax obligations during the
fourth quarter of 2009:

Approximate

Dollar Value
of Shares
Total Number of That May
Total Shares Purchase: Yet Be
Number of Average as Part of Publicly Purchased Unde
Shares Price Paid Announced Plans the Plans or
Purchased® Per Share or Programs Programs
Period
October 200¢ — $ — — —
November 200! — — —
December 200 24,07 6.4¢€ — —
Total 24,07 —

(1) Amounts represent shares of common stocketeld to us as payment of withholding taxes duthervesting of restricted stock issued
under our Stock Incentive Ple
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Statement of Operations Data
Total revenue

Research and development expet
Net loss

Amounts per common shal
Basic and diluted net loss per sh

Weighted average shares outstant

Balance Sheet Data

Cash, cash equivalents and secur
Total asset

Long-term deferred revent
Accumulated defici

Total stockholder equity

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Years Ended December 31
(In thousands, except per share date

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
$ 74,58¢ $ 56,56 $71,23¢ $ 6,21: $ 15z
72,30: 73,32, 94,05 47,08: 23,64
(13,452 (24,739 (29,055 (43,619 (26,099
$ (0.3 $ (0.6 $ (0.89 $ (1.50) $ (1.01)
38,92¢ 38,06: 32,77 29,14’ 25,72:
As of December 31
(In thousands)
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
$ 94,25¢ $ 63,31 $ 85,00¢ $ 46,23¢ $ 59,98¢
142,19( 84,69: 142,71° 68,48t 99,24¢
18,44: 20,93 49,69¢ 36,59¢ 29,42¢
(262,719 (249,26 (224,530 (195,48) (151,86
86,26¢ 46,42¢ 64,90¢ 21,15¢ 58,44(
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains certaatesnents of a forward-looking nature relating ttufie events or the future financial
performance of BioCryst. Such statements are amgliptions and the actual events or results mafedihaterially from the results discuss
in the forward-looking statements. Factors thatldozause or contribute to such differences incltiaese discussed below as well as those
discussed in other filings made by BioCryst with 8ecurities and Exchange Commission.

The following Management’s Discussion and Anal{/$#D&A”) is intended to help the reader understandr results of operations and
financial condition. MD&A is provided as a suppleméo, and should be read in conjunction with, audited Financial Statements and"
accompanying notes to the financial statementsadhner disclosures included in this Annual Reporfanm 10-K (including the disclosures
under “Item 1A. Risk Factors”).

Overview
2009 Corporate Highlights

Peramivir

In January 2007, HHS awarded us a $102.6anijlfiour-year contract for the advanced developroéperamivir. In September 2009, we
received an award of $77.2 million toward completid the Phase Ill development of i.v. peramivirquant to a contract modification with
HHS. This additional funding brings the total awénam HHS for the development of peramivir to $XFfillion and extends the contract
term by 12 months to five years. Any funding abthwe$179.9 million may be our responsibility.

We have determined that there is an excesp t§ $5.0 million of peramivir active pharmaceatimgredient (“API”) manufactured under
the contract with HHS. This excess API is beyorelamount necessary to support U.S. regulatory apprdHS has acknowledged that at
least half of the Company’s estimate is excessawesvaluating whether additional quantities obpavir API are needed by the Company,
and if so, the acquisition process to obtain thé fédin HHS.

In September 2009, we received a RFP from i 8e supply of i.v. peramivir for the treatmefitcritically ill influenza patients under
an Emergency Use Authorization (“‘EUA”). On NovemBde2009 we received an initial order for 10,000rses of i.v. peramivir (600 mg
oncedaily for five days) for an aggregate purchasegat$22.5 million. We shipped the entire ordenfrexisting i.v. peramivir inventory
HHS on November 4, 2009. Under the Indefinite Devindefinite Quantity contract issued to us orvélaber 3, 2009, HHS may place
additional orders for peramivir up to a total of@@0 courses at the same unit price as the fidgrokVe are also required to maintain the
ability to manufacture additional treatment courdegendent on the volume and size of anti-viraéydeceived from HHS. In addition,
separate from the RFP process, we have donatetlaarsflerred to HHS an initial supply sufficient fh200 courses of i.v. peramivir 600 mg
once-daily for five days.

The minimum and maximum quantities of i.v.graivir that may be ordered by HHS under the RFPL&@0 and 40,000 treatment
courses. We also are required to maintain thetglbdimanufacture additional courses for treatneemirophylaxis, dependent on the volume
and size of orders received from HHS. Based oriRffe, we initiated manufacture of approximately 080, courses of i.v. peramivir ata c
of approximately $10 million, so that we would hadgditional inventory available in advance of pdigdrorders. In addition, we have
sufficient quantities of API of i.v. peramivir alalle to produce up to 350,000 additional courses.

In October 2009, the FDA, in response to aiestifrom the U.S. Centers for Disease ControlRmedention, issued an EUA for permitting
the use of i.v. peramivir in hospitalized adult gredliatric patients with confirmed or suspected®2BaN1 influenza infection who have not
responded to oral or inhaled antivirals or in wharral or inhaled antiviral therapy is not feasildad in adult patients for whom therapy with
an i.v. drug is judged clinically appropriate doeother circumstances.

40




Table of Contents

In addition to the contract with HHS, in Fedny 2007, we established a collaborative relatigmafith Shionogi for the development and
commercialization of peramivir in Japan. We recdiae upfront payment of $14 million and the agrestnpeovided for additional future
clinical event milestone payments of up to $21ionill In October 2008, we and Shionogi amendeditiea$e agreement to expand the
territory in the agreement to include Taiwan angravide rights for Shionogi to perform a Phasetliical trial in Hong Kong.

In July 2009, Shionogi announced positive lteso two Phase 11l clinical trials of i.v. perawin. The studies were sponsored by Shionogi
and conducted during the 2008-2009 influenza se&uinnogi and Green Cross Corporation (“Green £jpthe license holder of peramivir
in Korea pursuant to a June 2006 license agreewitntus, co-conducted the portion of the studieKanea. Doses of i.v. peramivir of 300
mg and 600 mg, administered in single and mulijases, were found to be generally safe and wedldtéd in these trials. Shionogi
presented the data at the 2009 ICAAC / IDSA anmgsgting in San Francisco, California.

Shionogi previously completed a Phase |l stofdyv. peramivir administered via a single dostision in the outpatient setting for
treatment of seasonal influenza. Shionogi presethiedata at the 2008 ICAAC / IDSA annual meetimyMashington, D.C.

In January 2010, Shionogi received marketimdj manufacturing approval for i.v. peramivir in dapThe filing of this application
triggered a $7.0 million milestone payment to udenour current license agreement, and we receivhid and final regulatory milestone
payment of $7.0 million in January 2010 as a resiulhe applicatiors approval. We may receive future commercial evglgstone paymen
of up to $95 million from Shionogi. Shionogi haswoercially launched peramivir under the commenca@he RAPIACTA in Japan.
Shionogi has received the indications of singleedmdministration of 300 mg i.v. peramivir for aduittcomplicated seasonal influenza
infection, as well as single and multiple dose adstiation of 600 mg i.v. peramivir for the patigmit high-risk for complications associated
with influenza. Shionogi is authorized to supplygmivir as either a 300 mg i.v. bag or a 150 mdfaai.v. drip infusion. Shionogi also
announced that it has completed clinical studiepéaliatric patients and has filed an additionallization for pediatric use of RAPIACTA in
Japan.

Additionally, in January 2010, Green Crossdih New Drug Application in South Korea in Janu20¢0 to seek regulatory approval for
i.v. peramivir to treat patients with influenza.

In addition to Shionogi and Green Cross, weetentered into several agreements with companitessde the U.S. to represent us and
peramivir primarily for stockpiling opportunitieBor example, on December 23, 2009, we enterechimtagreement with Merck Serono, S.
through its affiliate, Ares Trading S.A., to exditey represent us and peramivir for stockpilingrogunities in Europe, Russia, Canada and
Singapore. Also in December 2009, we entered intagiteement with Hikma Pharmaceuticals, PLC toasgmt us and peramivir for
stockpiling opportunities in the Middle East andrtiioAfrica, excluding Israel. In January, 2010 wieged into an agreement with moksha8
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. to exclusively representnaspeeramivir for influenza stockpiling opportungian Brazil and Mexico.

Intramuscular peramivirWe completed a double-blind placebo-controlled BHbslinical trial with i.m. peramivir testing twdifferent
dose levels of peramivir (150 mg and 300 mg) vepasebo in adults with acute uncomplicated infzeer\While the trial did not demonstrate
statistically significant differences for its prinyaendpoint of time to alleviation of symptoms, treliminary analysis of the virologic data
indicated that peramivir demonstrated statisticsidpnificant reductions in influenza virus sheddindoth peramivir treatment groups
compared to placebo, with greater reductions ir80@mg dose. With this information and the add#igpharmacokinetic information we
have obtained subsequent to the trial, we initiat€&hase Il placebo-controlled trial of 600 mg ipmcamivir for the treatment of seasonal
influenza. In May 2009, we announced preliminasutes from the Phase Il study of i.m. peramivir tloe treatment of seasonal influenza.
This Phase Il study was a randomized, double-bpfatebo-controlled trial conducted in influenzasans in the Southern Hemisphere
(Australia, New Zealand and South Africa) in 2008 ghe Northern Hemisphere (United States) in 200809. While the study
demonstrated a numerical trend in its primary eirdpaf improvement in the median time to alleviatiof symptoms (“TTAS”) in subjects
with confirmed, acute, uncomplicated influenza atien versus placebo, the difference between tlwestwdy groups was not statistically
significant. We are not planning additional devehgmt of i.m. peramivir at this time.
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Intravenous peramiviin July 2007, we initiated a Phase Il clinical todi.v. peramivir to compare the efficacy andetgfof i.v.
peramivir to orally administered oseltamivir in jpats who require hospitalization due to acuteuifiza.

The primary objective of the study was to ea# time to clinical stability, which is a compeséndpoint comprised of normalization of
temperature, oxygen saturation, respiratory rgsptic blood pressure and heart rate. This typenalpoint has previously been used in
pneumonia studies, but not in influenza. Secondhjgctives of the study included evaluation of Mafaedding, mortality, clinical relapse and
time to resumption of usual activities. We presérhbe results at the Xl International SymposiunRaspiratory Viral Infection being held in
Bangkok, Thailand in February 2009.

In September 2009 we announced that we areating two Phase 11l studies of i.v. peramivir fithe treatment of hospitalized patients with
serious influenza. The combined enroliment targettiese studies is approximately 700 patients agpdoximately 300 study locations are
targeted to participate in these studies globadlhese studies are intended to support U.S. regylafmproval of i.v. peramivir as a treatment
for influenza.

Forodesine

An oral formulation of forodesine is currenifya pivotal trial for patients with CTCL. Thidat is being conducted under an SPA
agreement negotiated with the FDA and, if succéssill serve as a basis for an NDA to the FDA ggthe oral formulation in patients with
relapsed CTCL. In January 2010, we announced thdtad achieved our protocol-specific objectiverabdling 100 latestage patients (Sta
[IB to IVA) in this pivotal study. We expect to regt top-line data on this study in the second b&2010.

Long-term data from our Phase Il study of &@sine in patients with CTCL was presented at 8ie Annual Meeting of the American
Society of Clinical Oncology. This poster preseiotatreviewed the safety and efficacy of forodedoreCTCL patients of stage Ib to stage IV
who have failed standard therapies and receivediésine treatment for greater than 12 months.

In December 2008, we announced interim data the ongoing forodesine Phase Il program in pttieith CLL and data from a healthy
subject pharmacokinetic and pharmacodynamic stldy-line study results are expected in the secadfdoii 2010.

BCX-4208

During the third quarter of 2007, Roche indtha Phase Ila clinical trial to evaluate oraletogf BCX-4208/R3421 in patients with
moderate to severe plague psoriasis. The efficesgssment of the study has been completed. Cantsigth interim findings reported by us
in May 2008, the Phase Il clinical study of BCX-82@ potent, rationally designed, orally availaBhP inhibitor, met its primary objectives
of safety and tolerability. In addition, BCX-4208played dose-dependent reductions in peripheoaicblymphocyte counts, including
subsets measuring B cells (CD20), total T cells3L D helper cells (CD4) and T suppressor/cytotaeits (CD8). Further, plasma levels of
BCX-4208 increased with dose, and plasma uric lasiels showed dose-related reductions with BCX-420&ddition, consistent with
interim results previously reported by us, no enimeof clinical efficacy, a secondary objectiveswadserved in psoriasis patients with doses
and duration of administration tested.

In the Phase lla trial, BCX-4208 was generadife and well-tolerated at doses up to 120 my daiilsix (6) weeks. Most adverse events
reported were considered mild or moderate, androfrequency. No opportunistic infections were alose. In addition, detailed laboratory
and clinical monitoring did not indicate any pattesuggestive of off-target adverse findings.

Also in May 2008, we received notice that Reoelas exercising the “no cause” termination rigider the license agreement for BCX-
4208. As a result, we regained worldwide rightB@X-4208.

We recently initiated a clinical study of BG»08 for the treatment of gout, which is cause@leyated levels of uric acid in blood. We
believe that BCX-4208 is a good candidate to comtoat because data from a prior Phase
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Il clinical trial of BCX-4208 for psoriasis indicadl a dose related to reduction in uric acid that ssstained for the duration of drug exposure.
Our gout clinical trial is a Phase I, randomizdduble-blind, placebo-controlled study to evaluhtefficacy and safety of BCX-4208 in
subjects with gout. The trial contains two partartR will study multiple doses of BCX-4208 agaiagtlacebo and Part 2 will study dose
escalation. The trial's primary objective is toetatine the effect of different doses of orally adistered BCX4208 on serum uric acid leve

in patients with gout. The trial is expected toadinup to 120 subjects and we expect to have ind@a from Part 1 in mid-2010.

Results of Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2009 Compared with the Ye&nded December 31, 2008

Total revenues increased to $74.6 milliontfer year ended December 31, 2009 as compared 16 $Blion for the year ended
December 31, 2008. This increase was driven byd®2@lion in product sales, primarily the $22.5 liwih order of 10,000 courses of i.v.
peramivir from HHS, as well as a $7.0 million mimse payment from our partner, Shionogi, relateitistfiling of an NDA to seek regulatory
approval for i.v. peramivir in Japan. In additioayenue from the contract with HHS for the develepiof peramivir increased by
$16.3 million during the current year as two gloBhhse Il studies were initiated. These increasge offset by lower amortization of
deferred revenue from our collaborative arrangemepecifically, $27.8 million of previously defed revenue was recognized during the
prior year as Roche terminated its collaboratiothws in 2008.

Cost of product sales for the year ended Déeerdl, 2009 were approximately $4.5 million. Irtgd in cost of product sales is a
$4.0 million provision for peramivir finished goods/entory. We expense costs related to the proatuctf inventories as research and
development expenses in the period incurred umtihdime it is believed that future economic berisfexpected to be recognized, which
generally is reliant upon receipt of regulatory gwal. Upon regulatory approval, we capitalize ®thgent costs related to the production of
inventories. We determined that the FDA'’s grantifithe EUA for peramivir in October 2009 was objeetand persuasive evidence that
supported capitalization of peramivir inventorieamafactured after the issuance of the EUA. As altrese recorded manufacturing costs of
$4.0 million for peramivir finished goods inventoljowever, in preparing our December 31, 2009 firrstatements, we evaluated whether
the costs capitalized as inventory would be recaserin a future period. Given the lack of objeetiveliable evidence to support future
demand for peramivir, we concluded that there wasertainty that future sales would materialize engnues would exceed the costs
incurred. Therefore, the capitalized inventory Vidly reserved.

The remaining amounts included in cost of pridsales for the year ended December 31, 200& rel@omponents, secondary packaging,
and royalties and commissions paid to third padiea result of the peramivir product sales. Nascims the manufacturing of the peramivir
finished goods were included in cost of productsaas the manufacturing was completed prior tésgweance of the EUA.

Until we sell the inventory for which costsmeereviously expensed, our cost of product saléseflect only incremental costs incurred
subsequent to the issuance of the EUA in Octob@®28s such, if we sell that portion of our exigtimventory, there will be a period of time
where revenue could be recognized with little occaresponding cost. Therefore, we anticipatettigross margin on future product sales,
if any, will fluctuate and not be comparable fromagter to quarter.

Research and development expenses decrea$@ég.Bomillion for 2009 from $73.3 million for theior year due to reductions of
$1.3 million in clinical development costs, $3.8lmn in manufacturing costs, and $0.4 million exicology costs for the forodesine
program, as well as lower costs of $2.0 millioratetl to our pre-clinical compounds and $1.4 miliiogeneral operating and personnel
related costs. In addition, $8.6 million of prevsbudeferred expense was recognized during the pear as Roche terminated its
collaboration with us in 2008. These decreases wiset by higher clinical development costs ofgbillion for peramivir and $1.5 million
for BCX-4208, as well as an increase of $6.3 millio manufacturing and $1.5 million in consultireg$ for the peramivir program.

General and administrative expenses incre@s$tll.5 million for 2009 from $10.4 million for 28. This increase was primarily due to
higher legal and consulting fees.
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Interest income for 2009 was $0.3 million ampared to $2.4 million for the prior year, duatmwer average cash and securities balance
as well as significantly lower yield earned on iet#-bearing assets.

The net loss for the year ended December@®19 %vas $13.5 million, or $0.35 per share, compéveinet loss of $24.7 million, or $0.65
per share for the year ended December 31, 2008.

Year Ended December 31, 2008 Compared with the Ye&nded December 31, 2007

Collaborative and other research and developnezenues were $56.6 million for the year endeddbnber 31, 2008, compared to
$71.2 million for the year ended December 31, 200irs decrease was patrtially driven by a reductib®33.7 million in revenue from the
contract with HHS for the development of peramifduring the second quarter of 2008, we recorded.@ fillion charge to revenues for
amounts that were denied reimbursement by HHSelat costs incurred in the Phase 1l programrof peramivir for outpatient influenza.
We initiated this program and voluntarily discontd it following a decision to pursue higher dosethe ongoing Phase Il study.
Reimbursement of these costs is under discussitnh S. Further contributing to the decrease imatmirative and other R&D revenues
from 2007 to 2008 was the receipt of a $7.0 milloitestone payment from Shionogi in 2007. This wéset by the recognition of $26.5
million of previously deferred revenue relatedhe termination of our collaboration with Rochelie fourth quarter of 2008.

Research and development expenses were $1Bdrfor the year ended December 31, 2008, comgao $94.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2007. The decrease in R&D egpeavas due to a reduction in the clinical develapreests of $16.3 million and
toxicology costs of $1.6 million associated witle feramivir program, a reduction in manufacturiogts of $10.3 million and $6.4 million
associated with the peramivir and forodesine prograespectively, and a reduction in costs incuaredur pre-clinical compounds of
$0.9 million. These reductions were offset by areéase in our clinical development costs of $2.&anifor forodesine, the recognition of
$8.2 million of previously deferred expense relatethe termination of our collaboration with Roched increases of $4.2 million in
personnel related costs, consulting fees, and tipgreosts.

General and administrative expenses were $mdlién for the year ended December 31, 2008, carag to $9.5 million for the year enc
December 31, 2007. The higher expenses were phntae to increases in professional fees and oiperabsts.

The net loss for the year ended December@®18 %vas $24.7 million, or $0.65 per share, compé#weinet loss for the year ended
December 31, 2007 of $29.1 million, or $0.89 persh

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash expenditures have exceeded revenuesainggception. Our operations have principallyméeded through public offerings and
private placements of equity securities and casim frollaborative and other research and developagmeements, including government
contracts. For example, during 2009, we closedjstered offering of 5,000,000 shares of our comistogk at a public offering price of
$9.75 per share, resulting in proceeds net of ioffecosts of $45.7 million, and received cash fimum collaborative partners (primarily HHS,
Mundipharma, and Shionogi) of approximately $51iffion. In addition, during the fourth quarter 0®@9, we received $22.5 million from
HHS as a result of the peramivir stockpiling ord@ther sources of funding have included the foltayvi

» other collaborative and other research and devedopiagreement:
* government grant

e equipment lease financin

» facility leases

e research grants; a1
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* interest income

We have attempted to contain costs and reclaste flow requirements by renting scientific equimnand facilities, contracting with other
parties to conduct certain research and developamehtising consultants. We expect to incur additienpenses, potentially resulting in
significant losses, as we continue to pursue agarch and development activities in general ardigally related to our clinical trial
activity. We also expect to incur substantial exg@snrelated to the filing, prosecution, maintenade&ense and enforcement of patent and
other intellectual property claims and additiorewlatory costs as our clinical products advanosuth later stages of development.

The objective of our investment policy is tsare the safety and preservation of invested fuaslsell as maintaining liquidity sufficient
to meet cash flow requirements. We place our excasls with high credit quality financial institutis, commercial companies, and
government agencies in order to limit the amourdwfcredit exposure. We have not realized anyiféigmt losses from investments.

During 2009 and 2008, we incurred capital sa$tapproximately $0.6 million and $1.2 milliomspectively. In 2007, we incurred capital
costs of approximately $3.3 million. Included in0Z0capital costs were amounts related to a rermvati our facility to build additional
laboratory space.

At December 31, 2009, we had long-term opegatase obligations, which provide for aggregait@mum payments of approximately
$565,000 in 2010, $854,000 in 2011, and $871,0@DiP. These obligations include the future reotaur operating facilities.

We plan to finance our needs principally frtva following:

* payments under our contract with HF

e our existing capital resources and interest eaonetthat capital

e payments under collaborative and licensing agreésneith corporate partners; a
» lease or loan financing and future public or prviihancing.

For the year, our cash, cash equivalentsyrzarttetable securities balance has increased fr@8$6illion as of December 31, 2008 to
$94.3 million as of December 31, 2009. Excluding $45.7 million registered offering and the $22i8iom received from HHS for peramiv
stockpiling, our net cash burn for 2009 was $37illan, or $3.1 million per month. During the thigluarter of 2009, we had announced that
our net cash use for 2009 would be near the topétite previous guidance range of $30.0 to $38llom For 2010, we expect that cash
will be between $25.0 and $30.0 million. Our cash will vary depending on clinical outcomes andldaary significantly from our
expectations depending on the timing of Companyergps and the related reimbursement from our aybddrs.

As our clinical programs continue to prograsd patient enrollment increases, our costs willdase. Our current and planned clinical
trials plus the related development, manufactuniagulatory approval process requirements and iadditpersonnel resources and testing
required for the continuing development of our deagdidates will consume significant capital researand will increase our expenses. Our
expenses, revenues and burn rate could vary signtfy depending on many factors, including outitgttio raise additional capital, the
development progress of our collaborative agreesnfemtour drug candidates, the amount and timinyioding we receive from HHS for
peramivir, the amount of funding or assistancany, we receive from other governmental agencieghar new partnerships with third
parties for the development of our drug candiddtesprogress and results of our current and pexpobnical trials for our most advanced
drug products, the progress made in the manufacfwf our lead products and the progression obtluer programs.

With the funds available at December 31, 2808 future amounts that are expected to be recéiwedHHS, Shionogi, and our other
collaborators, we believe these resources willufficgent to fund our operations for at least
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the next twelve months. However, this is a forwaaking statement, and there may be changes thaldvemnsume available resources
significantly before such time.

Our long-term capital requirements and theqadey of our available funds will depend upon méagfors, including:
» our ability to perform under the contract with Hid&d receive reimburseme;

» the progress and magnitude of our research, dagpdéry and development prograr

» changes in existing collaborative relationshipg@rernment contract

e our ability to establish additional collaboratiedationships with academic institutions, bioteglogy or pharmaceutical companies
and governmental agencies or other third par

» the extent to which our partners, including goveental agencies will share in the costs associitidthe development of our
programs or run the development programs themse

e our ability to negotiate favorable developmerd amarketing strategic alliances for certain drugdidates; or a decision to build or
expand internal development and commercial capiisil

» successful commercialization of marketed produgtsither us or a partne

» the scope and results of preclinical studies aimicell trials to identify and evaluate drug candéeta

» our ability to engage sites and enroll subjectsunclinical trials;

» the scope of manufacturing of our drug candidaiesipport our preclinical research and clinicall$:;i
* increases in personnel and related costs to supiodevelopment of our drug candida

» the scope of manufacturing of our drug substandedamg products required for future NDA filing

» competitive and technological advanc

» the time and costs involved in obtaining regulatapprovals; an

» the costs involved in all aspects of intellectoraperty strategy and protection including thet€asvolved in preparing, filing,
prosecuting, maintaining, defending and enforciatgpt claims

We expect that we will be required to raisdigonal capital to complete the development anghimrcialization of our current product
candidates and we may seek to raise capital atimeywe deem market conditions to be favorable.iaftal funding, whether through
additional sales of securities or collaborativethrer arrangements with corporate partners or fsther sources, including governmental
agencies in general and from the HHS contract fipally, may not be available when needed or om#eacceptable to us. The issuance of
preferred or common stock or convertible securitigth terms and prices significantly more favoetiian those of the currently outstanding
common stock, could have the effect of dilutingadversely affecting the holdings or rights of oxiséng stockholders. In addition,
collaborative arrangements may require us to tearedrtain material rights to such corporate pastriesufficient funds may require us to
delay, scale-back or eliminate certain of our reseand development programs.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As part of our ongoing business, we do notigipate in transactions that generate relatiorshigth unconsolidated entities or financial
partnerships, such as entities often referred &irastured finance or special purpose entitie®ES’), which would have been established
the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet
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arrangements or other contractually narrow or Behipurposes. As of December 31, 2009, we are mobhied in any material unconsolidated
SPE or off-balance sheet arrangements.

Contractual Obligations

In the table below, we set forth our enfordeamnd legally binding obligations and future corments and obligations related to all
contracts that we are likely to continue regardtéfgbie fact that they are cancelable as of Dece®be2009. Some of the amounts we
include in this table are based on managemeniimatss and assumptions about these obligationsidimg their duration, the possibility of
renewal, anticipated actions by third parties, atter factors. Because these estimates and assusptie necessarily subjective, the
obligations we will actually pay in future period®y vary from those reflected in the table.

Payments due by perioc

Less than More than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Operating Lease Obligatiol $ 4,349,86. $ 565,35 $1,725,00: $1,771,07. $288,43(
Purchase Obligations ( 36,856,31 36,856,31 — — —
Total $41,206,17 $37,421,67 $1,725,00. $1,771,07. $288,43(

(1) Purchase obligations include commitmentsteeldo clinical development, manufacturing and aeste operations and other purchase
commitments

In addition to the above, we have committethtike potential future “sublicense” payments toddparties as part of in-licensing and
development programs. Payments under these agréegearerally become due and payable only upon aement of certain developmental,
regulatory and/or commercial milestones. Becausathievement of these milestones is neither ptelraly reasonably estimable, such
contingencies have not been recorded on our bakirest.

Critical Accounting Policies

We have established various accounting pdalitiat govern the application of accounting prifesmenerally accepted in the United St
which were utilized in the preparation of our ficé statements. Certain accounting policies ingdignificant judgments and assumptions
by management that have a material impact on thrgicg value of certain assets and liabilities. Mgament considers such accounting
policies to be critical accounting policies. Thdgments and assumptions used by management ackdrabéstorical experience and other
factors, which are believed to be reasonable utidecircumstances. Because of the nature of ttggjedts and assumptions made by
management, actual results could differ from thedgments and estimates, which could have a mabtamact on the carrying values of
assets and liabilities and the results of operation

While our significant accounting policies anere fully described in Note 1 to our financialtstaents included in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009elieve that the following accounting policies #ve most critical to aid you in fully
understanding and evaluating our reported finamemllts and affect the more significant judgmemtd estimates that we use in the
preparation of our financial statements.

Accrued Expenses

As part of the process of preparing finanstatements, we are required to estimate accruezhegp. This process involves reviewing ¢
contracts and purchase orders, communicating witlapplicable personnel to identify services tratéehbeen performed on our behalf and
estimating the level of service performed and $soeiated cost incurred for the service when we mmt yet been invoiced or otherwise
notified of actual cost. The majority of our seevigroviders invoice us monthly in arrears for seggiperformed. We make estimates of our
accrued expenses as of each balance sheet datefinamcial statements based on facts and ciramass known to us. We periodically
confirm the accuracy of our estimates with the iserproviders and make adjustments if necessarglai® there have been no material
changes to our estimates. Examples of estimatedetexpenses include:
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- fees paid to contract research organizations imection with preclinical and toxicology studies atidical trials;

» fees paid to investigative sites in connection wlthical trials;

» fees paid to contract manufacturers in connectiibh thie production of our raw materials, drug sahse and drug products; a
» professional service fee

We base our expenses related to clinicaktoal our estimates of the services received awdtefxpended pursuant to contracts with
multiple research institutions and clinical resbasoganizations that conduct and manage clinicabkton our behalf. The financial terms of
these agreements are subject to negotiation, vany ¢ontract to contract and may result in unevayment flows. Payments under some of
these contracts depend on factors such as thessfigicenrollment of patients and the completiorlofical trial milestones. In accruing
service fees, we estimate the time period over kveévices will be performed and the level of @fforbe expended in each period. If the
actual timing of the performance of services orléwel of effort varies from our estimate, we vaitljust the accrual accordingly. To date,
there have been no material changes to our essniftee do not identify costs that we have begumeur or if we underestimate or
overestimate the level of services performed orctists of these services, our actual expenses ddted from our estimates.

Revenue Recognition

Prior to the fourth quarter of 2009, our rewes have generally been limited to license feesytepayments, research and development
government contracts, and interest income. Revépuoelicense fees, event payments, and researckdewelopment fees are recognized as
revenue when the earnings process is complete arfthwe no further continuing performance obligationwe have completed the
performance obligations under the terms of theeagemnt. Fees received under licensing agreemeritarthaelated to future performance are
deferred and recognized as earned over an estirpatextl determined by management based on the tHrthe agreement and the products
licensed. In the event a license agreement conmairisple deliverables, we evaluate whether théveehbles are separate or combined units
of accounting. Revisions to revenue or profit eaties as a result of changes in the estimated reyegnod are recognized prospectively.

Reimbursements received for direct oupotket expenses related to research and develommststare recorded as revenue in the inc
statement rather than as a reduction in expensesit payments are recognized as revenue upon liievament of specified events if (1) the
event is substantive in nature and the achieveofahe event was not reasonably assured at thetioceof the agreement and (2) the fees
non-refundable and non-creditable. Any event paysesteived prior to satisfying these criteriareorded as deferred revenue. Under our
contract with HHS, revenue is recognized as reisdle direct and indirect costs are incurred.

During the fourth quarter of 2009, we recogudizevenues related to product sales of perandales are recognized when products are
shipped, title and risk of loss have passed, alidatability is reasonably assured. We did not jte\a right of product return in conjunction
with the sales of peramivir during 2009.

Research and Development Expenses

Our research and development costs are ch&gegense when incurred. Advance payments fodgoo services that will be used or
rendered for future research and development Hesvare deferred and capitalized. Such amountseaognized as expense when the related
goods are delivered or the related services aferpeed. Research and development expenses induttg other items, personnel costs,
including salaries and benefits, manufacturingsadinical, regulatory, and toxicology servicesfpemed by contract research organizations
(“CROs"), materials and supplies, and overheactations consisting of various administrative arallitées related costs. Most of our
manufacturing and clinical and preclinical studies performed by third-party CROs. Costs for stsigherformed by CROs are accrued by us
over the service periods specified in the contrants estimates are adjusted, if required, based apoon-going review of the level of
services actually performed.
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Additionally, we have license agreements whilhd parties, such as AECOM, IRL, and UAB, whiguguire fees related to sublicense
agreements or maintenance fees. We expense suggdipagments as incurred unless they are relatedémues that have been deferred, in
which case the expenses are deferred and recogmieedhe related revenue recognition period. WEeaze maintenance payments as
incurred.

At December 31, 2009, we had deferred collatiam expenses of approximately $3.0 million. Theésferred expenses were sub-license
payments, paid to our academic partners upon regegonsideration from various commercial partn@tsese deferred expenses would not
have been incurred without receipt of such paymfeata our commercial partners and are being expkimsproportion to the related revenue
being recognized. We believe that this accountiegtinent appropriately matches expenses with t$wcaded revenue.

We group our R&D expenses into two major cates: direct external expenses and all other R&peases. Direct external expenses
consist of costs of outside parties to conductratooy studies, to develop manufacturing proceasesmanufacture the product candidate, to
conduct and manage clinical trials and similar sostated to our clinical and preclinical studisese costs are accumulated and tracked by
program. All other R&D expenses consist of costsaimpensate personnel, to purchase lab suppliesamites, to maintain our facility,
equipment and overhead and similar costs of owared and development efforts. These costs applptk on our clinical and preclinical
candidates as well as our discovery research sffbhtese costs have not been charged directlyctoagram historically because the
number of product candidates and projects in rekeand development may vary from period to periodl lBecause we utilize internal
resources across multiple projects at the same time

The following table summarizes our R&D expenf® the periods indicated (amounts in millions):

Year ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007

Direct external R&D expenses by program

PNP Inhibitor (forodesine $ 10.: $ 15.¢ $ 194

Neuraminidase Inhibitor (peramivi 36.¢ 21.t 50.3

PNP Inhibitor (BC>-4208) 2.t 9.C 0.2

Other — 2.1 3.5
All other R&D expenses:

Compensation and fringe bene 12.5 12.¢ 11.4

Supplies and service 1.2 2.8 1.6

Maintenance, depreciation, and amortiza 2.C 2.2 1.4

Overhead allocation and ott 7.2 6.8 6.C
Direct external R&D expenses by program: $ T2.: $ 73: $ 94.1

At this time, due to the risks inherent in tiaical trial process and given the stages ofvarious product development programs, we are
unable to estimate with any certainty the costswilleincur in the continued development of our dreandidates for potential
commercialization. While we are currently focusedaolvancing each of our development programs,durd R&D expenses will depend on
the determinations we make as to the scientificdinétal success of each drug candidate, as wedingoing assessments as to each drug
candidate’s commercial potential. As such, we awable to predict how we will allocate availableaeses among our product development
programs in the future. In addition, we cannot ¢ast with any degree of certainty the developmengness of our existing partnerships for
our drug candidates, which drug candidates willigject to future collaborations, when such arrareggs will be secured, if at all, and to
what degree such arrangements would affect oudadi@wveent plans and capital requirements.

The successful development of our drug cane&lia uncertain and subject to a number of ridks cannot be certain that any of our drug
candidates will prove to be safe and effective iirmeet all of the applicable regulatory requirerteeneeded to receive and maintain
marketing approval. Data from preclinical studiad alinical trials are susceptible to varying iptetations that could delay, limit or prevent
regulatory clearance. We, the FDA, or other reguaauthorities may suspend clinical trials at #me if we or they believe that the subjects
participating in such trials are being exposedrtaaceptable risks or if such regulatory agencies dieficiencies in the conduct of the trials or
other problems with our products under developmeatays or rejections may be encountered basediditianal governmental regulation,
legislation, administrative action or changes inAFQ
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other regulatory policy during development or theiew process. Other risks associated with ouryrbdevelopment programs are descri
in Risk Factors in Part I, Item 1A of this Annuadort on Form 10-K, as updated from time to timeun subsequent periodic reports and
current reports filed with the SEC. Due to theseeutainties, accurate and meaningful estimatelseofittimate cost to bring a product to
market, the timing of completion of any of our puatildevelopment programs and the period in whicteria net cash inflows from any of
our product development programs will commenceuase/ailable.

Stock-Based Compensation

All share-based payments, including grantsto¢k option awards and restricted stock award@stesrognized in our income statement
based on their fair values. Stock-based compemsatst is estimated at the grant date based diaithealue of the award and is recognized
as expense on a straight-line basis over the riéggisrvice period of the award. Determining thprapriate fair value model and the related
assumptions for the model requires judgment, irinpdstimating the life of an award, the stock @nolatility, and the expected term.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Note 12 to the Financial Statements includeldem 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K dis@sssew accounting pronouncements
adopted by the Company during 2009 as well as atiz@upronouncements recently issued or proposeddiuwet required to be adopted.

7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES
ABOUT MARKET RISK.

The objective of our investment policy is ttsare the safety and preservation of invested fualgvell as maintaining liquidity sufficient
to meet cash flow requirements. We place our excasls with high credit quality financial institutis, commercial companies, and
government agencies in order to limit the amourdretlit exposure. Some of the securities we investay have market risk. This means 1
a change in prevailing interest rates may causeriheipal amount of the investment to fluctuate.rinimize this risk, we schedule our
investments to have maturities that coincide withexpected cash flow needs, thus avoiding the teegleem an investment prior to its
maturity date. Accordingly, we do not believe that have material exposure to interest rate risiragifrom our investments. Generally, our
investments are not collateralized. We have ndizeshany significant losses from our investments.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
BALANCE SHEETS

Assets

Cash and cash equivalel

Restricted cas

Marketable securitie

Receivables from collaboratio

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other current a:

Deferred collaboration expen
Total current asse

Marketable securitie

Furniture and equipment, n

Deferred collaboration expen

Total asset

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Accounts payabl

Accrued expense

Accrued vacatiol

Deferred ren

Deferred collaboration revent

Total current liabilities

Deferred ren
Deferred collaboration reveni

Stockholder equity:
Preferred stock: shares authorized;800,000 Series B Junior Participating Prefertedks $.001 pa
value; shares authoriz— 95,000; shares issued and outstan— none
Common stock, $.01 par value; shares authorize;608,000; shares issued and outstanding —
43,906,831 in 2009 and 38,275,167 in 2
Additional paic-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) ince
Accumulated defici
Total stockholdel equity

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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December 31,
2009 2008

$ 41,12493 $ 22,342,05
625,00( —
27,838,81 39,186,40
33,722,20 11,982,43

6,281,26: —
1,055,71. 1,136,84.
374,22: 376,97:
111,022,15 75,024,70
24,670,06 1,786,03.
3,871,65! 4,880,47!
2,626,24. 3,000,46.

$142,190,10 $ 84,691,67

$ 18,069,76 $ 5,265,94

15,794,80 8,442,39
839,36: 794,37"
52,53] 40,00(
2,496,53 2,565,28!

37,253,00 17,108,00

230,14! 220,00(
18,440,91 20,937,44

439,06 382,75:
348,571,91  295,207,58
(25,789 103,50

(262,719,14) (249,267,61)
86,266,05  46,426,22
$142,190,10 $ 84,691,67
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BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenues
Product sale
Collaborative and other research and developi
Total revenue

Expenses
Cost of products sol
Research and developme
General and administratiy
Total expense
Loss from operation
Interest and other incon

Net loss
Basic and diluted net loss per common sl

Weighted average shares outstant

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007

$22,92250 $ — % —
51,666,81  56,561,36 71,237,90
7458931  56,561,36 71,237,90
4,543,91. — —
72,301,44  73,326,63  94,051,99
11,481,18  10,399,22 9,465,96:
88,326,54 _ 83,72586  103,517,95
(13,737,22)  (27,164,49)  (32,280,05)
285,68 2,432,92; 3,224,53;
$(13,451,53) $(24,731,57) $(29,055,52)
$ 0.35) $ (0.65 $ (0.8
38,92552  38,062,13 32,770,92
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Balance at December 31, 20C

Net loss

Unrealized gain on marketable
securities availab-for-sale

Comprehensive los

Issue of restricted common stock,
60,000 share

Sale of common stock, 8,315,513
shares, ne

Exercise of stock options, 308,037
shares, ne

Employee stock purchase plan sales,
34,855 share

Stocl-based compensation expel

Balance at December 31, 20C

Net loss

Unrealized loss on marketable
securities availab-for-sale

Comprehensive los

Issue of restricted common stock,
76,536 share

Exercise of stock options, 146,470
shares, ne

Employee stock purchase plan sales,
84,907 share

Stocl-based compensation expel

Balance at December 31, 20C

Net loss
Unrealized loss on marketable
securities availab-for-sale

Comprehensive los

Exercise of stock options, 532,379
shares, ne

Sale of common stock, 5,000,000
shares, ne

Employee stock purchase plan sales,
123,357 share

Purchases of treasury stock, 24,07
shares

Stocl-based compensation expel

Balance at December 31, 20C

BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Accumulated

Additional Other Total Stock-
Common Paid-in Comprehensive Accumulated holders’ Comprehensive
Stock Capital (Loss) Income Deficit Equity Loss
$292,48( $216,310,57 $ 32,46: $(195,480,52) $ 21,155,00
— — — (29,055,52)  (29,055,52) $(29,055,52)
— — 345,59: — 345,59 345,59
$(28,709,93)
60C (600) — — —
83,15¢ 65,034,93 — — 65,118,09
3,08( 1,378,09:i — — 1,381,17:
34¢ 269,32¢ — — 269,67
— 5,691,02! — — 5,691,02i
379,67 288,683,36 378,05 (224,536,04) 64,905,05
- - - (24,731,57)  (24,731,57) $(24,731,57)
— — (274,55() — (274,55() (274,55()
$(25,006.12)
765 (765) — — —
1,46¢ 397,63 — — 399,09¢
84¢ 266,69: — — 267,54(
— 5,860,65: — — 5,860,65:
382,75! 295,207,58 103,50° (249,267,61) 46,426,22
= = = (13,451,53)  (13,451,53) $(13,451,53)
— — (129,29() — (129,29() (129,29)
$(13,580,82)
5,32¢ 2,111,671 — — 2,117,001
50,00( 45,690,19 — — 45,740,19
1,23¢ 192,84¢ — — 194,08(
(241 (155,26 — — (155,50%)
— 5,524,88: — — 5,524,88
$439,06¢ $348571,91 $ (25,78  $(262,719,14) $ 86,266,05

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Operating activities
Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating activities

Depreciation, amortization, and impairm

Stocl-based compensation expel
Changes in operating assets and liabilit

Receivables from collaboratio

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other current a:

Deferred collaboration expen

Accounts payable and accrued expet

Deferred ren

Deferred collaboration reveni

Net cash used in operating activitie

Investing activities

Acquisitions of furniture and equipme
Change in restricted ca

Purchases of marketable securi

Sales and maturities of marketable secur

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activitie

Financing activities

Sale of common stock, net of issuance ¢
Exercise of stock optior

Employee stock purchase plan s
Purchases of treasury stc

Net cash provided by financing activities

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equiv:
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents at end of yei

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Years Ended December 31,

2009

2008

2007

$(13,451,53) $ (24,731,57) $(29,055,52)

1,612,51. 1,625,87 1,369,71:
5,524,88: 5,860,65- 5,691,02:
(21,739,77)  27,14524  (34,571,53)
(6,281,26) — —
81,13( (188,40:) (274,68:)
376,97. 8,960,70! 1,361,82:
20,201,20 (8,956,61)  15,424,18
22,68: 260,00( —
(2,565,28) _ (30,849,72) _ 15,057,19
(16,218,47)  (20,873,82) (24,997,79)
(603,69:) (1,212,27)  (3,343,82)
(625,000) — —
(54,103,22)  (124,459,83) (62,907,14)
4243749 137,066,002  51,217,61
(12,894,41)  11,393,91  (15,033,35)
45,740,19 —  65,118,09
2,117,001 399,09 1,381,17i
194,08( 267,54( 269,67
(155,50%) — —
47,895,76 666,63  66,768,94
18,782,87 (8,813,26)  26,737,79
22,342,05 31,155,32 4,417,52
$41,12493 $ 22,342,05 $31,15532
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BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 — Significant Accounting Policies
The Company

BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (the “Comparig”a biotechnology company that designs, optimiaad develops novel small-molecule
pharmaceuticals that block key enzymes involveidfiectious diseases, cancer, and inflammatory desearhe Company has progressed two
novel compounds into late-stage pivotal clinicals; peramivir, an anti-viral for influenza, amatédesine, a purine nucleoside phosphorylase
(“PNP”) inhibitor for cutaneous T-cell lymphoma (TCL"). Utilizing crystallography and structure-basérug design, the Company
continues to discover additional compounds andagness others through pre-clinical and early dgwelent to address the unmet medical
needs of patients and physicians.

Basis of Presentation

The Company'’s financial statements have beepgped in accordance with accounting principlesegaly accepted in the United States.
Such financial statements reflect all adjustmemts are, in management’s opinion, necessary teptdairly, in all material respects, the
Company’s financial position, results of operaticensd cash flows. There were no adjustments oftaer hormal recurring adjustments.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company generally considers cash equitaterbe all cash held in commercial checking antumoney market accounts or
investments in debt instruments with maturitiethoée months or less at the time of purchase.

Restricted Cash

During 2009, the Company initiated a new coap® card program. As a result, the Company wasinedjto place $625,000 into an inte
bearing money market account to serve as collat@rahe program.

Marketable Securities

The objective of the Compamsyinvestment policy is to ensure the safety andguation of invested funds, as well as maintaitiopgjdity
sufficient to meet cash flow requirements. The Camypplaces its excess cash with high credit quéiigncial institutions, commercial
companies, and government agencies in order to imiamount of credit exposure. Some of the seesithe Company invests in may have
market risk. This means that a change in prevailitgrest rates may cause the principal amourti®frivestment to fluctuate. To minimize
this risk, the Company schedules its investmentis miaturities that coincide with expected cash flweds, thus avoiding the need to redeem
an investment prior to its maturity date. Accordynghe Company does not believe that it has a rizdtexposure to interest rate risk arising
from its investments. Generally, the Company’s gireents are not collateralized. The Company hasaadized any significant losses from
its investments.

The Company classifies all of its marketaldeusities as available-for-sale. Unrealized gaimd lasses on securities available-for-sale are
recognized in other comprehensive income, unlesmegalized loss is considered to be other thapdoeany, in which case the unrealized
loss is charged to operations. The Company pewadigiceviews its securities available-for-sale ébner than temporary declines in fair value
below cost basis and whenever events or changagimstances indicate that the carrying amoumtnoisset may not be recoverable. At
December 31, 2009, the Company believes that this ©b its securities are recoverable in all matedspects.
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The following tables summarize the fair vatii¢he Company’s securities by type at Decembe809. The estimated fair value of the
Company'’s securities was based on independent djnodeket prices and represents the highest priofityevel 1 in the fair value hierarchy
as defined in generally accepted accounting priesip

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Estimated Fair
Amortized Cost Accrued Interest Gains Losses Value
U.S. Treasury securitie $ 21,757,64 $ 35,60 $ 19,10: $(17,500 $21,794,84
Obligations of U.S. government agenc 14,544,25 67,91¢ 9,75k (9,919 14,612,01
Corporate debt securiti 10,635,36 106,85: 7,852 (35,367) 10,714,70
Commercial pape 4,090,72 — 1,28t (45%) 4,091,55
Municipal obligations 1,293,95! 2,34z — (547) 1,295,75.
Total marketable securitit $ 52,321,94 $ 212,71 $ 37,99¢ $(63,779  $52,508,87

At December 31, 2008, the Company had $4043B0f marketable securities, all of which weressified as available-for-sale. These
securities consisted of U.S. Treasury bills anésahrried at estimated fair value. The estimaagd/alue of these securities was based on
independent quoted market prices. At December @18,2he amortized cost of securities availablesfae, including accrued interest, was
$40,868,931. At December 31, 2008, gross unreatia@its on securities available-for-sale were $1@A,Fhere were no gross unrealized
losses on securities available-for-sale at Decer®bge2008.

During 2008, in an effort to minimize investmeisk in light of the unstable economic enviromiehe Company sold two securities
previously classified as held-to-maturity. The garg amount of these securities was $3,469,506¢chviepresented amortized cost. The
proceeds from the sale of these securities wa$8844.

The following table summarizes the schedulediunity for the Company’s securities available-éaile at December 31, 2009 and 2008.

2009 2008
Maturing in one year or le: $27,838,81 $39,186,40
Maturing after one year through two ye 19,819,14 1,786,03.
Maturing after two year 4,850,91. —
Total marketable securitit $52,508,87 $40,972,43

Receivables from Collaborations

Receivables are recorded for amounts duest@tdmpany primarily related to reimbursable redeard development costs. These
receivables are evaluated to determine if any vesar allowance should be established at each tiegatate. At December 31, 2009, the
Company had the following receivables from collattions.

Billed Unbilled Total
U.S. Department of Health and Human Serv $11,521,37.  $18,673,94 $30,195,32
Shionogi & Co. Ltd 1,344,041 — 1,344,04
Mundipharme 1,065,00! 692,82: 1,757,82.
Other 425,01¢ — 425,01¢
Total receivables from collaboratio $14,355,43 $19,366,77 $33,722,20

Included in receivables from the U.S. Departhad Health and Human Services (“HHS”) is $5,833, 3elated to indirect cost rate
adjustments for 2007, 2008, and 2009. These adamtare calculated as the difference betweenctiialandirect costs incurred against the
contract during a calendar year and the indirestcthat are invoiced at a provisional billing rdtging the calendar year. Because these
adjustment amounts represent actual costs incurneerformance of the contract and the costs dogvable, reasonable, and allocable to the
contract, the Company has recorded revenue acgydifhe Company’s calculations of its indirect craes are subject to an audit by the
federal government. The Company does not anticigateiving payment for these indirect cost rateistijients until those audits have been
completed.
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of costeidnined under the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) thed, or market. At December 31, 2009,
inventories consisted of the following:

Supplies $1,187,41!
Raw material 5,093,84
Finished good 3,968,401
Reserve for finished goo (3,968,401
Total inventories $ 6,281,26.

The supplies held on hand as of December@19 are related to peramivir manufacturing supliess, stoppers, and seals) that are
unused and have an alternative future use sholdd shperamivir fail to materialize. The raw méiés on hand as of December 31, 2009 are
related to bulk peramivir active pharmaceuticak@aient (“AP1”) manufactured for Shionogi & Co.,d.t(*Shionogi”) and shipped by the
Company subsequent to year-end.

The Company expenses costs related to thaiptiod of inventories as research and developmeereses in the period incurred until s
time it is believed that future economic benefiéxpected to be recognized, which generally isn¢lupon receipt of regulatory approval.
Upon regulatory approval, the Company capitalizéssequent costs related to the production of irorésd.

The Company determined that the FDA'’s grantihthe Emergency Use Authorization (“EUA”) for pemivir in October 2009 was
objective and persuasive evidence that supportgithtiaation of peramivir inventories manufacturater the issuance of the EUA. As a
result, the Company recorded manufacturing cos&3#68,406 for peramivir finished goods inventd?yior to the issuance of the EUA, all
costs associated with the manufacturing of peramiere expensed as research and development egpense

In preparing the Company’s December 31, 2@téntial statements, the Company evaluated whétlerosts capitalized as inventory
would be recoverable in a future period. Givenl#uk of objective, reliable evidence to supportifetdemand for peramivir, management
concluded that there was no certainty that futatesswill materialize and revenues will exceeddbsts incurred. Therefore, the capitalized
inventory was fully reserved. This reserve was gédirto cost of products sold within the Companya&nents of Operations.

Furniture and Equipment

Furniture and equipment are recorded at &rpreciation is computed using the straight-linehod with estimated useful lives of five
and seven years. Laboratory equipment, office egeif, and software are depreciated over a lifévefyfears. Furniture and fixtures are
depreciated over a life of seven years. Leasehatiavements are amortized over their estimatedulibeés or the remaining lease term,
whichever is less.

In accordance with generally accepted accogrgrinciples, the Company periodically reviewditsniture and equipment for impairment
when events or changes in circumstances indicatatike carrying amount of such assets may notdmsezable. Determination of
recoverability is based on an estimate of undistmiifuture cash flows resulting from the use ofdhset and its eventual disposition. In the
event that such cash flows are not expected tafficient to recover the carrying amount of theedssthe assets are written down to their
estimated fair values. Furniture and equipmenttdisposed of are reported at the lower of carrgimgunt or fair value less cost to sell.

Patents and Licenses

The Company seeks patent protection on atmatly developed processes and products. All pagdated costs are expensed to general
and administrative expenses as incurred, as reaoiigy of such expenditures is uncertain.

Accrued Expenses
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The Company records all expenses in the pénimared. In addition to recording expenses fepines received, the Company estimates
the cost of services provided by third parties aterials purchased for which no invoices have lveeaived as of the balance sheet dates.
Accrued expenses as of December 31, 2009 and 2088sted primarily of development and clinical lteapenses payable to contract
research organizations in connection with the Camisaresearch and development programs.

Income Taxes

The liability method is used in the Compargtsounting for income taxes. Under this methodetetl tax assets and liabilities are
determined based on differences between finanggedrting and tax bases of assets and liabilitielsaae@ measured using the enacted tax rates
and laws that will be in effect when the differemege expected to reverse.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive (Loss) | ncome

Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) incamm@mprised of unrealized gains and losses orritiesuavailable-forsale and is disclost
as a separate component of stockholders’ equity.

Revenue Recognition

Prior to the fourth quarter of 2009, the Compa revenues have generally been limited to liediegs, event payments, research and
development fees, government contracts, and interesme. Revenue from license fees, event paymantsresearch and development fees
are recognized as revenue when the earnings priscessiplete and the Company has no further comignperformance obligations or the
Company has completed the performance obligatiodsthe terms of the agreement. Fees received lindesing agreements that are
related to future performance are deferred andgrized over an estimated period determined by mamagt based on the terms of the
agreement and the products licensed. In the eviicgresse agreement contains multiple deliveraltless Company evaluates whether the
deliverables are separate or combined units ofiatow. Revisions to revenue or profit estimatea assult of changes in the estimated
revenue period are recognized prospectively.

Reimbursements received for direct oupotket expenses related to research and develommststare recorded as revenue in the inc
statement rather than as a reduction in expensesit payments are recognized as revenue upon liievament of specified events if (1) the
event is substantive in nature and the achieveofahe event was not reasonably assured at thetioceof the agreement and (2) the fees
non-refundable and non-creditable. Any event paymesteived prior to satisfying these criteriareorded as deferred revenue. Under the
Company'’s contract with HHS, revenue is recognagdeimbursable direct and indirect costs are necur

During the fourth quarter of 2009, the Compeeognized revenues related to product salesrahgpeir. Sales are recognized when
products are shipped, title and risk of loss haasspd, and collectability is reasonably assured.ddmpany did not provide a right of
product return in conjunction with the sales ofgweivir during 2009.

The Company recorded the following revenueste years ended December 31.:

2009 2008 2007

Product sales

U.S. Department of Health and Human Serv $22,500,00 $ — $ —

Neopharm Group (Israe 397,50¢ — —

Other 25,00( — —
Total product sale 22,922,50 — —
Collaborative and other research and developmeehres

U.S. Department of Health and Human Serv 37,866,79 21,779,74 55,449,09

Shionogi 10,415,49 2,007,92. 8,5615,71.

Mundipharme 3,142,811 4,615,441 5,298,27.

Roche — 27,783,25 1,898,40.

Other 241,71 375,00( 76,41¢
Total collaborative and other research and devetopmrevenue 51,666,81 56,561,36' 71,237,90
Total revenue $74,589,31  $56,561,36°  $71,237,90
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Research and Development Expenses

The Companyg research and development costs are charged émsxgvhen incurred. Advance payments for goodsreices that will b
used or rendered for future research and developatginities are deferred and capitalized. Suchwam®are recognized as expense when the
related goods are delivered or the related sergpeperformed. Research and development expaerndade, among other items, personnel
costs, including salaries and benefits, manufamuecbsts, clinical, regulatory, and toxicology seeg performed by CROs, materials and
supplies, and overhead allocations consisting abua administrative and facilities related codsst of the Company’s manufacturing and
clinical and preclinical studies are performed hiyd-party CROs. Costs for studies performed by GR@ accrued by the Company over the
service periods specified in the contracts andnedéis are adjusted, if required, based upon thep@oy’s on-going review of the level of
services actually performed.

Additionally, the Company has license agreemaeiith third parties, such as Albert Einstein @g# of Medicine of Yeshiva University
(“AECOM"), Industrial Research, Ltd. (“IRL"), andhé University of Alabama at Birmingham (“UAB”), wdii require fees related to
sublicense agreements or maintenance fees. The &gneppenses sublicense payments as incurred uhisare related to revenues that
have been deferred, in which case the expensaefaged and recognized over the related reveraggnition period. The Company
expenses maintenance payments as incurred.

At December 31, 2009, the Company had defaroieboration expenses of approximately $3,000,462se deferred expenses were sub-
license payments, paid to the Company’s acadenningra upon receipt of consideration from varioosimercial partners. These deferred
expenses would not have been incurred without pecéisuch payments from the Company’s commera@siners and are being expensed in
proportion to the related revenue being recogniZéd. Company believes that this accounting treatmppropriately matches expenses with
the associated revenue.

Stock-Based Compensation

All share-based payments, including grantsto¢k option awards and restricted stock awardstesrognized in the Company’s income
statement based on their fair values. Stock-basegbensation cost is estimated at the grant datdbas the fair value of the award and is
recognized as expense on a straight-line basistbgaequisite service period of the award.

Net Loss Per Share

Net loss per share is based upon the weighterthge number of common shares outstanding dtiréhgeriod. Diluted loss per share is
equivalent to basic net loss per share for allgosripresented herein because common equivalemtssiiam unexercised stock options,
outstanding warrants, and common shares expectag issued under the Company’s employee stock psecplan were anti-dilutive.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements infeomity with accounting principles generally acasgin the United States requires the
Company to make estimates and assumptions that #fiee amounts reported in the financial statemeésial results could differ from tho
estimates.

Note 2 — Furniture and Equipment

Furniture and equipment consisted of the faithg at December 31:
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2009 2008

Furniture and fixture $ 588407 $ 535,99
Office equipmen 1,383,822 1,126,28:
Software 1,318,40! 1,116,66
Laboratory equipmer 6,989,961 6,973,15!
Leased equipmel 62,71: 62,71z
Leasehold improvemen 6,175,69 6,100,51

16,519,01 15,915,32
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize (12,647,36) (11,034,84)
Furniture and equipment, n $ 3,871,65. $ 4,880,447

Note 3 — Concentration of Market Risk

The Company’s raw materials, drug substarares drug products are manufactured by a limitedgaf suppliers and some at a single
facility. If any of these suppliers were unabletoduce these items, this could significantly intghe Company’s supply of drugs for further
preclinical testing and clinical trials.

Note 4 — Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses were comprised of the foligveit December 31:

2009 2008
Accrued research and development expe $12,471,20 $6,479,541
Accrued general and administrative exper 470,70: 486,04
Stock purchase plan withholdin 162,26! 138,23
Accrued bonu 2,111,07. 1,011,73
Other 579,55! 326,82
Total accrued expens $15,794,80 $8,442,39

Note 5 — Lease Obligations and Other Contingencies
The Company has the following minimum paymemtder operating lease obligations that existddesiember 31, 2009:

2010 $ 565,35
2011 853,67.
2012 871,33:
2013 872,72!
2014 898,34«
Thereafte 288,43l
Total minimum payment $4,349,86.

The obligations in the preceding table arengrily related to the Company’s leases for buildiigBirmingham, Alabama and Durham,
North Carolina. The lease for the building in Alatmexpires June 30, 2015 and currently requireghhorents of $41,481 i
December 2009 and escalates annually to a mininfd&072 per month in the final year. The Comphayg an option to renew the
Alabama lease for an additional five years at timeent market rate on the date of termination. [Blase for the building in Durham, North
Carolina expires December 31, 2014. This leaseinregjmonthly rents of $24,788 beginning in Janwdr011 and escalates annually to a
minimum of $27,894 per month in the final year.

Rent expense for operating leases was $7635838,819, and $575,538 in 2009, 2008, and 2@&pectively.
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Note 6 — Income Taxes

The Company has incurred net losses sinceiioceand, consequently, has not recorded anyfédderal and state income taxes. The
differences between the Company’s effective tag aaud the statutory tax rate in 2009, 2008, and 208 primarily due to non-deductible
expenses, research and development tax crediténenagses in the valuation allowance.

Significant components of the Company’s defétax assets and liabilities are as follows:

2009 2008
Deferred tax asset
Net federal and state operating los $ 76,907,53 $ 68,863,29
General business cred 32,115,99 32,972,81
Fixed asset 1,224,63 1,101,00:
Reserve for inventorie 1,606,81. —
Accrued expense 997,07: 813,38
Deferred revenu 7,262,70: 8,097,95!
Stocl-based compensatic 3,953,28. 3,079,95.
Total deferred tax asse 124,068,03 114,928,40
Valuation allowanct (124,068,03) (114,928,40)
Total deferred tax liabilitie — —
Net deferred tax asse $ — $ —

The majority of the Company’s deferred taxetsselate to net operating loss and research evelapment carryforwards that can only be
realized if the Company is profitable in futureipds. It is uncertain whether the Company will izalany tax benefit related to these
carryforwards. Accordingly, the Company has prodideull valuation allowance against the net defétiax assets due to uncertainties as to
their ultimate realization. The valuation allowanwad remain at the full amount of the deferred &ssets until it is more likely than not that
the related tax benefits will be realized. The Camps valuation allowance increased by $9,139,632009, $8,476,111 in 2008, and
$16,143,862 in 2007.

As of December 31, 2009, the Company hadedsril operating loss carryforwards of $187,427,A@0state operating loss
carryforwards of $224,656,598, and research andldpment credit carryforwards of $32,115,994, &iivhich expire at various dates from
2010 through 2029.

The Company’s net federal and state operdtisgicarryforwards include $3,913,479 of excesdtmefits related to a deduction from the
exercise of stock options. The tax benefit of thdsguctions has not been recognized in deferreddsats. If utilized, the benefits from these
deductions will be recorded as adjustments to irectar expense and additional paid-in capital.

The Company recognizes the impact of a taitipagn its financial statements if it is moredily than not that the position will be
sustained on audit based on the technical merifsegposition. The Company has concluded thatstdme uncertain tax position pertaining to
its research and development credit carryforwartle. Company has not yet conducted an in-depth gifidy research and development
credits. This study could result in an increasdemrease to the Company’s research and developmregtits. Until studies are conducted of
the Company’s research and development creditapmounts are being recorded as an unrecognizecetafits, separate from the valuation
allowance against deferred tax assets. Any futhamges to the Company’s unrecognized tax benefitddibe offset by an adjustment to the
valuation allowance and there would be no impadhenCompany’s financial statements.

Additionally, utilization of the Company’s neperating loss carryforwards could be subjectsalzstantial annual limitation due to
ownership change limitations described in Secti®? &f the Internal Revenue Code and similar stedggigpions. The annual limitations could
result in the expiration of net operating loss yfamvards before utilization. The Company has rmf@rmed a Section 382 change in control
study since 2007 in order to determine if ther@nsannual limitation on the amount of net operatosg carryforward that can be deducted in
any single year. However, it is not anticipated iray such analysis would have an impact on thef2ayls financial statements as a resu
offsetting changes in the valuation allowance.
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Tax years 2006-2008 remain open to examindtyothe major taxing jurisdictions to which the Quamy is subject. Additionally, years
prior to 2006 are also open to examination to ttierg of loss and credit carryforwards from thosarng. The Company recognizes interest
and penalties accrued related to unrecognizedaagflis as components of its income tax provisitmwever, there were no provisions or
accruals for interest and penalties in 2009, 2@68,2007.

Note 7 — Stockholders’ Equity

In November 2009, the Company entered intbaderwriting Agreement with Morgan Stanley in coati@n with a registered offering of
5,000,000 shares of its common stock at a pubferiofy price of $9.75 per share, resulting in pestenet of offering costs of $45,740,190.
The common stock was issued pursuant to a prospsafaplement filed with the Securities and Exchabgmmission pursuant to Rule 424
(b)(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amendele('Securities Act”).

In August 2007, the Company entered into &lSémd Warrant Purchase Agreement with a groupxisfiag stockholders for the private
placement of 8,315,513 shares of the Company’s aamstock at a purchase price of $7.80 per sharevandnts to purchase 3,159,895
shares of the Company’s common stock at a purgbrése of $0.125 per warrant. The proceeds fronstle, net of offering costs, were
$65,118,092. The exercise price of the warran¥d@&25 per share. All of the warrants remain ountiteg as of December 31, 2009 and will
expire in August 2012. The participants in the $astion included funds managed by Baker Brotheredtments, Kleiner Perkins Caufield &
Byers, EHS Holdings, OrbiMed Advisors, Texas PadBroup Ventures, and Stephens Investment Manageaieof whom were
shareholders of the Company at the time of therioffe Subsequent to the offering, the Company tegsl the shares and warrants under the
Securities Act for resale.

In May 2007, the stockholders approved an amemt to the Company’s third restated certificdticorporation to increase the number
of shares of common stock authorized to issue #6(000,000 to 95,000,000. All shares of the Comjzsacgmmon stock, including the
additional shares authorized by the amendmengauel in rank and have the same voting, dividend,liguidation rights.

In June 2002, the Company’s Board of Directatspted a stockholder rights plan and, pursuameth, issued preferred stock purchase
rights (“Rights”) to the holders of the Company®wmon stock. The Rights have certain anti-takeeffects. If triggered, the Rights would
cause substantial dilution to a person or groupeo$ons who acquires more than 15% (19.9% for &illw. Featheringill, a Director who
owned more than 15% at the time the Rights werénppiace) of the Company’s common stock on terotsapproved by the Board of
Directors. In August 2007, this plan was amendedfwansaction involving funds managed by or iati#ld with Baker Brother Investments
such that they could purchase up to 25% withogg#iing the Rights. The rights are not exercisabté the distribution date, as defined in
the Rights Agreement by and between the Companylamafican Stock Transfer & Trust Company, as Rigkdent. The Rights will expire
at the close of business on June 24, 2012, ulas$inal expiration date is extended or unlesgigets are earlier redeemed or exchanged by
the Company.

Each Right entitles the registered holderuapase from the Company one one-thousandth cdire st Series B Junior Participating
Preferred Stock (“Series B”), par value $0.001gre, at a purchase price of $26.00, subjectjtstent. Shares of Series B purchasable
upon exercise of the Rights will not be redeemaBéeh share of Series B will be entitled to a dévid of 1,000 times the dividend declared
per share of common stock. In the event of liquaateach share of Series B will be entitled tagment of 1,000 times the payment made
per share of common stock. Each share of Seriedl Bave 1,000 votes, voting together with the coomnstock. Finally, in the event of any
merger, consolidation, or other transaction in \Whshares of common stock are exchanged, each ahSegies B will be entitled to receive
1,000 times the amount received per share of constumk. Effective in November 2008, the Companyeased the authorized shares
available under these rights to 95,000 to matctathiborized common shares of 95,000,000 at that timaddition, the Board of Directors
has the authority to issue up to 4,905,000 shdreedesignated preferred stock and to determineigins, preferences, privileges and
restrictions of those shares without further vataaiion by the Company’s stockholders.

Note 8 — Stock-Based Compensation
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Stock I ncentive Plan

As of December 31, 2009, the Company had tacksbased employee compensation plans, the Staehtive Plan (“Incentive Plan”),
which was amended and restated in February 200@@mved by the Company’s stockholders in Aprd20and the Employee Stock
Purchase Plan (“ESPP”), which was amended andedstaFebruary 2008 and approved by the Compastygtkholders in May 2008. In
addition, during 2007, the Company made an inducéigent outside of the Incentive Plan and ESPRdmit a new employee to a key
position within the Company. Stodlased compensation expense of $5,524,883 ($5,140f48%pense related to the Incentive Plan, $22
of expense related to the ESPP, and $149,704 efheeprelated to the inducement grant) was recodjeigeng 2009, while $5,860,654
($5,545,458 of expense related to the Incentiva,FH265,492 of expense related to the ESPP, ar@l #14! of expense related to the
inducement grant) was recognized during 2008 an@o$#5028 ($5,428,505 of expense related to thentha=Plan, $150,245 of expense
related to the ESPP, and $112,278 of expense deflathe inducement grant) was recognized durir@y 20

Under the Incentive Plan, the Company gratoisksoption awards and restricted stock awardisternployees, directors, and consultants.
Stock option awards are granted with an exercige ggual to the market price of the Company’skstiiche date of grant. Stock option
awards granted to employees generally vest 25% @afeyear and monthly thereafter on a pro rat&lm®r the next three years until fully
vested after four years. Stock option awards goattenon-employee directors of the Company genevalst over one year. All stock option
awards have contractual terms of 10 years. Théngeskercise provisions of all awards granted uniderncentive Plan are subject to
acceleration in the event of certain stockholdgrraped transactions, or upon the occurrence obagin control as defined in the Incentive
Plan.

Related activity under the Incentive Plandgalows:

Weighted
Awards Options Average

Available Qutstanding Exercise Price

Balance December 31, 20 820,75 3,952,56! $ 8.94
Plan amendmer 1,200,001 — —
Stock option awards grant (1,721,70i) 1,721,701 9.51
Restricted stock awards grant (50,000 — —
Stock option awards exercis — (308,03) 4.4¢
Stock option awards cancel 342,97¢ (342,979 12.0z
Balance December 31, 20 592,02° 5,023,25! 9.2(
Plan amendmer 1,200,001 — —
Stock option awards grant (1,060,00)) 1,060,00! 3.3¢
Restricted stock awards grani (76,53¢) — —
Stock option awards exercis — (146,47() 2.72
Stock option awards cancel 459,14« (459,144 8.5:
Balance December 31, 20 1,114,633 5,477,64! 8.3(C
Plan amendmer 1,540,00! — —
Stock option awards grant (1,559,23) 1,559,23: 2.02
Stock option awards exercis — (532,379 3.9¢
Stock option awards cancel 677,97" (677,975 12.0¢
Balance December 31, 20 1,773,37. 5,826,52! 6.5¢

For stock option awards granted under therltiee Plan during 2009, 2008, and 2007, the falueavas estimated on the date of grant
using a Black-Scholes option pricing model andassumptions noted in the table below. The weightenlage grant date fair value of these
awards granted during 2009, 2008, and 2007 wa®$$516 and $6.16, respectively. The fair valuthefstock option awards is amortize
expense over the vesting periods using a strdiightexpense attribution method. The following exytions describe the assumptions use
the Company to value the stock option awards gdasiteing 2009, 2008, and 2007. The expected litmiged on the average of the
assumption that all outstanding stock option awartihe exercised at full vesting and the assuopthat all outstanding stock option
awards will be exercised at the midpoint of theent date (if already vested) or at full vestifgnft yet vested) and the full contractual term.
The expected volatility represents an
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average of the implied volatility on the Compangtslicly traded options, the volatility over the stoecent period corresponding with the
expected life, and the Company’s long-term reversiatility. The Company has assumed no expedtédehd yield, as dividends have
never been paid to stock or option holders andmaitibe for the foreseeable future. The weightestaye risk-free interest rate is the implied
yield currently available on ze-coupon government issues with a remaining ternaletguthe expected term.

Weighted Average Assumptions for Stock Option Award Granted under the
Incentive Plan

2009 2008 2007
Expected Life 5.€ b.5 5.7
Expected Volatility 104.2% 78.4% 74.5%
Expected Dividend Yiel 0.C% 0.C% 0.C%
Risk-Free Interest Ra 2.1% 2.8% 4.6%

The total intrinsic value of stock option adsiexercised under the Incentive Plan was $2,786j@€ing 2009, $223,369 during 2008, and
$1,347,010 during 2007. The intrinsic value repnéséhe total proceeds (fair market value at thte déexercise, less the exercise price, ti
the number of stock option awards exercised) reckby all individuals who exercised stock optioraaste during the period.

The following table summarizes, at December2BD9, by price range: (1) for stock option awardtstanding under the Incentive Plan,
the number of stock option awards outstandingr theighted average remaining life and their weighdeerage exercise price; and (2) for
stock option awards exercisable under the Plamtingber of stock option awards exercisable and theighted average exercise price:

Outstanding Exercisable

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Remaining Exercise Exercise
Range Number Life Price Number Price
$0to 3 1,660,74 8.4 $ 1.3¢ 232,67 $ 1.3C
3to6 1,072,55. 7.C 3.6t 746,01! 3.7¢
6t09 1,326,09. 5.7 8.0¢ 1,060,76! 8.21
9to 12 882,57( 7.1 11.3% 621,28 11.3%
12 to 15 860,28( 6.7 12.5: 713,78 12.5:
1510 18 5,16 6.C 15.5¢ 5,062 15.57
18 to 21 2,00( 6.1 18.9¢ 1,95¢ 18.9¢
21t0 24 5,00( 0.3 23.7¢ 5,00( 23.7¢
24 to 27 6,12( 0.2 26.0¢ 6,12( 26.0¢
2710 30 6,00( 0.4 29.2¢ 6,00( 29.2¢
$0 to 30 5,826,52! 7.C 6.5¢ 3,398,66! 8.3¢

The weighted average remaining contractualdffstock option awards exercisable under theniinoe Plan at December 31, 2009 was
5.9 years.

The aggregate intrinsic value of stock opa@rards outstanding and exercisable under the liveeRtan at December 31, 2009 was
$3,223,943. The aggregate intrinsic value represbetvalue (the period’s closing market prices b& exercise price, times the number of
in-the-money stock option awards) that would haserbreceived by all stock option award holders vttt Incentive Plan had they
exercised their stock option awards at the entief/ear.

The total fair value of the stock option awsavested under the Incentive Plan was $5,261,384gi2009, $6,928,011 during 2008, and
$5,613,761 during 2007.

As of December 31, 2009, the number of stqutioo awards vested and expected to vest unddndeative Plan is 5,250,299. The
weighted average exercise price of these stockmptivards is $6.65 and their weighted average réntacontractual life is 6.9 years.
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During 2007, the Company granted 50,000 mstiistock awards under the Incentive Plan withaatgdate fair value of $11.81. During
the first quarter of 2009, 25,000 of these restdcitock awards vested. The remainder of thesdctesdtstock awards will vest during the fi
quarter of 2011.

During the second quarter of 2008, the Comdsy granted 76,536 restricted stock awards uthéeincentive Plan with a grant date fair
value of $3.12. All of these restricted stock avgardsted on December 31, 2009.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company has reserved a total of 600,086eshof common stock to be purchased under the EBRPiich 56,494 shares remain
available for purchase at December 31, 2009. Hégimployees may authorize up to 15% of their gatapurchase common stock at the
lower of 85% of the beginning or 85% of the endimige during six-month purchase intervals. No ntbhen 3,000 shares may be purchased
by any one employee at the six-month purchase daigsio employee may purchase stock having a faikehvalue at the commencement
date of $25,000 or more in any one calendar year.

There were 123,357, 84,907, and 34,855 slwdire@mmon stock purchased under the ESPP in 2@I8B, 2nd 2007, respectively, at a
weighted average price per share of $1.57, $3ridb$a.74, respectively. Expense of $234,692, $865,4nd $150,245 related to the ESPP
was recognized during 2009, 2008, and 2007, reispctCompensation expense for shares purchaseer the ESPP related to the purchase
discount and the “look-back” option were determinsthg a Black-Scholes option pricing model. Théghed average grant date fair values
of shares granted under the ESPP during 2009, 20@82007 were $1.70, $1.34, and $2.98, respegtivel

Stock | nducement Grant

In March 2007, the Company’s Board of Direstapproved a stock inducement grant of 110,00k siption awards and 10,000 restricted
stock awards to recruit a new employee to a keitiposvithin the Company. The stock option award=revgranted in April 2007 with an
exercise price equal to the market price of the gamy’s stock at the date of grant. The awards vest Z&6a@ne year and monthly thereal
on a pro rata basis over the next three years fulitilvested after four years. The stock optioraads have contractual terms of 10 years. The
vesting exercise provisions of both the stock aptivards and the restricted stock awards grantddrithe inducement grant are subject to
acceleration in the event of certain stockholggproved transactions, or upon the occurrencecbhbage in control as defined in the respe:
agreements. The weighted average grant date flaie wh these stock option awards was $5.25. Theceseeprice of the stock option awards
and the grant date fair value of the restrictedlstawards granted under the inducement grant w29$8s of December 31, 2009, 6,666 of
these restricted stock awards have vested.

As of December 31, 2009, there was approxin&& 682,228 of total unrecognized compensaticst pelated to non-vested employee
stock option awards and restricted stock awardstgdaby the Company. That cost is expected to ¢éegrézed as follows: $3,845,303 in
2010, $1,273,265 in 2011, $440,928 in 2012, an@¥B32 in 2013.

Note 9 — Employee Benefit Plans

In January 1991, the Company adopted an eraplogtirement plan (“401(k) Plan”) under Sectiod &) of the Internal Revenue Code
covering all employees. Employee contributions fb@ynade to the 401(k) Plan up to limits establidhethe Internal Revenue Service.
Company matching contributions may be made at igeretion of the Board of Directors. The Companydmenatching contributions of
$378,350, $418,215, and $330,559 in 2009, 2008280, respectively.

Note 10 — Collaborative and Other Research and Delapment Contracts

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (“HH8Y January 2007, the Company was awarded a fourgggdract from HHS to
develop its influenza neuraminidase inhibitor, pexér, for the treatment of seasonal and life-theaing influenza. The contract commits
$102.6 million to support manufacturing, proceslidaion, clinical studies, and other product ap@laequirements for peramivir. The
contract with HHS is defined as a cost-
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plus-fixed-fee contract. That is, the Company itk to receive reimbursement for all costs imedrin accordance with the contract
provisions that are related to the developmeneoamivir plus a fixed fee, or profit. HHS will makeriodic assessments of progress and the
continuation of the contract is based on the Comggrerformance, the timeliness and quality of wilables, and other factors. The
government has rights under certain contract cktsérminate this contract. The contract is teahle by the government at any time for
breach or without cause.

In September 2009, HHS and the Company exé@ut®ntract modification that awarded an additi&7a.2 million to the Company to
complete Phase Il development of intravenous ()i.weramivir, bringing the total award from HHS filhe development of peramivir to
$179.9 million. The modification also extended tlomtract term by 12 months to five years.

Shionogi & Co., Ltd. (“Shionogi). In March 2007, the Company entered into an estetulicense agreement with Shionogi to develog
commercialize peramivir in Japan for the treatnargeasonal and potentially life-threatening hunmdlnenza. Under the terms of the
agreement, Shionogi obtained rights to injectabtenfilations of peramivir in Japan in exchange f&14.0 million up-front payment. The
license provides for potential future milestonergy@ayments (up to $21.0 million) and commerciarmilestone payments (up to
$95.0 million) in addition to double digit (betwe&fl and 20% range) royalty payments on producss#leeramivir. Generally, all payments
under the agreement are nonrefundable and nontatbésli but they are subject to audit. Shionogi béliresponsible for all development,
regulatory, and marketing costs in Japan. The tdrthe agreement is from February 28, 2007 untihieated by either party in accordance
with the license agreement. Either party may teatrin the event of an uncured breach. Shionogiftesght of without cause termination.
In the event of termination all license and rightanted to Shionogi shall terminate and shall relvack to the Company. The Company
developed peramivir under a license from UAB anlll avie sublicense payments to them on the upfraghpent and any future event
payments and/or royalties received by the Compesm Shionogi.

In October 2008, the Company and Shionogi ateéihe license agreement to expand the territmvgred by the agreement to include
Taiwan and to provide rights for Shionogi to penficet Phase Il clinical trial in Hong Kong.

The Company deferred the $14.0 million up-freayment that was initially received from Shionadthis deferred revenue began to be
amortized to revenue in April 2007 and will congntlhrough December 2018. In December 2007, the @oyngeceived a $7.0 million
milestone payment from Shionogi for their initiatiof a Phase Il clinical trial with i.v. peramivin November 2009, the Company received
another $7.0 million milestone payment from Shidrfogtheir filing of a New Drug Application (“NDAY} in Japan to seek regulatory
approval for i.v. peramivir.

Green Cross Corporation (“Green Cross'ln June 2006, the Company entered into an agreemitnGreen Cross to develop and
commercialize peramivir in Korea. Under the terrhthe agreement, Green Cross will be responsitslalfalevelopment, regulatory, and
commercialization costs in Korea. The Company rexba one-time license fee of $250,000. The agreeaiso provides for relatively
insignificant future milestone payments. The liceatso provides that the Company will share inipg@ésulting from the sale of peramivir
Korea, including the sale of peramivir to the Kargmvernment for stockpiling purposes. Furtherm@meen Cross will pay the Company a
premium over its cost to supply peramivir for deyeghent and any future marketing of peramivir praguc Korea. Both parties have the
right to terminate in the event of an uncured malkd&reach. In the event of termination all righdata, materials, products and other
information would be transferred to the Companye TQompany deferred the up-front payment that wesived from Green Cross. This
deferred revenue began to be amortized to revenigegk 2006 and will continue through November 2009.

Mundipharma International Holdings Limited (“Mundiprma”). In February 2006, the Company entered into an skairoyalty
bearing right and license agreement with Mundiplaafon the development and commercialization of@oenpany’s lead PNP inhibitor,
forodesine, for use in oncology. Under the termthefagreement, Mundipharma obtained rights todesme in markets across Europe, Asia,
and Australasia in exchange for a $10.0 millionfigmt payment. In addition, Mundipharma contribu$dd.0 million of the documented out
of pocket development costs incurred by the Compramgspect of the current and planned trials ab@fkeffective date of the agreement and
Mundipharma will conduct additional clinical triad$ their own cost up to a maximum of
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$15.0 million. The license provides for possibiliti/future event payments totaling $155.0 millian &chieving specified development,
regulatory and commercial events (including cersailes level amounts following a product’s laurfch)certain indications. In addition, the
agreement provides that the Company will receiyalt@es (ranging from single digits to mid teenapéd on a percentage of net product
sales, which varies depending upon when certaiigations receive NDA approval in a major marketrdoy and can vary by country
depending on the patent coverage or sales of geo@mpounds in a particular country. Generallypayments under the agreement are
nonrefundable and non-creditable, but they areestihp audit. The Company licensed forodesine d@herd®NP inhibitors from AECOM and
IRL and will owe sublicense payments to these thadies on the upfront payment, event paymentsrayalties received by the Company
from Mundipharma.

For five years, Mundipharma will have a rigiifirst negotiation on existing backup PNP inhioét the Company develops through Phase
[Ib in oncology, but any new PNP inhibitors will bBgempt from this agreement and the Company wilimeall rights to such compounds.
The Company retained the rights to forodesine énuts. and Mundipharma is obligated by the ternth@fagreement to use commercially
reasonable efforts to develop the licensed proauttie territory specified by the agreement. Theeament will continue for the commercial
life of the licensed products, but may be termiddtg either party following an uncured materialdwie by the other party or in the event the
pre-existing third party license with AECOM and IRkpires. It may be terminated by Mundipharma up@mlays written notice without
cause or under certain other conditions as spddifithe agreement and all rights, data, matenqmtsjucts and other information would be
transferred back to the Company at no cost. Iretleat the Company terminates the agreement forrialdefault or insolvency, the
Company could have to pay Mundipharma 50% of ttetscof any independent data owned by Mundipharnae@oerdance with the terms of
the agreement.

The Company deferred the $10.0 million up-frpayment that was received from Mundipharma inr&aty 2006. This deferred revenue
began to be amortized to revenue February 2006viheind in October 2017, which is the date of eafion for the last-to-expire patent
covered by the agreement. The costs reimbursedundiharma for the current and planned trials oddesine were recorded as revenue
when the expense was incurred up to the $10.0omilimit stipulated in the agreement.

The Company is currently in dispute with Mypitirma regarding the contractual obligations ofpidies with respect to certain costs
related to the manufacturing and development afdesine. Notwithstanding, the Company does noébelihat it is responsible for any of
the disputed amounts. The Company is engaged ioimggliscussion to resolve this dispute. The maxrinmotential exposure to the
Company is estimated to be approximately $2.4 onillBecause of the preliminary nature of the disiaus, no amounts have been accrut
of December 31, 2009.

F.Hoffmann-La Roche Ltd. and Hoffman-La Roche (fRoche”). In November 2005, the Company entered into an skauicense witl
Roche for the development and commercializatiothefCompany’s second generation PNP inhibitor, Bf288, for the prevention of acute
rejection in transplantation and for the treatnafrautoimmune diseases. Under the terms of theeagget, Roche obtained worldwide rights
to BCX-4208 in exchange for a $25.0 million up-frpayment and a $5.0 million payment as reimburseifoz a limited supply of material
during the first 24 months of the collaboration.

In May 2008, the Company received notice B@the was exercising the “no cause” terminatiohtrignder the license agreement for
BCX-4208. Upon termination during the fourth quarte2008, the Company recognized the remaining defameenue and deferred expe
related to the license agreement, which was $2@lBmand $8.2 million, respectively.

Albert Einstein College of Medicine of Yeshiva @nsity and Industrial Research, Ltd.(“AECOM” andRL" respectively)ln June 200(
the Company licensed a series of potent inhibiddBNP from AECOM and IRL. The lead drug candiddtem this collaboration are
forodesine and BCX208. The Company has obtained worldwide exclusgts to develop and ultimately distribute theseany other, dru
candidates that might arise from research on timsieitors. The Company has the option to exparedAfreement to include other inventic
in the field made by the investigators or employafeAECOM and IRL. The Company has agreed to usencercially reasonable efforts to
develop these drugs. In addition, the Company besed to pay certain milestone payments for eaeim$éied product (which range in the
aggregate from $1.4 million to almost $4 milliorr redication) for
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future development of these inhibitors, single tigyalties on net sales of any resulting produatienby the Company, and to share
approximately one quarter of future payments reseivom other third-party partners, if any. In ddi, the Company has agreed to pay
annual license fees, which can range from $150t0@%00,000, that are creditable against actuallteg and other payments due to AEC
and IRL. This agreement may be terminated by thm@2my at any time by giving 60 days advance natide the event of material uncured
breach by AECOM and IRL.

The University of Alabama at Birmingham (“UAB™The Company currently has agreements with UABrifluenza neuraminidase and
complement inhibitors. Under the terms of theseagrents, UAB performed specific research for thea@my in return for research
payments and license fees. UAB has granted the @ayngertain rights to any discoveries in thesesaresulting from research developed by
UAB or jointly developed with the Company. The Camnp has agreed to pay single digit royalties oassaf any resulting product and to
share in future payments received from other thady partners. The Company has completed thenedseader the UAB agreements. These
two agreements have initial 25-year terms, areraatizally renewable for five-year terms throughth life of the last patent and are
terminable by the Company upon three months natickby UAB under certain circumstances. Upon teatiom both parties shall cease
using the other parties proprietary and confidémfarmation and materials, the parties shall flgimwn joint inventions and UAB shall
resume full ownership of all UAB licensed produdthere is currently no activity between the Compangt UAB on these agreements, but
when the Company licenses this technology, suéh #e case of the Shionogi and Green Cross agmsia commercialize products
related to these programs, we will owe subliceess Dr royalties on amounts we receive.

Emory University (“Emory”).In June 2000, the Company licensed intellectugb@rty from Emory related to the hepatitis C polyaser
target associated with hepatitis C viral infectiddader the original terms of the agreement, tlseaech investigators from Emory provided
the Company with materials and technical insighd the target. The Company has agreed to pay Esiogje digit royalties on sales of any
resulting product and to share in future paymesdeived from other third party partners, if anyeT@ompany can terminate this agreeme
any time by giving 90 days advance notice. Upomieation, the Company would cease using the licgtsehnology.

Note 11 — Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited) (In thousands, except per share)

First Second Third Fourth

2009 Quarters
Revenue: $ 4,35¢ $ 4,787 $ 10,54¢ $54,89¢
Net (loss) incomi (9,292 (8,689 (20,627 15,15!
Diluted net (loss) income per sh: (.29) (.23 (.28 .37

2008 Quarters
Revenue: $ 10,76¢ $ 2,65¢ $ 8,89« $34,24(
Net (loss) incomi (13,099 (22,709 (8,995 10,07(
Diluted net (loss) income per sh: (-39 (.33 (-29 .2€

Note 12 — Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The Company adopted the provisions of the [gimgrissues Task Force (“EITF”) guidance relateddtlaborative arrangements on
January 1, 2009. This guidance defines collabagativangements and establishes reporting requitsrf@rtransactions between participants
in collaborative arrangements. This guidance has la@plied retrospectively to all prior periodsgeneted for significant collaborative
arrangements existing as of the effective date N&ges 1 and 10 for additional information.

The Company adopted the provisions of the FA&8f Position (“FSP”) relating to investmentsdanuary 1, 2009. This FSP amends the
other-than-temporary recognition guidance for deaturities and requires additional interim and ahdisclosures of other-than-temporary
impairments on debt and equity securities. Pursigatite new guidance, an other-than-temporary impait has occurred if a company does
not expect to recover the entire amortized cossliEshe security. In this situation, if the comyadoes not intend to sell the impaired
security, and it is not more likely than not it Mdk required to sell the security before the recgwf its amortized cost basis, the amount of
the other-than-temporary impairment recognizedaimiegs is limited to the portion attributed
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to the credit loss. The remaining portion of thieestthan-temporary impairment is then recordedlireiocomprehensive income (loss). This
FSP has been applied to existing and new secuaigi@$ January 1, 2009. The implementation of 8P was not material to the Company’s
financial statements.

In 2009, the Company adopted the provisionh®FASB Statement on subsequent events. Thiergat provides authoritative
accounting literature and disclosure requirememtsrfaterial events occurring subsequent to thenlbalaheet date and prior to the issuanc
the financial statements. The implementation of 8tatement had no effect on the Company’s findstaégements.

In 2009, the FASB ratified EITF guidance rethto revenue recognition that amends the prexgaidance on arrangements with multiple
deliverables. This guidance provides principles application guidance on whether multiple delivéealexist, how the arrangements should
be separated, and how the consideration shoultldmaged. It also clarifies the method to allocegeenue in an arrangement using the
estimated selling price. This guidance is effectawethe Company on January 1, 2011. The Compaayrigntly assessing the impact of this
guidance on its financial statements.

Note 13 — Subsequent Events

In January 2010, the Company announced thah8bi had received marketing and manufacturing@gd for i.v. peramivir to treat
patients with influenza in Japan. As a consequehdas filing, the Company will receive a milestopayment of $7.0 million during the first
quarter of 2010.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm on Financial Statements

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance sbhé&ioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. as of Decen3lie2009 and 2008, and the related
statements of operations, stockholders’ equitycash flows for each of the three years in the gegioded December 31, 2009. These
financial statements are the responsibility of@menpany’s management. Our responsibility is to egpian opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance wittsthadards of the Public Company Accounting Ovéaidgpard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on lasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptesiused and significant estimates made by marageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thatadits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the financial statements reddrto above present fairly, in all material respethe financial position of BioCryst
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. at December 31, 2009 and, 20@Bthe results of its operations and its cashidlfor each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2009, in conformity Wwit8. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with téwedards of the Public Company Accounting Oversigdrd (United States), BioCryst
Pharmaceuticals, Inc.’s internal control over ficiahreporting as of December 31, 2009, based iberier established imternal Control—
Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission and our report dateccmg, 201!
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Birmingham, Alabama
March 9, 2010
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm on Internal Control

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

We have audited BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Incterimal control over financial reporting as of Ded®m31, 2009, based on criteria
established internal Control—Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsoring OrganizatidiiBe Treadway Commission
(the COSO criteria). BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, fnmanagement is responsible for maintaining eifffednternal control over financial
reporting, and for its assessment of the effecegsrof internal control over financial reportinglirded in the accompanying Management'’s
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporti®ur responsibility is to express an opinion aa @ompany’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadwdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8dé@/nited States). Those stande
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenalteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal cordv@r financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, testing and etiadpthe design and operating effectiveness ofiiraiecontrol based on the assessed risk, anc
performing such other procedures as we considereessary in the circumstances. We believe thaawdit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over fircgal reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainky reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financétkestents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and @jge reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the companygseds that could have a material effect on then@izé statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadegjbecause of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. niaimed, in all material respects, effective intéuntrol over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2009, based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the balance shi

of BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. as of Decembe2BD9 and 2008, and the related statements oatipes, stockholders’ equity, and cash
flows for each of the three years in the periodeghbecember 31, 2009 of BioCryst Pharmaceuticats,dnd our report dated March 9, 2010
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP
Birmingham, Alabama
March 9, 2010
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS
ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain a set of disclosure controls amt@dures that are designed to ensure that infmeglating to BioCryst Pharmaceuticals,
Inc. required to be disclosed in our periodic fignunder the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, anded (the “Exchange Act”), is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported in a timely erammder the Exchange Act of 1934. We carried awaluation as required by
paragraph (b) of Rule 13a-15 or Rule 15d-15 unldeBxchange Act, under the supervision and withptirécipation of management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief kirtial Officer, of the effectiveness of the desagual operation of our disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) oz Rbidl15 under the Exchange Act). Based upon that evafyahe Chief Executive Offic
and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as etBmber 31, 2009, our disclosure controls and pges are effective. We believe that our
disclosure controls and procedures will ensureitifatmation required to be disclosed in the repdited or submitted by us under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarizedegutited within the time periods specified in thkes and forms of the Securities and
Exchange Commission, and include controls and plares designed to ensure that information requodek disclosed by us in such reports
is accumulated and communicated to our managemnehtding our Chairman and Chief Executive Offieeid Chief Financial Officer, as
appropriate to allow timely decisions regardinguiegd disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Management of BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Isicesponsible for establishing and maintaining adegjinternal control over financial
reporting and for the assessment of the effectis®éinternal control over financial reporting. defined by the Securities and Exchange
Commission, internal control over financial repogtis a process designed by, or under the supenvigiour principal executive and princi
financial officers and effected by our Board of &itors, management and other personnel, to progas®nable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepacet of the consolidated financial statements iroagance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

Our internal control over financial reportiisgsupported by written policies and procedures (thapertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fagfect our transactions and dispositions of ouetssg2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to perapiaation of the consolidated financial statemangccordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that our receipts argkaditures are being made only in accordance witihosizations of our management and
directors; and (3) provide reasonable assuran@dat prevention or timely detection of unauthedzacquisition, use or disposition of our
assets that could have a material effect on thedatimlated financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, interoahtrol over financial reporting may not preventdetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periagssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In connection with the preparation of our aarfinancial statements, management has under@mkassessment of the effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting as of Batber 31, 2009, based on criteria establishedt@rrial Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission (the COSO Frameworlgndfjement’'s assessment
included an evaluation of the design of our inteowatrol over financial reporting and testing bétoperational effectiveness of those
controls.
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Based on this assessment, management hasided¢hat as of December 31, 2009, our internatrcbover financial reporting was
effective. Management believes our internal corarar financial reporting will provide reasonabsarance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanteWiS. generally accepted accounting
principles.

Ernst & Young LLP, the independent registgoatllic accounting firm that audited our financiedtements included in this report, has
issued an attestation report on the Company’sriaterontrol over financial reporting, a copy of wtiappears on page 71 of this annual
report.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There have been no changes in our interndtaasver financial reporting that occurred durihg quarter ended December 31, 2009 that
have materially affected, or are reasonably likelynaterially affect, our internal control overdimcial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART 1lI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

The information required by this item is satti under the captiorftems to be Voted on — 1. Election of Director&Executive
Officers,” “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Refping Compliance”and“Corporate Governance’in our definitive Proxy Statement for
the 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and inceaifexl herein by reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is s&thi under the captiori€ompensation Discussion and Analysis,” “Summaryn@aensation
Table,” “Grants of Plan-Based Awards in 2009,” “Ostanding Equity Awards at December 31, 2009,” “2@Dgtion Exercises and Stock
Vested,” “Potential Payments Upon Termination ora@ige in Control” and “2009 Director Compensatioiiri our definitive Proxy
Statement for the 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockhiddand incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL
OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTE RS

The information required by this item is s&ti under the captiori€quity Compensation Plan Informatiordnd “ Security Ownership of
Certain Beneficial Owners and Managemeint’our definitive Proxy Statement for the 2010 AahMeeting of Stockholders and incorpore
herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is sati under the captiori€ertain Relationships and Related Transactiorasid “Corporate
Governance in our definitive Proxy Statement for the 2010rral Meeting of Stockholders and incorporated Inelogireference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is s&thi under the captiotitems to be Voted on — 3. Ratification of Appoiatrof Independent
Registered Public Accounta” in our definitive Proxy Statement for the 2010 AahMeeting of Stockholders and incorporated hebgin
reference.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) Financial Statements

Page in
Form 10K
The following financial statements appear in Iteiwf 8his Form 1-K:

Balance Sheets at December 31, 2009 and 51
Statements of Operations for the years ended Dese&ih 2009, 2008 and 20 52
Statements of Stockhold’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2009, 20@82007 53
Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended Deme8il 2009, 2008 and 20 54
Notes to Financial Statemer 55
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfingn on Financial Statemer 70
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfiiimgn on Internal Contrc 71

No financial statement schedules are included lz=cthe information is either provided in the fin@hstatements or is not required under
related instructions or is inapplicable and sudiedales therefore have been omitted.

(b) Exhibits. See Index of Exhibits
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 1B5¢d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, tkgiRrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduatyp authorized on March 9, 2010.

BIOCRYST PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

By: /s/ Jon P. Stonehous
Jon P. Stonehous
Chief Executive Office

Pursuant to the requirements of the Secuiitiehange Act of 1934, this report has been sidnebolv by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities indicated/arch 9, 2010:

Signature

/s/ Jon P. Stonehouse

(Jon P. Stonehous

/s/ Stuart Gran

(Stuart Grant

/s/ J. Michael Mills

(J. Michael Mills)

/sl Stephen R. Biggar

(Stephen R. Biggar, M.D., Ph.LC

/sl Stanley C. Erck

(Stanley C. Erck

/s/ William W. Featheringill

(William W. Featheringill)

/s/ John L. Higgins

(John L. Higgins

/sl Zola P. Horovitz

(Zola P. Horovitz, Ph.D.

/s/ Charles A. Sanders

(Charles A. Sanders, M.C

/sl Beth C. Seidenberg

(Beth C. Seidenberg, M.D

Title(s)

President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officed dreasure

Controller and Principal Accounting Officer

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Number

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1

4.2

10.1&

10.2&

10.3&

10.4&

10.5&

10.6&

10.7#

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Description
Third Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Retint. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1the& Company’s Form 8-K
filed December 22, 200!

Certificate of Amendment to the Third Restated iflestte of Incorporation of Registrant. Incorpormitay reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to the Compalr’'s Form K filed July 24, 2007

Certificate of Increase of Authorized Number of &saof Series B Junior Participating Preferred IStbtcorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Comp’s Form &K filed November 4, 200¢

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Registrant effe@iember 29, 2008. Incorporated by reference taliix8.2 to the
Compan’s Form K filed November 4, 200¢

Rights Agreement, dated as of June 17, 2002, bybatwleen the Company and American Stock Transfé€rust Company, as
Rights Agent, which includes the Certificate of @@stion for the Series B Junior Participating Bredd Stock as Exhibit A
and the form of Rights Certificate as Exhibit Bcdnporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the ComyfsaForm 8-A filed

June 17, 200z

Amendment to Rights Agreement, dated as of Augug087. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2hef Company’s
Form 1(-Q filed August 9, 2007

Stock Incentive Plan, as amended and restatedigédeebruary 28, 2008. Incorporated by referencgpgpendix A to the
Compan’s Definitive Proxy Statement, filed April 16, 20(

Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended andekstéctive February 28, 2008. Incorporated bgregice to Appendix B
to the Compar’s Definitive Proxy Statement, filed April 16, 20(

Retention Bonus Agreement between BioCryst Pharotmeds, Inc. and Stuart Grant dated May 21, 20@8orporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.25 of the Comp’s Form 1i-Q filed August 8, 200¢

Retention Bonus Agreement between BioCryst Pharaigeds, Inc. and David McCullough dated May 21020Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.26 of the Comp’s Form 1i-Q filed August 8, 200¢

Employment Letter Agreement between BioCryst Phaguticals, Inc. and William P. Sheridan dated JL@e2008.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.27 of tle@panys Form 1+Q filed August 8, 200¢

Consulting Agreement between BioCryst Pharmacestitiac. and J. Claude Bennett, M.D. dated Jun€Q@8. Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.28 of the Comp’s Form 1-Q filed August 8, 200¢

Agreement dated January 3, 2007, between BioChatrRaceuticals, Inc. and the Department of Headthiuman Services,
as amended by Amendment number 1 dated Janua®®3,ahd Amendment number 2 dated May 11, 2007tiidsromitted
pursuant to request for confidential treatmentcphporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Canys Form 10-Q filed
August 9, 2007

Amendment #3 to the Agreement between BioCrystiRheeuticals, Inc. and the Department of Healthtdmehan Services,
dated October 2, 2007. Incorporated by referenéextobit 10.6 of the Compa’'s Form 1K filed March 4, 2008

Amendment #4 to the Agreement between BioCrystiRaeeuticals, Inc. and the Department of Healthtmehan Services
dated April 3, 2008. Incorporated by referencebikit 10.29 of the Compar's Form 1-Q filed August 8, 200¢

Amendment #5 to the Agreement between BioCrystiiaeeuticals, Inc. and the Department of Healthtdmehan Services
dated July 2, 2008. Incorporated by reference tailiix10.30 of the Compar's Form 1-Q filed August 8, 200¢

Amendment #6 to the Agreement between BioCrystiRaeeuticals, Inc. and the Department of Healthtmehan Services
dated August 18, 2008. Incorporated by referendextabit 10.1 of the
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Number

10.12

(10.13)

10.14

10.15

(10.16)
10.17&
10.18&

10.19&

10.20&

10.21&

10.22#

10.23#

10.24&

10.25&

10.26

10.27

Description

Compan’s Form &K filed November 7, 200¢

Amendment #7 to the Agreement between BioCrystiRaeeuticals, Inc. and the Department of Healthtmehan Services
dated November 17, 2008. Incorporated by refereméshibit 10.12 of the Compa’s Form 1+-K filed March 6, 2009

Amendment #8 to the Agreement between BioCrystiiaeeuticals, Inc. and the Department of Healthtdmehan Services
dated March 13, 200!

Amendment #9 to the Agreement between BioCrystiRaeeuticals, Inc. and the Department of Healthtmehan Services
dated September 18, 2009. Incorporated by referenEghibit 10.1 of the Compa’s Form 1-Q filed November 6, 200!

Amendment #10 to the Agreement between the Comaadythe U.S. Department of Health & Human Servidated
October 15, 2009. Incorporated by reference to lkhD.2 of the Compars Form 1-Q filed November 6, 200!

Order for Supplies or Services from the U.S. Departt of Health & Human Services, dated Novemb&0409.
Annual Incentive Plan. Incorporated by referencEsthibit 10.1 of the Compars Form 1-K filed March 4, 2008
Executive Relocation Policy. Incorporated by refeeto Exhibit 10.2 of the Compé’s Form 1-K filed March 4, 2008

Amendment to Employment Letter Agreement for St@eint Dated July 23, 2007. Incorporated by refegen Exhibit 10.3 ¢
the Compan’'s Form 1+K filed March 4, 2008

Form of Notice of Grant of Non-Employee DirectortAmatic Stock Option and Stock Option Agreementotporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Comp’s Form 1+K filed March 4, 2008

Form of Notice of Grant of Stock Option and Stoghtion Agreement. Incorporated by reference to ExHi0.5 of the
Compan’s Form 1-K filed March 4, 2008

License, Development and Commercialization Agredrdated as of February 28, 2007, by and betwee@dmepany and
Shionogi & Co., Ltd. Incorporated by reference tdibit 10.4 to the Company’s Form 10-Q filed May, 2007. (Portions
omitted pursuant to request for confidential tresiiy)

First Amendment to License, Development and Comialeration Agreement, effective as of September288, between the
Company and Shionogi & Co., Ltd. Incorporated Hgmence to Exhibit 10.19 to the Company’s Form 16kkd March 6,
2009. (Portions omitted pursuant to request fofidential treatment.

Employment Letter Agreement dated April 2, 2007 abg between the Company and David McCullough.rpmated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Comp’s Form 1-Q filed May 10, 2007

Amended and Restated Employment Letter Agreemeatideebruary 14, 2007, by and between the Compadhyen P.
Stonehouse. Incorporated by reference to ExhibtZLé the Company’s Form 10-K for the year endedédnber 31, 2006,
filed March 14, 2007

Warehouse Lease dated July 12, 2000 between RBP anLAlabama Limited Liability Company and the Redgint for
office/warehouse space. Incorporated by referemé&shibit 10.8 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for teea@nd quarter ending
June 30, 2000 filed August 8, 20(

Third Amendment to Lease Agreement dated Augug0d@7, by and between Riverchase Capital LLC, aidddimited liability

company, Stow Riverchase, LLC, a Florida limitebllity company, as successor landlord to RBP, land the Company.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of
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Number

10.28

10.29&

10.30

10.31#

10.32#

(10.33%)

10.34#

10.35

10.36

10.37&

(23)

(31.1)
(31.2)
(32.1)

(32.2)

Description

Compan’s Form 1-Q filed August 9, 2007

Stock and Warrant Purchase Agreement dated asgishié, 2007, by and among BioCryst Pharmaceutitaisand each of
the Investors identified on the signature pagesetbelncorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1h&f Company’s Form 8-filed
August 7, 2007

Employment letter agreement between BioCryst Pheguticals, Inc. and Stuart Grant dated July 23720t%corporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Comp’s Form &K filed July 26, 2007

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of Februar300pb, by and among BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Beker Bros.
Investments, L.P., Baker Biotech Fund II, L.P., 8aBros. Investments Il, L.P., Baker Biotech Fuh¢¥), L.P., Baker/Tisch
Investments, L.P., Baker Biotech Fund lll, L.P.kBaBiotech Fund I, L.P., Baker Biotech Fund Il)(Z.P. and 14159, L.P.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the @amy's Form K filed February 17, 200¢

Development and License Agreement dated as of Bepdy 2006, by and between BioCryst Pharmacestitat. and
Mundipharma International Holdings Limited (Portsoomitted pursuant to request for confidentialttresat.) Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Forid/8-filed May 2, 2006. (Portions omitted pursuanotréquest for confidenti
treatment.’

License Agreement dated as of June 27, 2000, bymnmhg Albert Einstein College of Medicine, IndigtResearch, Ltd. and
BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc., as amended by itis¢ Amendment Agreement dated as of July 26, 20G2the Second
Amendment Agreement dated as of April 15, 20050tparated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the ComypsaForm 8-K filed
November 30, 2005. (Portions omitted pursuant qouest for confidential treatmen

Third Amendment Agreement by and among Albert Eims€ollege of Medicine, Industrial Research, ladd BioCryst
Pharmaceuticals, Inc., dated as of December 18.2B0rtions omitted pursuant to request for canitdcal treatment.

Development and License Agreement dated as of NbgeB, 2005, by and between BioCryst Pharmacédsitice. and
F.Hoffmann-La Roche Ltd and Hoffmann-La Roche [fRortions omitted pursuant to request for confitéiteatment.)
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to thenpany’s Form 8-K/A filed December 22, 2005. (Pari@mitted pursuant to
request for confidential treatmen

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of Decemb@008, by and among BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Kieiner Perkins
Caufield & Byers, Texas Pacific Group Ventures &RV, LLC. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 40lthe Company’s
Form &K filed December 16, 200!

Nomination and Observer Agreement, dated as of iDbee 16, 2005, by and between BioCryst Pharmaadsfinc. anc
Kleiner Perkins Caufield & Byers. Incorporated leference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Form 8&df December 16,
2005.

Severance Agreement and General Release betwebdadllidarwin and BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc.eddecember 31,
2008. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3theeCompan’'s Form 1K filed March 6, 2009

Consent of Ernst & Young, Independent Registerddi®éccounting Firm.

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursiiao Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursiiao Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sar-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002
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Confidential treatment request¢
Confidential treatment grante
Management contract

Filed herewith
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Exhibit 10.13

AMENDMENT OF SOLICITATION/MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT  |1. COMTRACT ID CODE PAGE DFIPAG:EE
-1 1
2. AMENDMENT/MODIFICATION NO: 3, EFFECTIVE DATE (4. REQUISITIONFURC 5. PROJECT NO. (if applicabie)
Elght (8) See block 16C A NIA
6. ISELED BY . CODE 7. ADMINISTERED BY (i atfar than item 6] CODE| =

Blomedizal Advanced Rasaarch and Devalopmant Autharity
U.5. Departmant of Health and Human Services

320 Independenca Avenue, SW Room G640

Washinglon, DG 20201

B. HAME AND ADDRESS OF CONTRACTOR (No., stroet, counly, Siale and ZIF Code) |aA. AMENDMENT OF SOLICITATION NO.
BioGryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. BE. DATED {SEE [TEM 11]
2190 Partoway Lake Driva

Birmingham, AL 35244
DUNS 61-819-4600
TIN 62-1413174

1MI-I§EIFIG.ATIDHOF CONTRACT/ QORDER
X HHEO1 002007 00032C

_ 108. DATED (SEE ITEM 13)
| GopE [FACILITY CODE 01-03-07
11, THIS ITEM ONLY APPLIES TO AMENDMENTS OF SOLICITATIONS

#~ The sbove numbsamnd solichibion @ smended as sat forth b [lem 4. The hour and date spacied foe raseipd of Offars ™ |8 axtandod, = Is not exfended,

Offers must acknoviadge recalky; of this smendrmant peiar 1o Ihe hour and cale specifed in e solickation of @3 amended, by ona of the felpwing methoda: (a) By sompisting Rerms B and
15, and retuming : copies af tha amandment; {) By acknoadedging neceipt of this amandmenl on each copy of the affer submad, o (£} BY eeparabs beser o
flegram which inclues a refesence b Ihe soliciafion and amendment nimbars. FAILURE OF YOUR ACKNOWLEDGEMENT TO BE RECEIVED AT THE PLACE DESIGNATED FOR
THE RECE®T OF OFFERS PRIOR TO THE HOUR AND DATE SPECIFIED MAY RESULT IN REJECTION OF YOUR OFFER. If by vifue of iiis amendment, you desine lo changa an
aifer aready submitied, such changs may Bs mas by tslegrarm of ister, providad sach isegmm o [ater makes reference to the scicitation and s amandment, and is moeived pricr b
18 apening kour and date specified.

12, ACCOUNTING AND APPROPRIATION CATA (If requinesd)

S50CC:; DoCH L Tike LOGE CANS o

13, THIS ITEM APPLIES ONLY TO MODIFICATIONS OF CONTRACTS/ORDERS; IT MODIFIES THE CONTRACTIORDER NO. AS DESCRIEED IN ITEM
14.

A THIS CHANGE ORDER I5 ISSUED PURSUANT TO: (Spesily autbonly) THE CHANGES SET FORTH IN [TEM 14 ARE MADE IN THE
CONTRACT OHDER MO, [N ITEM 104,

office, sppvopniafion cafa, ele) SET FORTH [N ITEM 14, PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF FAR 43.103(b).
) THIS SUPPLEMENTAL AGREENMENT |5 ENTERED INTO PURSLIANT TO AUTHORITY OF:
X FAR 52,243.2 Changas —Cost Relmbursement

o, OTHER (Spacity fpe of moditication and authoriy)

B THE ABOVE NUMSERED CONTRACTIORDER IE MODIFIED 10 REFLECT THE ADMNISTRATIVE CHANGES (such as changes in paying
c

E. WFORTANT: Contractor [] Is not, [X] s -r.aquu'ad to shnmﬂmmmt and return 2 copies io the issuing office.
14. DESCRIPTION OF MODIFICATION (Orpanieed by LICF secfizn haadings, Inckiding saictafivatanteac subicl aiatiér whar feasisl)

PURPOSE: Extend the dus date for the Feasibility Plan.
This modification axtends the due date for Miestone 3 Feasiility Plar listed on page 10 of the contract in Article F.3, Cantract Deliverablas to March 31, 2008,

Thae total contract amaunt remaing unchenged, ($102 6561 428)
Thiz contract complation date remains unchanged. (December 31, 201C)
Excant a5 provided neredn, all tarms and conditions referanced in ibem 84 or 104, remain in full farce and effeat.

15A. NAME AND TITLE OF SIGNER (Typs o prinf) T6A. NAME AND TITLE OF CONTRACTING OFFICER. (Type or prin)
| B - .
[156. CONTRACTOR/OFFEROR 18C. DATE SIGNED | 168. UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 16C. DATE SIGNED
- B"" e —
 (Signature af person authonized fo sign) (Sigrature of Gonltracting Gificer)

MSM T540-01-152-8070 ’ OME No. 09200118 STANDARD FORNM 30 {RE"-I' 10-83]



Exhibit 10.16

ORDER FOR SUPPLIES OR SERVICES PAGE OF PAGES
RTANT:; Mark all packages and papers with contract andfor order numbars, 1 2
" DATE OF ORDER [ CONTRACT NO. (IF ANY) 6_SHIP 10
ovember 4, 2009 HHS0 100201000001 &. NAME OF CONSIGMEE
3. ORDER NO. 4. REQLISITION/REFERENCE NO. TBD
001 0523204 b, STREET ADDRESS
I5. ISSUING OFFICE {Address correspondence fo) )
HHS\WOS\ASPRIBARDA c GITY H. STATE |e. ZIP CODE
- TO: T SHIP VIA
ja. NAME OF CONTRACTOR
BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 8. TYPE OF ORDER
b, COMPANY NAME
[ e PurcHaAsE b. DELIVERY - Except for biling
I, STREET ADDRESS RENGE YOUR: inatructions on the reversa, this
Pl fummish the following on th defvery order is subject to
2190 Parkway Lake Drive - m::'mﬂ conditions ;poﬁfngd on ingtructions contained on this side
. cImy o STATE |1 2P ides of this order and on the attach ondy of this form and is issued sub)
E-i'l‘l‘llnﬂham AL 35244-1879 heats, i any, hﬂu*ﬂ dalivery to the terms and conditions of tha
— _ — _Bbove-numbered confrack |
1. ACCOUNTING AND APPROPRIATION DATA 0. REQUISITIONING OFFICE
Appr: TEX0140; FY. 2010; HHS\OSWSPRI\BARDA
CAN: 1994009, O.C.: 26201; Value: $22,500,000.00
1. BUSINESS CLASSIFICATION (Check aporopriale mfﬁ 2. F.0.B. POINT
& SMALL D b. OTHER THAN SMALL c. DISADVANTAGED E:I g. SERVICE- Destination
4 WOMEN-OWNED || e HUBZone [ . EMERGING SMALL DISABLED
BUSINESS VETERAN-CVWHNED
| 13, PLACE OF: 14, GOVERNMENT B/LND. [15. DELIWER TO F.0.B. PGINT ON |16, DISCOUNT TERMS
. N , ACCEFTAM OR BEFORE (Daie)
o INSP - NIA See Schedule NiA
17. SCHEDULE (See Reverse for Refections)
QUANTITY uMIT UNIT AMOUNT QUANTITY
I'I'EE}ND A SUPPLIES ?S SERVICES GROERED PRICE AGGEPTED
" (&) {d} (%) n )
0001 |Treatment Courses (TC) of IV peramivir 10,000 TC | $2250.00 [522,500,000.00
| Shipping information will be provided in the Quality Agreement

be provided to the contractor in accordance with the contract
pecified in ltam 2 above)

Remainder of this block intenfionally left blank]

-

5. SHIFFING POINT 19. GROSS SHIPPING WEIZHT [20. INVOICE NO.
SEE BILLING 21, MAIL INVOICE T HT(hTOT.
wrracmon | ST NA 14 roone
B RoseMary Mann pages)
o b. STREET ADDRESS (or P.O. Box) .
e 330 Independence Ave. SW, Room G840 j'
: e CITY d. STATE |e ZIP CODE
Washington L . _ DC 20201 e 1
T T 5. NAME
22 UNITED STATES OF F Rmimmﬂ.!ann
~ AMERICA BY (Signature) TITLE: CONTRACTING/ORDERING OFFICER
AUTHORIZD FOR LOCAL REPRODUGCTION v ! OPTIONAL FORM 347 (REV. 4/2006)

PREVIOUS EDITIONS NOT USABLE Prescribed by GSAFAR 48 CFR 53,213




Contract No.HHS01002010000(¢
Task/Delivery Order No. O(
November 4, 20C
Page2 of
Product will be delivered to:

Service Supply Center
Bldg 14

Perry Point, MD 21902
POC.: Steve Pearson
#410-642-2244

The Contactor is required to sign acceptance efthsk/Delivery Order and return one copy to thatating Officer.

Signature Date




1. THIS COMTRAGT 1= A RATED ORDER
AWARDI/CONTRACT UMDER DPAS (15 CFR 700} ..-}

T CONTRALCT (Proe. sl ngeat.)] MO, 3. EFFEGTIVE DATE 4. REQUISITIONPURCHASE REQUESTIPR
HHSO1 002010000011 11-04-2008
5. [GSUED BY CDDE[ HHE/OS/ASPR/BAR |6 A0MNISTERED OY (¥ cdher than itam & CODE

HHSOSASPRIBARDA

330 INDEFPEMDENCE AVE. SW

ROOM GE40

WASHINGTON DC 20201
7 HAME AND ADDRESS OF CONTRALTOR (No., sheal, comnn: St and 21F Codal B DELIVERY

[roe omigin [otHer ¢see beisug

BIOCRYST PHARMACEUTICALS, INC
2190 PARKWAY LAKE DRIVE
BIRMINGHANM AL 352441879

5. DISCOUNT FOR PROMPT PATWMENT

10, SUBMIT INVOICES ITEM
o capies prlass odhendss
specitied) TO THE L_F,.ﬂ
CODE [F.-’.EIUT‘Ir CODE ADDRESS SHOWH IN
11, GHIF TOMIARK FOR CODE 12. FAYMENT WILL BE MADE BY CODE
SAME AS ITEM T
13. AUTHORITY FOR USING OTHER THAN FULL AND OPEM COMPETTICH: 14, ACCOLNTING AND APPROPRIATION DATA

Ciouse. 2500 ) [1a1usc asaig

154, ITEM NO. 158. SUPPLIES/SERVICES

15C. QUANTITY  [1G0.UNIT[ISE. UNIT PRICE 15F, AMGUNT

INTRAVENOUS ANTIVIRAL DRUG

Please see Schedule for additional information

15G. TOTAL AMOUNT OF CONTRACT | 4 §

16. TABLE OF CONTENTS

_n;:c':._| SEC. | CESCRIPTICN =R EREES DESCRIFTION | PacEis)
PART | - THE SCHEDULE PART Il - COMTRACT CLALSES
B A | SOLICITATICACONTRACT FORM W] 1 [ CONTRACT CLALSES |
| B |SUPPUES OR SERVICES AND PRICES/COSTS PART Ilf - LIST OF DOCUMENTS, EXHIBITS AND GTHER ATTACH.
| € |DESCRIPTIOMNESPECS AWORK STATEMENT }([ J | LIST OF ATTACHMENTS [
W D | PACHAGING AND MARKING FART IV - REPRESENTATIONS AND BSTRUCTIONS
X| E |INSPECTION AND ACCEFTANCE w | REPRESENTATICHS, CERTIFICATIONS AMD OTHER
»| F |DELNVERIES OR PERFORMANCE STATEMENTS OF CFFERORS
| G |CONTRACT ADMINISETRATION DATA L |INETRS. CONDS. AND WOTICES TO OFFERORS
| H | SPECIAL CONTRAGT REQUIREMENTS M | EVALUATION FACTORS FOR AWARD

CONTRACTING QFFICER WILL COMPLETE ITEM 17 OR 18 AS APPLICABLE

17 CONTRACTORS NEGOTIATED AGREEMENT (Sonfractor is required ia
sign thig dncmmnfmdm'umz_ copiss fa issing ofics ) Candracior
agreas to hernish and delivar all Rems or pafarm al the services sef forth or canerwise
damiiliad above and on ary conlinuaton sheats for the considaralion staled herein. The
rignts and obligafions of the parties %0 this contract shall be subject to and govemed by they
Todlewing decarnents; (8) this sward'coniract, (B) e sclicitation, Tary, ard (6} such

18, |:| AWARD (Confracior le mod requined ko sign fivs document) Your offeran
Solictaticn Numbar
ncluding the additions or changas made by you which addtons or changes are set farth in
full abava, s hereby accepled & 1o the lerme listad above and on any canlinuation shaets
This award consummartes the contract which consists af the following documenis: (a) the
Gavernmenta salciiatian and your offer, and (b this Awamdcontract, Mo furiher contraciual
docismert is recessary,

provisians, reprasentations, carsfcations, and spacifications, as are attachad or
SRELL L rafpranos he Aftnchments s Uetad e )
194 MAME AND TITLE OF SIGNER [Tyna o Brr) B

198, NAME OF CONTRACTOR 150, GATE SIGHED

BY

(Signature of parson aufanzed fo sgn)

204, MAME OF CONTRACTING OFFICER

ROSEMARY MANM

ATE RICA

BY

(Signature of Candracfing Officer]

AUTHORIZED FOR LOCAL REPRODUCTION
Privvicus aciion is usakke

STANDARD FORM 28 (rev, 47008
Prasoibed by G54 - FAR (48 CFR) 52.214(a




BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, I
Contract # HHS01002010000t
Page 2 of 1
SECTION B — SUPPLIES OR SERVICE AND PRICE / COST
ARTICLE B.1. BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF SUPPLIES OR SERVICES

The purchase of intravenous antiviral drugs isndésl to safeguard the health of the severelyqlliiring hospitalization during a declared
pandemic. This contract is to provide a certain benof treatment courses of intravenous antiviragd as requested by HHS or other
essential government personnel to clinics providintcal care of influenza patients as a safegtantitigate possible increases in morbidity
and mortality arising from 2009 H1N1 infection.

ARTICLE B.2. PRICES

a. The prices set forth in this contract will covee ttontract period of 24 months from the date ofraw

b. Upon delivery and acceptance of the item(s) desdrib SECTION C of this contract and identifiedle schedule of charges below, the
Government shall pay to the Contractor the unitg(s) set forth below in ARTICLE B..

ARTICLE B.3. SCHEDULE OF CHARGES

CLIN Quantity Unit Price Total
0001- Antiviral Drug 1,000 (treatment course $2,250.0( $ 2,250,000.0
OPTIONAL CLIN*
0002- Maximum Order Antiviral Drug 40,000 (treatment cours: $2,250.0( $90,000,000.0

* The USG may order up to a maximum of 40,000 treatnre courses if optional CLIN is exercised
One ‘Treatment Course’ is defined as peramivir 00®ig daily for 5 days.
ARTICLE B.4. CONTRACT TYPE

This is an Indefinite Delivery Indefinite Quantif§DIQ) contract. Firm Fixed Price Delivery/Task erd will be issued against this contract.
(See ARTICLE G.3. for additional ordering proced)re

ARTICLE B.5. ADVANCE UNDERSTANDINGS
Reserve(

SECTION C — STATEMENT OF WORK (SOW)
ARTICLE C.1. DESCRIPTION

The near certainty that a novel strain of influenizas will emerge at some time and cause panddis@&ase with significant U.S. and global
public health impact has led the Department of theahd
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Human Services (HHS) to undertake an ambitiousrarago prepare countermeasures against this thixdagty aspect of this preparedness
strategy is to ensure the availability of antividaligs against a pandemic strain in time to prdatext).S. population. For the past several
years, HHS, through the Biomedical Advanced Reseand Development Authority (BARDA) in the officé the Assistant Secretary f
Preparedness and Response, has worked to buddlgsé of antiviral drugs against viruses with gdamic potential. This year, a new virus
with pandemic potential unexpectedly emerged in igteand has rapidly spread around the world, cagusiousands of cases of disease as
well as deaths in several countries. On April ZB)@the Acting Secretary of HHS declared a pubdialth emergency, indicating that the
H1N1 2009 influenza virus poses an imminent pandehreat. On June 15, 2009, WHO declared H1N1 dgraic threat. As of

September 5, 2009, the Centers for Disease CarbPrevention (CDC) reported 40,490 confirmedsa$éi1N1 2009 infection in the US.

Influenza antiviral drugs and vaccines are amoegthailable countermeasures to decrease the myeall morbidity associated with the
next pandemic. HHS is pursuing multiple and parslietegies to close the gap between currentiealtiirug supply/demand and have
stockpiled a ready supply of antiviral drugs avaliafor timely distribution.

Independently, and not as an agent of the USGCtmdractor shall furnish all the necessary seryigaalified personnel, materials, supplies,
equipment, facilities, and transportation as resplio:

a. Manufacture treatment courses of antiviral drugddivery to the site requeste

b. Maintain ability to manufacture additional treatrheaurses dependent on the volume and size ofiaaitorders received from HHS for
additional needs for either treatment or prophye

c. Provide antiviral product and package labelind packaging for finished product that is consisteith CDC guidelines for stockpiled
countermeasure

d. Maintain integrity of antivirals while they are begitransported from manufacturer to the delivetgsspr-identified per order

e. Provide report on product shipped to reflectwdaly location, date of delivery, treatment courdekvered, and lot numbers for full
delivery.

f. Product will be accepted up to 6 months from thte @& manufacture provided stability testing datatipportive
The Contractor shall honor only those orders fdivaal drugs that have been submitted by Authati@@dering Officials per contract.
ARTICLE C.2. MANUFACTURING

ARTICLE C.2.1. The contractor must have adequate facilities fonufecture, during the term of the contract, of ptitdly licensable
antiviral drug suitable for contingency use undeE&A, including documentation of capacity for acgoishment of the stated activities and
access to facility(s) compliant with current Goaabbratory Practices, Good Manufacturing Practiaed, Good Clinical Practices regulatic
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ARTICLE C.2.2. The Contractor shall provide the Government wittuaent copy of their existing security policy gmbcedures for the
facility(s), included as Attachment C to this camtr The Contractor shall provide to the Governnaexess to its manufacturing facility for
the purpose of inspection. The Contractor shadirage for the proper authorization and/or badgéadititate access for the Government
representatives.

ARTICLE C.3. REGULATORY
ARTICLE C.3.1. All purchased product will adhere to cGMP, cGCP &Gtandards and practices.

ARTICLE C.3.2. All purchased product will not be used until an Ebds been issued and a PREP Act Declaration ocknysand all
conditions stipulated either by the EUA or the PRE® Declaration will apply.

ARTICLE C.3.3. A Quality Agreement will be established betweendbeernment and the Contractor outlining roles masghonsibilities for
the handling and shipment of product.

ARTICLE C.4. BUSINESS MANAGEMENT
The Contractor shall have an integrated managepiantfor the entire manufacturing, production, ahgbment activities.
ARTICLE C.5. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

Contractors shall notify the Contracting Officeraoduly authorized representative at least 24b@afmrehand that delivery of product will take
place. Once delivery occurs and has been accemirtiactors shall also notify designated HHS ddfieiwithin 24 hrs. that product
acceptance has occurred.

SECTION D - PACKAGING, MARKING AND SHIPPING
ARTICLE D.1. PACKAGING OF PRODUCT

Packaging shall be consistent with standard paoka@ir this product. Packaging shall be designgaréonote quality during long-term
controlled storage and transport in accordance thigfSOW.

ARTICLE D.2. MARKING
Marking shall be in accordance with FDA-approvdeklang direction to be provided at the time of overnment places an order.
ARTICLE D.3. SHIPPING

Shipping shall be in accordance with the Qualityeggnent to be negotiated between the governmerthanzbntractor for the contract
performance period. The Quality Agreement will ¢ delivery date and time, address where the @sderbe delivered, and point of
contact at delivery location, in addition to otlirgstructions specific to the contract.
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SECTION E — INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE

FAR SOURCE Title and Date
FAR Clause 52.2¢-1 Contractor Inspection Requirements (Apr 19
FAR Clause 52.2¢-2 Inspection of Supplie— Fixed Price ( Aug 199¢
FAR Clause 52.24-16 Responsibility for Supplies ( Apr 198

ARTICLE E.1. INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE

Inspection and acceptance of the articles, servaresdocumentation called for herein will be acpbshed by the Contracting Officer or a
duly authorized representative at the destinatidhearticles, services or documents.

SECTION F — DELIVERIES OR PERFORMANCE

FAR Source Title and Date
FAR Clause 52.21-17 Delivery of Excess Quantities ( Sept 19
FAR Clause 52.2¢-15 Stop Work Order (Aug 198¢
FAR Clause 52.2¢-15, Alt 1 Stop Work Order, Alternate 1 (April 198
FAR Clause 52.2¢-17 Government Delay of Work (Apr 198
FAR Clause 52.2¢-34 FOB Destination (Nov 199!

ARTICLE F.1. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE

The period of performance of this contract is apéted for twenty four months from date of award.
ARTICLE F.2. PLACE AND METHOD OF DELIVERY

a. The delivery of the antiviral drugs and related@igs shall be F.O.B. Destinatic

b. The place of delivery will be provided to the Caatior no less than 24 hours prior to shipp

c. Order Fulfillment and Delivery Criteria (from then@Gtracto’s proposal

Through February 2010, if the government placesrder(s) for up to 40,000 treatment courses, timraotor can deliver these treatment
courses in one to two weeks ONLY IF the contrabts the inventory ohand. If treatment courses are unavailable, u®1000 treatmer
courses can be delivered in-16 weeks following an ord¢

Beyond February 2010, if the government placesrdarpthe contractor can deliver treatment coumsasufactured in August 2009 IF
ON-HAND within one to two weeks if the governmehboses to accept product manufactured more thamamths prior. If the
government opts not to take treatments manufaciar@édigust 2009, it will take 12-16 weeks to maratifme and deliver treatment
courses

ARTICLE F.3. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
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ARTICLE F.3.1. Reporting Requirements
Reports shall be submitted in accordance with AR HC.5. of the SOW.
ARTICLE F.3.2. Final Report

Within 30 days of the expiration date of the coctiréhe Contractor shall submit a comprehensivalAReport that shall detail, document, and
summarize the results of the entire contract work.

ARTICLE F.3.3. Sample Inspection

At the discretion of the Government and independéitesting conducted by the Contractor, the Gowennt reserves the right to conduct site
visits and collect samples of products manufactiethe Contractor.

SECTION G — CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION
ARTICLE G.1. CONTRACTING OFFICER

1) The Contracting Officer is the only individuahw can legally commit the Government to the expeneliof public funds. No person other
than the Contracting Officer can make any changdise terms, conditions, general provisions or ogtipulations of this contract.

2) The Contracting Officer is the only person vaththority to act as agent of the Government urfdercontract. Only the Contracting Offic
has authority to: (1) direct or negotiate any cleanig the statement of work; (2) modify or extehel period of performance; (3) change the
delivery schedule; (4) authorize reimbursemenh&Qontractor any costs incurred during the peréoree of this contract; (5) obligate or
deobligate funds into the contract; or (6) otheeandbange any terms and conditions of this contract.

3) No information, other than that which may betegmed in an authorized modification to this coatrauly issued by the Contracting
Officer, which may be received from any person eyetl by the United States Government, or otherwisall be considered grounds for
deviation from any stipulation of this contract.

ARTICLE G.2. PROJECT OFFICER/CONTRACTING OFFICER'S TECHNICAL REPRESENTATIVE (COTR)
The Government'’s Project Officer/COTR is:
Dr. Kevin Gilligan, PhD

The Project Officer/COTR is responsible for: (1)nitoring the Contractor’s technical progress, idahg the surveillance and assessment of
performance and recommending to the Contracting@fthanges in requirements; (2) interpretingstaéement of work and any other
technical performance requirements; (3) perfornt@wnical evaluation as required; (4) performinghtecal inspections and acceptances
required by this contract; and (5) assisting inréolution of technical problems encountered duperformance.

ARTICLE G.3. ORDERING PROCEDURES
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ARTICLE G.3.1. Method of Ordering

The Contracting Officer will sign all orders (inding written confirmation of oral/telephonic ordgnsvolving requests for supplies and/or
services under this contract. Each delivery shathtcompanied by a packing slip or other evidehdelvery/performance.

ARTICLE G.3.2. Delivery Order and Task Order Type

Delivery orders and task orders issued under tivigract will be firm-fixed price.

ARTICLE G.3.3. Minimum and Maximum Quantity

The Government will order a MINIMUM of 1,000 treagmt courses of the antiviral drugs.

The Government may order a MAXIMUM of 40,000 treatrhcourses of the antiviral drugs during the cmitperiod.
ARTICLE G.3.4. Multiple Award Ordering

Orders will be issued to all contractors awardedmtract under this solicitation. In the event ttmaiitiple contracts are awarded, all
contractors will receive orders up to the minimunauignteed quantity. Additional quantities may b#eoed based upon Government’s need
and the contractor’s ability to produce the requieat and will be ordered on a competitive basig Glovernment reserves the right to make
multiple awards.

ARTICLE G.3.5. Option for additional purchases

The Government may exercise options to fund thetmge of additional treatment courses of the aatidrugs in the quantity designated by
the Contracting Officer at the time the Optionjereised during the performance period of the @mttat the unit price specified in the
contract.

ARTICLE G.3.6. Ordering Official

The Contracting Officer is the designated Ordering Official for this costra
ARTICLE G.3.7. Applicable FAR Clauses

52.216-18 Ordering.

Ordering (Oct 1995)

(a) Any supplies and services to be furnished uttdercontract shall be ordered by issuance of/dsliorders or task orders by the
individuals or activities designated in the Sched@uch orders may be issued friimvember 4, 2009, to November 3, 2011

(b) All delivery orders or task orders are subjedthe terms and conditions of this contract. i éwent of conflict between a delivery orde
task order and this contract, the contract shaitroh
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(c) If mailed, a delivery order or task order isiswlered “issued” when the Government deposit®tter in the mail. Orders may be issued
orally, by facsimile, or by electronic commerce heats only if authorized in the Schedule.

(End of clause)
52.216-19 Order Limitations.
Order Limitations (Oct 1995)

(&) Minimum order. When the Government requiresptiap or services covered by this contract in aowamh of less thad000 treatment
courses,the Government is not obligated to purchase, ntirdsContractor obligated to furnish, those sugplieservices under the contract.

(b) Maximum order. The Contractor is not obligatedhonor—
(1) Any order for a single item in excess4@f,000 treatment courses;
(2) Any order for a combination of items in exce$40,000 treatment coursespr

(3) A series of orders from the same ordering effiéthin 7 daysthat together call for quantities exceeding thathtion in paragraph (b)(1)
or (2) of this section.

(c) If this is a requirements contract (i.e., ird#8 the Requirements clause at subsection 52.2b6tB& Federal Acquisition Regulation
(FAR)), the Government is not required to ordeae pf any one requirement from the Contractohdttrequirement exceeds the maximum-
order limitations in paragraph (b) of this section.

(d) Notwithstanding paragraphs (b) and (c) of gastion, the Contractor shall honor any order ediceethe maximum order limitations in
paragraph (b), unless that order (or orders) igmet to the ordering officaithin 2 days after Contractor receives the order, withtemit
notice stating the Contractor’s intent not to shig item (or items) called for and the reasons.rgaeiving this notice, the Government may
acquire the supplies or services from another sourc

(End of clause)
52.216-22 Indefinite Quantity (Oct 1995)

(a) This is an indefinite-quantity contract for thepplies or services specified, and effectivelierperiod stated, in the Schedule. The
guantities of supplies and services specified én3hbhedule are estimates only and are not purchgsiis contract.

(b) Delivery or performance shall be made onlyatharized by orders issued in accordance with trdefing clause. The Contractor shall
furnish to the Government, when and if ordered siiygplies or services specified in the Schedul®wnd including the quantity designated
in the Schedule as the “maximum.” The Governmeall giider at least the quantity of supplies or ey designated in the Schedule as the
“minimum.”

(c) Except for any limitations on quantities in Deder Limitations clause or in the Schedule, themo limit on the number of orders that
may be issued. The Government may issue order#iregidelivery to multiple destinations or perfornte at multiple locations.

(d) Any order issued during the effective periodro$ contract and not completed within that pesbdll be completed by the Contractor
within the time specified in the order. The contrsttall govern the Contractor’'s and Governmenghts and obligations with respect to that
order to the same extent as if the order were cetaglduring the contrasteffective period; provided, that the Contractwalknot be require
to make any deliveries under this contract dftevember 3, 2011.
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(End of clause)
ARTICLE G.4. PAYMENT BY ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFER ( Jan 2000)

The Government will use electronic funds transfethe maximum extent possible when making paymemder this contract. FAR 52.232-
33, Payment by Electronic Funds Transfer—Centrait@ator Registration, in Section |, requires tbatcactor to designate in writing a
financial institution for receipt of electronic fds transfer payments.

ARTICLE G.5. INVOICE SUBMISSION

The Contractor shall submit invoices in accordanitk instructions provided in Attachment 1 — Inveimstructions.

ARTICLE G.6. PAYMENT CONDITIONS

The Contractor may not invoice for any CLIN priordelivery.

Accepted product which falls into any of the folliog categories shall be replaced by the contraatap cost to the USG.
1. If product does not meet any criterion outlinedhis contract

2. If product is deemed to be recalled for ason, as outlined in the Product Recalls, Inolgdtemoval and corrections published by
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, FootdDrug Administration, Office of Regulatory Affsj or based upon
Chapter 7 of the Regulatory Procedures Manual atma007.

ARTICLE G.7. CONTRACT COMMUNICATIONS/CORRESPONDENCE

The Contractor shall identify all correspondeneports, and other data pertinent to this contrgdtiprinting thereon the contract number
from Page 1 of the contract.

ARTICLE G.8. POINT OF CONTACT

The Contractor shall provide primary and secongaints of contact that will be available 24 houes gay, 7 days per week, to be notified in
case a public health emergency. (See Attachment 2)

SECTION H — SPECIAL CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS
ARTICLE H.1. CONFIDENTIALITY OF INFORMATION

The following information is covered by HHSARause 352.224-70, Confidentiality of Information(January 2006): Data obtained from
human subjects.

ARTICLE H.2. POSSESSION USE AND TRANSFER OF SELECTBIOLOGICAL AGENTS OR TOXINS

The contractor shall not conduct work involvingesglagents or toxins under this contract untihil any associated subcontractor(s) comply
with the following:
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For prime or subcontract awardsitmestic institutions that possess, use, and/or transfer Select Agedes timis contract, the
institution must comply with the provisions of 4ER part 73, 7 CFR part 331, and/or 9 CFR part 121

( http://www.aphis.usda.gov/programs/ag_selectdfamaiRule318-05.pdf) as required, before using HHS funds for work imirg
a Select Agent or ToxinNo HHS funds can be used for research involvigglect Agent or Toxin at a domestic institutiotheut a
valid registration certificate

For prime or subcontract awardgdoeign institutions that possess, use, and/or transf8ekect Agent or Toxinbefore using HHS
funds for any work directly involving Select Agent or Toxinthe foreign institution must provide informatisatisfactory to the HH
that safety, security, and training standards exjeit to those described in 42 CFR part 73, 7 C&fR381, and/or 9 CFR part 121
are in place and will be administered on behaHlbSelect Agent or Toxiwwork supported by these funds. The process for mggtkiis
determination includes inspection of the foreigmolatory facility by a HHS representative. Durihistinspection, the foreign
institution must provide the following informationoncise summaries of safety, security, and trgipians; names of individuals at
the foreign institution who will have access to 8wlect Agents and procedures for ensuring thatambroved and appropriate
individuals, in accordance with institution proceel; will have access to the Select Agents unaecdintract; and copies of or links
to any applicable laws, regulations, policies, pratedures applicable to that institution for théesand secure possession, use,
and/or transfer of select agents. No HHS fundsbeansed for work involving a Select Agent or Toatra foreign institution without
written approval from the Contracting Offict

Listings of HHS select agents and toxins, aveflap select agents or toxins as well as inforomasibout the registration process for
domestic institutions, are available on the Sefernt Program Web site at http:// www.cdc.gov/op/sad
http://www.cdc.gov/od/sap/docs/salist.}.

Listings of USDA select agents and toxins all asinformation about the registration procegsdfamestic institutions are available on the
APHIS/USDA website at:

http://www.aphis.usda.gov/programs/ag_selectagetdx.htmland:
http://www.aphis.usda.gov/programs/ag_selectaggniiaterr forms.htm

For foreign institutions, see the HHS SeleceAigAward information:
(' http://www.niaid.nih.gov/ncn/clinical/default_biofdmse.htrr).

ARTICLE H.3. ANTI-LOBBYING

The contractor is hereby notified of the restriect@mn the use of Department of Health and Humawic&es funding for lobbying of Federal,
State and Local legislative bodies.

Section 1352 of Title 10, United States Code (Rubdiw 101-121, effective 12/23/89), among othengki prohibits a recipient (and their
subcontractors) of a Federal contract, grant, loanpoperative agreement from using appropriated$ (other than profits from a federal
contract) to pay any person for influencing orm@fiéing to influence an officer or employee of aggacy, a Member of Congress, an officer
or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Memb€pngress in connection with any of the follogitovered Federal actions; the
awarding of any Federal
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contract; the making of any Federal grant; the mgkif any Federal loan; the entering into of angp=rative agreement; or the modification
of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or coopeeatigreement. For additional information of prohdsis against lobbying activities see FAR
Subpart 3.8, FAR Clause 52.203-12 and HHSAR 3521270

In addition, the current Department of Health andrtdn Services Appropriations Act provides that ad pf any appropriation contained in
this Act shall be used, other than for normal aambgnized executive-legislative relationships dablicity or propaganda purposes, for the
preparation, distribution, or use of any kit, patephbooklet, publication, radio, television, odgdb presentation designed to support, or di
legislation pending before the Congress, or anteQtal ocal legislature except in presentatiorh®@ongress, or any State or Local
legislative body itself.

The current Department of Health and Human SenAggwopriations Act also provides that no part oy appropriation contained in this #
shall be used to pay the salary or expenses ofamiyact or grant recipient, or agent acting farhstecipient, related to any activity designed
to influence legislation or appropriations pendigjore the Congress, or and State or Local legigat

ARTICLE H.4. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF FEDERAL FUNDING

A. Section 507 of P.L. 104-208 mandates that contra¢tmded with Federal dollars, in whole or in pagknowledge Federal funding when
issuing statements, press releases, requestsofoogals, bid solicitations and other documentsti@otors are required to state (1) the
percentage and dollar amounts of the total prograproject costs financed with Federal money, &)dhe percentage and dollar amount
of the total costs financed by nongovernmental czs!

This requirement is in addition to the continuirguirement to provide an acknowledgment of supgdtdisclaimer on any publication
reporting the results of a contract funded acti

B. Publication and Publicit

The Contractor shall acknowledge the support oibpartment of Health and Human Service, OfficthefAssistant Secretary for
Preparedness and Response, Biomedical AdvancediRes:nd Development Authority whenever publicizing work under this contre
in any media by including an acknowledgment suliitiyas follows:

“This project has been funded in whole or in pathwederal funds from the Office of the Assist8etretary for Preparedness and
Response, Biomedical Advanced Research and Develupfuthority, undeHHS0100201000001I

C. Press Releast

Pursuant to Section 508 of Public Law 105-78, thatctor shall clearly state, when issuing statésgress releases, requests for
proposals, bid solicitations and other documenseidaing projects or programs funded in whole opamt with Federal money that: (1) 1
percentage of the total costs of the program geptavhich will be financed with Federal money; (B¢ dollar amount of Federal funds
for the project or program; and (3) the percentaug dollar amount of the total costs of the progggirogram that will be financed by
nongovernmental source

ARTICLE H.5. SUBCONTRACTING PROVISIONS
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Not applicable since BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, isi@ Small Business entit

ARTICLE H.6. REPORTING MATTERS INVOLVING FRAUD, WAS TE AND ABUSE

Anyone who becomes aware of the existence or appexéstence of fraud, waste and abuse in HHS fdipdegrams is encouraged to report
such matters to the HHS Inspector General's Offiosriting or on the Inspector General’s HotlindeTtoll free number i-800-HHS-TIPS
(1-800-447-8477)All telephone calls will be handled confidentiallyhe e-mail address Ktips@os.dhhs.govand the mailing address is:

Office of Inspector General

Department of Health and Human Services
TIPS HOTLINE

P.O. Box 23489

Washington, D.C. 20026

ARTICLE H.7. PROHIBITION ON CONTRACTOR INVOLVEMENT  WITH TERRORIST ACTIVITIES

The contractor acknowledges that U.S. Executivee@rdnd Laws, including but not limited to E.O. 282nd P.L. 107-56, prohibit
transactions with, and the provision of resourcessupport to, individuals and organizations asgedi with terrorism. It is the legal
responsibility of the contractor to ensure compd@mwith these Executive Orders and Laws. This elansst be included in all subcontracts
issued under this contract.

ARTICLE H.8. NOTICE PRIOR TO PUBLICATION
The Contractor shall not release any reports, n@ipis, press releases, or abstracts about the maing performed under this contract
without written notice in advance to the Governmémt additional information see HHSAR 352.270-6.

ARTICLE H.9. IDENTIFICATION AND DISPOSITION OF DATA

The Contractor will be required to provide certdata generated under this contract to the Depattoidfealth and Human Services (HHS).
HHS reserves the right to review any other datardd@hed by HHS to be relevant to this contract. @twetractor shall keep copies of all data
required by the Food and Drug Administration (FD&levant to this contract for the time specifiedtby FDA.

ARTICLE H.10. MANUFACTURING STANDARDS

The Current Good Manufacturing Practice Regulations(cGMP) (21 CFR Parts 216211) will be the standard to be applied for
manufacturing, processing and packing of this therpeutic product .

If at any time during the life of the contract, t@entractor fails to comply with cGMP in the mareifaing, processing and packaging of this
therapeutic product and such failure results iragenil adverse effect on the safety, purity oepoy of this therapeutic product (a material
failure)
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as identified by CBER and CDER, the ContractorIdiale thirty (30) calendar days from the time sowdterial failure is identified to cure
such material failure. If the Contractor fails &xé¢ such an action within the thirty (30) calendiay period, then the contract may be
terminated.

ARTICLE H.11. PRESS RELEASES

1. Pursuant to Public Law(s) cited in paragraph (8)oWw, the contractor shall clearly state, whenirggstatements, press releases, requests
for proposals, bid solicitations and other docurael@scribing projects or programs funded in wholi@ @art with Federal money: the
percentage of the total costs of the program geptavhich will be financed with Federal money; tialar amount of Federal funds for
the project or program; and the percentage andrdathount of the total costs of the project or progthat will be financed by
nongovernmental source

2. Public Law and Section No. Fiscal Year Period Covered

P.L. 10¢-149, Title V, section 506, as Directed by P.L. -5, Div. B, title I, Section 10 200¢ 10/1/200¢- 9/30/201(
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PART Il —CONTRACT CLAUSES

SECTION | — CONTRACT CLAUSES
FAR 52.252-2 Clauses Incorporated by Reference 196B)

This contract incorporates one or more clauseefgrence, with the same force and effect as if thexe given in full text. Upon request, the
Contracting Officer will make their full text avable. Also, the full text of a clause may be acedssectronically at these addresses:

http://www.dhhs.gov/oamp/dap/hhsar.html
http://www.acqgnet.gov
http://farsite.hill.af.mil/

I.1. General Clauses for a Negotiated Fixed Priceupply Contract
a. FEDERAL ACQUISITION REGULATION (FAR) (48 CHAPTER 1IGLAUSES

Reg Clause Date Clause Title

FAR 52.20:-1 Jul-04 Definitions (Over $100,00(C

FAR 52.20:-3 Apr-84  Gratuities (Over $100,00!

FAR 52.20%-5 Apr-84 Covenant Against Contingent Fees (Over $100,!

FAR 52.20-6 Sef-06 Restrictions on Subcontractor Sales to the Govennif@ver $100,000

FAR 52.20%-7 Jul-95 Anti-Kickback Procedures (Over $100,0(

FAR 52.20:-8 Jar-97 Cancellation, Rescission, and Recovery of Funddléaral or Improper Activity (Over $100,00!

FAR 52.20:-10 Jar-97 Price or Fee Adjustment for lllegal or Improper ity (Over $100,000

FAR 52.20:-12 Ser-07 Limitation on Payments to Influence Certain Fed@&rainsactions (Over $100,0C

FAR 52.20+4 Aug-00 Printed or Copied Douk-Sided on Recycled Paper (Over $100,(

FAR 52.20+7 Apr-08 Central Contractor Registratic

FAR 52.20+10 Ser-07 Reporting Subcontract Awards ($500,000,000 or m

FAR 52.209-6 SepO6 Protecting the Government's Interests When Subaotitig With Contractors Debarred,
Suspended, or Proposed for Debarment (Over $30

FAR 52.21:-5 Aug-00 Material Requirement

FAR 52.215-2 Mar-09 Audit and Records —Negotiation [Note: Applies to ALL contracts fundidwhole or in part witl

Recovery Act funds, regardless of dollar value, Abtintracts over $100,000 funded exclusively
with nor-Recovery Act funds.

FAR 52.21:-8 Oct-97 Order of Preceden— Uniform Contract Forme

FAR 52.215%-10 Oct-97 Price Reduction for Defective Cost or Pricing D@daer $650,000

FAR 52.215%-12 Oct-97 Subcontractor Cost or Pricing Data (Over $650,(

FAR 52.215%-14 Oct-97 Integrity of Unit Prices (Over $100,00

FAR 52.215%-15 Ocl-04 Pension Adjustments and Asset Revers

FAR 52.21:-18 Jul-05 Reversion or Adjustment of Plans for F-Retirement Benefits (PRB) other than Pens

FAR 52.21%-19 Oct-97 Notification of Ownership Changs

FAR 52.215-21 Oct97 Requirements for Cost or Pricing Data or Informai@ther Than Cost or Pricing Data —
Modifications

FAR 52.21¢-8 May-04 Utilization of Small Business Concerns (Over $100X

FAR 52.21¢9 Apr-08 Small Business Subcontracting Plan (Over $550,80@00,000 for Constructiol

FAR 52.21¢-16 Jar-99 Liquidated Damage— Subcontracting Plan (Over $550,000, $1,000,00@furstruction’

FAR 52.22:-19 Fet-08 Child Labo—Cooperation with Authorities and Remed

FAR 52.22:-20 Dec-96 Walsk-Healey Public Contracts A

FAR 52.22:-21 Fet-99 Prohibition of Segregated Faciliti
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Reg Clause Date Clause Title
FAR 52.22:-26 Mar-07 Equal Opportunity
FAR 52.222-35 SepO6 Equal Opportunity for Special Disabled Veteranstevans of the Vietnam Era, and Other Eligi
Veterans (Over $100,00
FAR 52.22:-36 Jur-98 Affirmative Action for Workers with Disabilitie
FAR 52.222-37 SepO6 Employment Reports on Special Disabled Veterangerdas of the Vietham Era, and Other
Eligible Veterans (Over $100,00
FAR 52.22:-50 Fet-09 Combating Trafficking in Persot
FAR 52.22:-54 Jar-09 Employment Eligibility Verification (Over $100,00:
FAR 52.22-6 May-01 Drug-Free Workplact
FAR 52.22:-14 Aug-03 Toxic Chemical Release Reporting (Over $100,(
FAR 52.22%-1 Fet-09 Buy American Ac— Supplies
FAR 52.22%-13 Jur-08 Restrictions on Certain Foreign Purcha
FAR 52.22°-1 Dec-07 Authorization and Conse
FAR 52.22°-2 Dec-07 Notice and Assistance Regarding Patent and Copylnftingement
FAR 52.22¢-3 Apr-03 Federal, State and Local Taxes (Over $100,
FAR 52.23-1 Apr-84 Payment:
FAR 52.23:-8 Fet-02 Discounts for Prompt Payme
FAR 52.23:-9 Apr-84 Limitation on Withholding of Paymen
FAR 52.23-11 Apr-84 Extras
FAR 52.23:-17 Oct-08 Interest (Over $100,00(
FAR 52.23:-23 Jar-86 Assignment of Claim
FAR 52.23:-25 Oct-08 Prompt Paymer
FAR 52.23:-33 Oct-03 Payment by Electronic Funds Tran—Central Contractor Registratic
FAR 52.23-1 Jul-02 Disputes
FAR 52.23:-3 Aug-96 Protest After Awart
FAR 52.23:-4 Oct-04 Applicable Law for Breach of Contract Cla
FAR 52.24:-13 Ju-95 Bankruptcy (Over $100,00(
FAR 52.24:-1 Aug-87 Change— Fixec-Price
FAR 52.24+6 Mar-09 Subcontracts for Commercial Iter
FAR 52.24¢-2 May-04 Termination for the Convenience of the Governme&mtec-Price)
FAR 52.24¢-8 Apr-84 Default (Fixe-Price Supply and Service)(Over $100,0
FAR 52.25%-1 Jar-91 Computer Generated Forr

I.2. Department of Health and Human Services Acquiton Regulation (HHSAR) (48 CFR Chapter 3) Clauses

Full text of these clauses can be found at httpnivhhs.gov/oamp/policies/index.html

HHSAR
HHSAR
HHSAR
HHSAR
HHSAR
HHSAR

352.20:-1
352.23-9
352.27(-4
352.27(-5
352.27(-6
352.27(-10

Jar-06
Jar-06
Jar-01
Jar-06
Jar-06
Jar-06

Definitions

Withholding of Contract Paymen
Pricing of Adjustment:

Key Personne

Publications and Publicit
Anti-Lobbying (Over $100,00(

[.3. ADDITIONAL CONTRACT CLAUSES
FEDERAL ACQUISITION REGULATION (FAR) (48 CFR CHAPTE R 1) CLAUSES
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FAR 52.21¢-18 Ocl-95 Ordering
FAR 52.21¢19 Oct-95 Order Limitations
FAR 52.21¢22 Oct-95 Indefinite Quantity
FAR 52.21¢27 Oct-95 Single or Multiple Award:
FAR 52.22°-14 Dec-07 Rights in Date— Genera
FAR 52.23:-20 Apr-84 Limitation of Cost
FAR 52.23:-32 Jar-08 Performanc-based Paymen
FAR 52.24:-1 Apr-84 Notice of Intent to Disallow Cos
FAR 52.24*-1 Jur-07 Government Properi
FAR 52.24%-2 Jur-07 Government Propert- Fixed Price Contract
FAR 52.24¢-2 May-04 Termination for the Convenience of the Governme&mtec-Price)
FAR 52.24¢-8 Apr-84 Default (Fixe-Price Supply and Service) (Over $100,0
FAR 52.24¢-14 Apr-84 Excusable Delay

(1) 52.217-7 Option for Increased Quantity — Separatelyriced Line Item (Reserved) (Mar 1989).

“...The Contracting Officer may exercise the optionitten notice to the Contractor within 24 hoursssuance of the contract”
(2) 52.215-17 Waiver of Facilities Capital Cost of Mong (October 1997)
(3) 52.227-14, Rights in Data — General (Dec 2007)
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PART Il —ATTACHMENTS

SECTION J — LIST OF ATTACHMENTS

The following Attachments are provided in full texith this contract:

ATTACHMENT 1: INVOICE INSTRUCTIONS

ATTACHMENT 2: CONTRACTOR POINT OF CONTACT

ATTACHMENT 3: MANUFACTURING FACILITY SECURITY PLAN(Per ARTICLE C.2.2))



Exhibit 10.33

Pursuant to 17 CFR 240.24b-2, confidential informabn has been omitted in places marked “* * *” and las been filed separately with
the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant @ Confidential Treatment Application filed with the Commission.

THIRD AMENDMENT AGREEMENT

This Amendment Agreement is made effectivedddmer 11, 2009 by and between Albert Einstein Qellef Medicine of Yeshiva
University, a Division of Yeshiva University, a @aration organized and existing under the law$iefState of New York, having an office
and place of business at 1300 Morris Park Avenuen New York 10461 (“AECOM?"), Industrial Researttd., a company organized and
existing under the laws of New Zealand, having fice@and place of business at Gracefield Rese@muitre, Gracefield Road, P.O. Box 31-
310, Lower Hutt, New Zealand (“Industrial”) (AECO#&hd Industrial are collectively referred to heram“Licensors”), and BioCryst
Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a corporation organizedeaigting under the laws of the State of Delawangritaan office and place of business at
2190 Parkway Lake Drive, Birmingham, Alabama 35244censee”).

Statement

Licensors and Licensee are parties to a Leédmgeement dated June 27, 2000, as amended bgtaARiendment Agreement effective
July 26, 2002 and a Second Amendment AgreemertteeApril 15, 2005 (collectively “the License Aggment”), and now wish to make
changes to the License Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutt@lenants contained in the Licensee Agreementrattis Third Amendment
Agreement and other good and valuable consider#ti®neceipt and sufficiency of which is herebyramkledged, the parties agree as
follows:

1. Paragraph 6.01 of the License Agreememeiisby amended to include the following additicseitence:

Notwithstanding the *** royalty on Net Sales settfoabove, if Licensee later requests a differegalty rate for a Licensed Product for a
*** indication, Licensors agree to consider suchuest.

2. Paragraph 6.05 of the License Agreememiisby amended to read as follows:
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6.05 Licensee shall make the following milestongnpents to Licensors:

(a) Except as specified below, upon the filing bydrisee (or an Affiliate) of each IND for a Licens&duct (or each indication for a
Licensed Product), Licensee shall pay to Licenstswvhich payments are non-refundable and not ¢edile against any other
payment due to Licensors pursuant to this Agreentgmin the filing by Licensee (or an Affiliate) each IND for a Licensed
Product for a *** indication, Licensee shall payltizensors only *** pursuant to this Subparagraphduch filing, which payments
are non-refundable and not creditable against #mgr @ayment due to Licensors pursuant to this émgent. Upon the filing by
Licensee (or an Affiliate) of an IND for a LicensBdoduct that is not, on its face, directly assedavith any indication (i.e. a
generic IND), Licensee shall owe *** to Licensongrpuant to this Subparagraph for such fili

*** shall be due under this Subparagraph for a LiceRseduct solely for a *** indicatior

(b) Except as specified below, upon the initiationLizensee (or an Affiliate) of Phase Il clinicallts (i.e. the administration of a
Licensed Product to a patient for the primary psgoof assessing clinical efficacy; and not Phadimical trials for the primary
purpose of assessing safety or pharmacokinetic®aith Licensed Product (or each indication foicethsed Product), Licensee shall
pay to Licensors ***, which payments are non-refabld and not creditable against any other paymaata Licensors pursuant to
this Agreement. Upon the initiation by LicenseedorAffiliate) of Phase Il clinical trials for eatlicensed Product for a ***
indication, Licensee shall pay to Licensors only,*jursuant to this Subparagraph for the initiatidrsuch trials, which payments ¢
non-refundable and not creditable against any gibgment due to Licensors pursuant to this Agreénim payment shall be due
under this paragraph for any Phase Il clinical triiated by a third party Investigator, everthe trial is supported by Licensee (an

“Investigator Initiated Tri"). However, if the

-2-
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Investigator Initiated Trial enables Licensee (orAdfiliate) to initiate a Phase Il clinical triar if Licensee (or an Affiliate) procee
to initiate a similar Phase Il clinical trial, théme payment required by this paragraph shall becdue and payable.

*** shall be due under this Subparagraph for a LiceRseduct solely for a *** indicatior

(c) Except as specified below, upon the initiationLipensee (or an Affiliate) of Phase Ill clinicaials for each Licensed Product (or
each indication for a Licensed Product), Licendesl pay to Licensors ***, which payments are n&fundable and not creditable
against any other payment due to Licensors purgoahts Agreement. Upon the initiation by Licengeean Affiliate) of Phase IlI
clinical trials for each Licensed Product for a #ftidication, Licensee shall pay to Licensors oriff; pursuant to this Subparagraph
for the initiation of such trials, which paymentg aon-refundable and not creditable against ahgrgtayment due to Licensors

pursuant to this Agreemel
*** shall be due under this Subparagraph for a LiceRseduct solely for a *** indicatior

(d) Except as specified below, upon Licensee’s (ohfiifiate’s) first receipt of governmental apprd&DA or equivalent approval in a
European country or Japan) to market each LiceRseduct (or each Indication for a Licensed Produdtensee shall pay to
Licensors ***, which payments are non-refundabld ant creditable against any other payment duéderisors pursuant to this
Agreement. Upon Licensee’s (or an Affiliate’s) fireceipt of governmental approval (FDA or equiwndlapproval in a European
country or Japan) to market each Licensed Produa f** indication, Licensee shall pay to Licensamly *** pursuant to this
Subparagraph for such FDA approval, which paymargson-refundable and not creditable against #&msr payment due to

Licensors pursuant to this Agreeme

-3-
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*** shall be due under this Subparagraph for a LiceRseduct solely for a *** indicatior

(e) The first time the aggregate Net Sales of LicdriBeducts for a *** indication in a consecutiveetwe month period total ***,
Licensee shall pay to Licensors ***, which paymenhon-refundable and not creditable against ahgrgtayment due to Licensors
pursuant to this Agreemel

() The first time the aggregate Net Sales of Licdr@@ducts in a consecutive (12) twelve month getidal ***, Licensee shall pay to
Licensors ***, which payment is non-refundable arat creditable against any other payment due terisors pursuant to this
Agreement

(g) The first time the aggregate Net Sales of Licdr@@ducts in a consecutive twelve (12) month petatal ***, Licensee shall pay to
Licensors ***, which payment is non-refundable arat creditable against any other payment due terisors pursuant to this
Agreement

(h) The calculation of Net Sales pursuant to Subpapgs (f) and (g) above shall exclude: (i) Net SalelLicensed Products for a ***
indication; and (ii) Net Sales of Licensed Produwstitely for a *** indication.

3. The applicable provisions of this Thikmendment Agreement shall be deemed to be incaignb into the License Agreement in full
and to be an integral part thereof as though &afyforth therein. With the exception of the abaweendments, all other provisions of the
License Agreement shall remain in full force anigetf

4-
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties heretuehantered into and executed this Third Amendmemedment on the date first above
written.

ALBERT EINSTEIN COLLEGE BIOCRYST

OF MEDICINE OF YESHIVA PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

UNIVERSITY

By: /s/ John L. Harl By: /s/ Alane Barne
Name: John L. Har Name: Alane Barne
Title: Assistant Dean Title: General Counsel

Scientific Operatior
INDUSTRIAL RESEARCH LTD.

By: /s/ Jeff Lycett
Name: Jeff Lycett
Title: Board Secretary




Exhibit 23

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference irféHewing Registration Statements:

Registration Statements (Form S-8 Nos. 333-120333-39484 and 333-30751) pertaining to the BieCBharmaceuticals, Inc.
1991 Stock Option Plan, as amended and restatefd\arch 8, 2004

Registration Statement (Forn-8 No. 33:-90582) pertaining to the BioCryst Pharmaceutidals, Employee Stock Purchase Pl

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-136p@8laining to the BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inocktincentive Plan, which
amended and restated the BioCryst Pharmaceutinals] 991 Stock Option Plan as of May 17, 2C

Registration Statement (Forn-3 No. 33:-145638) pertaining to the registration of up to48,000 shares of common sto

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-145@2Tjaining to the BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inoc&tincentive Plan as amended
and restated effective March 2007 and Employmetiet &dgreement dated April 2, 2007 between BioCBfisarmaceuticals, Inc. a
David McCullough;

Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 355783) for the registration of up to $70 milliohBioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. comn
stock, preferred stock, depositary shares, stooghaise contracts, warrants or units;

Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 353084) for the registration of 3,335,408 shareBioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Inc. comn
stock and 3,159,895 warrants to purchase commak sfdBioCryst Pharmaceuticals, Ir

of our reports dated March 9, 2010 with respe¢hédfinancial statements of BioCryst Pharmaceudidak. and the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting of BioCryst Phameaticals, Inc. included in this Annual Report (fRat0-K) for the year ended
December 31, 2009.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Birmingham, Alabama
March 9, 2010
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CERTIFICATIONS

I, Jon P. Stonehouse, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, In

Based on my knowledge, this report doesantain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmislieading with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statésjend other financial information included iistheport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrarg’ other certifying officer(s) and | are responsiioleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f) for the registrant and hay

a) designed such disclosure controls and proesdor caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b) designed such internal control over finah@porting, or caused such internal control owearicial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmare with generally accepted accounting princij

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registsatisclosure controls and procedures and presémtads report our conclusions abi
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyédport based on such
evaluation; an

d) disclosed in this report any change in #gstrant’s internal control over financial repodithat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo&) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; a

The registrant’s other certifying officer@)d | have disclosed, based on our most recehtaian of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a) all significant deficiencies and materialakresses in the design or operation of internairobaver financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regie’s ability to record, process, summarize and refimanhcial information; an

b) any fraud, whether or not material, thabiwes management or other employees who have Hisan role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 9, 2010 /s/ Jon P. Stonehous

Jon P. Stonehous
Chief Executive Officer
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CERTIFICATIONS
I, Stuart Grant, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forn-K of BioCryst Pharmaceuticals, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doesantain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmislieading with respect to the
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statésend other financial information included irstheport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this rep

4. The registrarg’ other certifying officer(s) and | are responsildleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f) for the registrant and hav

a. designed such disclosure controls and puresdor caused such disclosure controls and puoesdo be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pnegzh

b. designed such internal control over finah@porting, or caused such internal control owearicial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataece with generally accepted accounting princij

c. evaluated the effectiveness of the registsatisclosure controls and procedures and presémtais report our conclusions abi
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgatures, as of the end of the period coveredibydport based on such
evaluation; an

d. disclosed in this report any change in #ggstrant’s internal control over financial repogdithat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo&) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonabhlikely to materially affect, the registré s internal control over financial reporting; a

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer@)d | have disclosed, based on our most recehiaian of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct(@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a. all significant deficiencies and materiakkeesses in the design or operation of internairobaver financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regie’s ability to record, process, summarize and reffmanhcial information; an

b. any fraud, whether or not material, thabimes management or other employees who have Hisén role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 9, 2010 /s/ Stuart Grant
Stuart Grant
Chief Financial Officer
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CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Bio&r{Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (the “Company”) on ForrKlfor the period ending
December 31, 2009 as filed with the SecuritiesiExchange Commission on the date hereof (the “R@parton P. Stonehouse, Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuamil8 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to $9fte Sarbane®xley Act of 2002, tha
to the best of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgjeAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/s/ Jon P. Stonehous
Jon P. Stonehous
Chief Executive Officer
March 9, 2010

This certification is furnished with this Repon Form 10-K pursuant to Section 906 of the 8ads-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not,
except to the extent required by such Act, be dediterl by the Company for purposes of Section fihe Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended (the “Exchange Act”). Such certificatidhnot be deemed to be incorporated by referenteany filing under the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act, éxoepe extent that the Company specifically ipooates it by reference.
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CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Bio&r{harmaceuticals, Inc. (the “Company”) on ForrKlfor the period ending
December 31, 2009 as filed with the SecuritiesExcthange Commission on the date hereof (the “R8parStuart Grant, Chief Financial
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 & S8 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of thieaBas-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the
best of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgfewAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finana@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

/sl Stuart Grant

Stuart Grant

Chief Financial Officer
March 9, 2010

This certification is furnished with this Repon Form 10-K pursuant to Section 906 of the 8ads-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not,
except to the extent required by such Act, be dediterl by the Company for purposes of Section fihe Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended (the “Exchange Act”). Such certificatidhnot be deemed to be incorporated by referantany filing under the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act, éxoepe extent that the Company specifically ipooates it by reference.



